
Western Riverside Council of Governments
Technical Advisory Committee

REVISED AGENDA
 

Thursday, April 20, 2023 
9:30 AM

 
Western Riverside Council of Governments

3390 University Avenue, Suite 200
Riverside, CA 92501

 

Committee members are asked to attend this meeting in
person unless remote accommodations have previously

been requested and noted on the agenda.  The below
Zoom link is provided for the convenience of members of

the public, presenters, and support staff.
 

Remote Meeting Location
 

City of Temecula
City Manager's Office

41000 Main Street
Temecula, CA  92590

 
Public Zoom Link

Meeting ID: 881 5053 7115
Passcode: 063120

Dial in: (669) 900 9128 U.S.
 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act and Government Code Section 54954.2, if
special assistance is needed to participate in the Technical Advisory Committee meeting, please
contact WRCOG at (951) 405-6706.  Notification of at least 48 hours prior to meeting time will assist
staff in assuring that reasonable arrangements can be made to provide accessibility at the meeting.  In
compliance with Government Code Section 54957.5, agenda materials distributed within 72 hours prior
to the meeting which are public records relating to an open session agenda item will be available for
inspection by members of the public prior to the meeting at 3390 University Avenue, Suite 200,
Riverside, CA, 92501.

1

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88150537115?pwd=MlBHU0JGUDJUaGMyYVAvWFBWZHdKUT09


  
1. CALL TO ORDER (Rob Johnson, Chair)
  
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
  
3. ROLL CALL
  
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS

At this time members of the public can address the Committee regarding any items within the subject matter jurisdiction
of the Committee that are not separately listed on this agenda. Members of the public will have an opportunity to speak
on agendized items at the time the item is called for discussion. No action may be taken on items not listed on the
agenda unless authorized by law. Whenever possible, lengthy testimony should be presented to the Committee in
writing and only pertinent points presented orally.

  
5. CONSENT CALENDAR

All items listed under the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and may be enacted by one motion. Prior to
the motion to consider any action by the Committee, any public comments on any of the Consent Items will be heard.
There will be no separate action unless members of the Committee request specific items be removed from the
Consent Calendar.

 A. Summary Minutes from the February 16, 2023, Technical Advisory Committee Meeting
  

Requested Action(s): 1. Approve the Summary Minutes from the February 16,
2023, Technical Advisory Committee meeting.

 B. Summary Minutes from the March 16, 2023, Technical Advisory Committee Meeting
  

Requested Action(s): 1. Approve the Summary Minutes from the March 16,
2023, Technical Advisory Committee meeting.

 C. 2022 Fee Comparison Analysis Update - Final Report
  

Requested Action(s): 1. Receive and file. 

 D. SCAG Activities Update:  March 2023
  

Requested Action(s): 1. Receive and file. 

 E. Finance Department Activities Update
  

Requested Action(s): 1. Receive and file.
  
6. REPORTS / DISCUSSION

 A. Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Budget
  

Requested Action(s): 1. Receive and file.

In addition to commenting at the Committee meeting, members of the public may also submit written
comments before or during the meeting, prior to the close of public comment to lfelix@wrcog.us.

Any member of the public requiring a reasonable accommodation to participate in this meeting in light
of this announcement shall contact Lucy Felix 72 hours prior to the meeting at (951) 405-6706
or lfelix@wrcog.us. Later requests will be accommodated to the extent feasible.

The Committee may take any action on any item listed on the agenda, regardless of the Requested Action.

2

mailto:lfelix@wrcog.us?subject=TAC%20Public%20Comment
mailto:lfelix@wrcog.us?subject=TAC%20Accommodation


 B. Riverside County Regional Broadband Efforts
  

Requested Action(s): 1. Receive and file. 

 C. I-REN Energy Fellowship Update:  Member Agency Participation
  

Requested Action(s): 1. Receive and file.

 D. Good Neighbor Guidelines for Siting New and/or Modified Warehouse / Distribution
Facilities

  
Requested Action(s): 1. Recommend that the Executive Committee either

withdraw the WRCOG Good Neighbor Guidelines for
Siting New and/or Modified Warehouse / Distribution
Facilities or direct staff to update the WRCOG Good
Neighbor Guidelines for Siting New and/or Modified
Warehouse / Distribution Facilities.

  
7. REPORT FROM THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Dr. Kurt WIlson
  
8. ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDAS

Members are invited to suggest additional items to be brought forward for discussion at future
Committee meetings.

  
9. GENERAL ANNOUNCEMENTS

Members are invited to announce items / activities which may be of general interest to the
Committee.

  
10. NEXT MEETING

The next Technical Advisory Committee meeting is scheduled for Thursday, May 18, 2023, at 9:30
a.m., in WRCOG's office at 3390 University Avenue, Suite 200, Riverside.

  
11. ADJOURNMENT

3



Item 5.A

Technical Advisory Committee

Minutes
 

1.     CALL TO ORDER

The meeting of the WRCOG Technical Advisory Committee was called to order by Chair Rob Johnson at
9:30 a.m. on February 16, 2023, on the Zoom platform.
 
2.     PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Chair Johnson led members and guests in the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
3.     ROLL CALL
 

City of Banning - Doug Shulze
City of Beaumont - Elizabeth Gibbs*
City of Calimesa - Will Kolbow
City of Corona - Jacob Ellis*
City of Eastvale - Marc Donohue
City of Hemet - Noah Rau
City of Jurupa Valley - Rod Butler
City of Lake Elsinore - Jason Simpson
City of Moreno Valley - Mike Lee
City of Murrieta - Ivan Holler*
City of Perris -  Clara Miramontes
City of Riverside - Mike Futrell
City of San Jacinto - Rob Johnson (Chair)
City of Temecula - Betsy Lowrey
County of Riverside - Jeff Van Wagenen
EMWD - Jolene Walsh
March JPA - Rodney McCraine

*Arrived after Roll Call
 
4.     PUBLIC COMMENTS
 
Arnold San Miguel from SCAG extended an invitation to register for the next Toolbox Tuesday on
February 21, 2023, at 1:00 p.m.  Another webinar will take place on Wednesday, February 22, 2023, at
11:00 a.m. regarding curbside management.  SCAG Housing Working Group meetings will take place on
April 18, July 18, and October 17, 2023.  Civic engagement equity and environmental justice call for
application will provide $5M to support a wide range of eligible land use and transportation planning
activities. 
 
5.     CONSENT CALENDAR – (Banning / Jurupa Valley) 16 yes; 0 no; 0 abstention.  Items 5.A and 5.B

4



were approved.  The City of Riverside did not answer. 
 
A.     Summary Minutes from the January 19, 2023, Technical Advisory Committee Meeting
 
Action:

1. Approved the Summary Minutes from the January 19, 2023, Technical Advisory Committee
meeting.

 
B.     Approval of the Third Amendment to Professional Services Agreement with Yunex, LLC
 
Action:  

1. Recommended that the the Executive Committee approve the Third Amendment with Yunex, LLC.
 
6.     REPORTS / DISCUSSION
 
A.     I-REN Activities Update and Survey Participation Request
 
Benjamin Druyon, WRCOG Program Manager, presented on how WRCOG, CVAG, and SBCOG formed
a partnership in 2017 due to loss of funding sources with other energy efficiency programs; this
partnership is called Inland Regional Energy Network, or I-REN.   The I-REN team hired a consultant to
develop and submit a Business Plan to the California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC), which was
formally approved in November 2021 for $65M for program years 2022 through 2027. 

I-REN will focus on three sectors: 1) Public, 2) Codes and Standards, and 3) Workforce, Education and
Training.  Through these sectors, there will be some direct benefits to participating members which
include technical assistance, financial incentives, energy modeling services, benchmarking services,
Title 24 Code Compliance trainings, energy certification programs, and placement of I-REN Energy
Fellows.
 
WRCOG’s representatives are Crystal Ruiz from the City of San Jacinto (and serving as the Chair of I-
REN's Executive Committee), Chris Barajas from the City of Jurupa Valley, and Jacque Casillas from the
City of Corona.  CVAG’s representative is Oscar Ortiz (serving as Vice-Chair), and SBCOG’s
representatives are Art Bishop (serving as 2nd Vice-Chair) from the Town of Apple Valley, Curt Hagman
from the County of San Bernardino, and Deborah Robertson from the City of Rialto.  An agreement
between the three COGs was formed, as well as the governance and operations rules to determine
duties of the individual COGs as well as the I-REN Executive Committee. 
 
A program agreement was developed between I-REN and SoCal Gas, which will allow transfer of rate-
payer funds to WRCOG from SoCal Gas.  Highlights were presented on the development of the I-REN
Strategic Plan, a 5-year Organizational Plan.  This was designed to ensure effective and efficient use of
ratepayer funds, identify clear priorities and actions, and to ensure activities and engagement are aligned
across all members of I-REN.  
 
Committee members were reminded on the importance of their participation in a recent survey that was
distributed prior to the meeting and will be open until February 28, 2023.
 
Action:

1. Received and filed.

5



 
B.     Streetlight Program, Broadband, and Energy Resilience Activities Update
 
Daniel Soltero, WRCOG Program Manager, presented information on the ICARP Adaptation Planning
Grants Program (APGP), which helps public entities, tribes, and community-based organizations fill
planning needs, provides resources to identify climate resilience priorities, and supports development of
climate resilience projects across the state.  The Energy Resilience Plan was completed in December of
2022 in response to increasing power outages from wildfires, extreme heat, or public safety.  Staff are
preparing an application to the ICARP APGP to build upon the existing Energy Resilience Plan by
proposing to conduct energy resilience / microgrid feasibility studies at 10 different member agency-
owned sites or facilities across the subregion to identify the facilities that need energy resilience
upgrades the most. 
 
Various updates were provided on the State’s broadband initiatives and funding programs.  The Middle-
Mile Broadband Initiative advertised bids to construct the 10,000-mile fiber optic network in Q4 2022, and
bids were due at the end of December 2022.  The CPUC provided comments on the Loan Loss Reserve
Fund in November 2022, and a Proposed Decision on how funds will be implemented is anticipated in
Q1 2023.  The Local Agency Technical Assistance (LATA) Grants Program reimburses local agencies
and tribes for pre-construction activities in broadband projects, and has received 116 applications that
request more funding than the Program has to offer.  In Riverside County, four LATA grants have been
awarded to public agencies amounting to nearly $1.3M.  The Federal Funding Account / Last Mile
Infrastructure Deployment initiative released Priority Maps in January 2023 which will help facilitate
distribution of funds, and although a date has not yet been announced, the CPUC will provide additional
tools and application materials.
 
The Streetlight Program oversees an Agreement with Yunex for streetlight retrofit and maintenance
services, which expires on December 1, 2023.  Staff are preparing a Request for Proposals to solicit bids
for streetlight maintenance services, which is expected to be released in March or April 2023.  Member
agencies will be invited to participate in the bid review process.  Moreover, staff are preparing the 2022
annual streetlight maintenance reports for participating member agencies, which will provide details on
work orders and maps of pole knockdowns or other notable work orders.  
 
Action:

1. Received and filed.
 
C.     Western Riverside County Clean Cities Coalition Activities Update
 
Taylor York, WRCOG Program Manager, presented an update on Clean Cities Coalition activities that
occurred during the fourth quarter of 2022.  The Coalition focuses on outreach, resource sharing, and
partnership-building for the deployment of alternative-fuel vehicles and infrastructure.  The Coalition is
moving forward with its work under the Clean Cities Energy and Environmental Justice Initiative
(CCEEJI), which is funded through the Justice40 initiative – focusing 40% of federal investment in
disadvantaged communities.  Coalition staff previously participated in CCEEJ outreach training. 
WRCOG was awarded funding to support a Community Engagement Liaison Fellow for two years to
focus on EEJ-related mobility outreach and engagement in the WRCOG subregion.  Staff is currently
preparing the job description, and hopes to fill the position in April. 
 
Because WRCOG prepared a Community Transportation Needs Assessment for focused census tracts

6



in the subregion, WRCOG is now eligible to apply for up to $1M in funding to deploy solutions that
address the identified challenges.  Staff is working to identify interests and prepare an application for
funding.  Staff has also applied for funding to conduct a needs assessment in additional areas of the
subregion and are waiting for award results. 
 
Clean Cities staff hosted the first-quarter Coalition meeting on January 31, 2023, at the California Air
Resources Board (CARB) facility in Riverside.  The meeting began with a tour of the recently completed
facility.  Following the tour, Coalition staff hosted a facilitated listening session to better understand zero
emission vehicle (ZEV) technology challenges, as well as challenges related to State ZEV transition
mandates.  Discussion provided valuable feedback, which will inform the preparation of the three-year
strategic plan for Coalition work, which will be prepared over the next few months.  The next Coalition
meeting is scheduled for April 26, 2023. 
 
Between November 14 and 17, 2023, Coalition staff attended the annual Clean Cities Coordinator
Training workshop in Denver, CO.  The workshop provided training on managing successful Coalitions,
and opportunities to share expertise, success stories, and lessons learned.  Mr. York participated in a
panel and discussed the important role of Clean Cities Coalitions in addressing federal equity priorities
and examples of how Coalitions are taking on new EEJ-inspired activities. Mr. York also announced that
he was nominated and accepted a two-year term as the California Region Clean Cities Director.  
 
Action:

1. Received and filed
 
7.     REPORT FROM THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
 
Dr. Kurt Wilson, WRCOG Executive Director, reminded the Committee that all 109 WRCOG elected
officials are voting members at the General Assembly.  Community Service Award nominations are now
open and will close on Friday March 3, 2023.  General Assembly will be held at Pechanga Resort and
Casino on June 29, 2023, and will have Doris Kerns Goodwin, Presidential historian, as the guest
speaker.  The theme for this year is "Connecting with our past, partnering for our future."
 
Dr. Wilson also reported that the Classification and Compensation Study has been completed.  The
Agency's budget will be presented to the Executive Committee in May for their recommendations.  Dr.
Wilson also reminded Committee member to complete their Form 700s.
 
Lastly, Alyssa Cox is now president of Cal-ICMA and is looking for volunteers for Cal-ICMA committees. 
Interested parties are encouraged to reach out to her.
 
8.     ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDAS
 
There were no items for future agendas.
 
9.     GENERAL ANNOUNCEMENTS
 
There were no general announcements.
 
10.   NEXT MEETING

7



The next Technical Advisory Committee meeting is scheduled for Thursday, March 16, 2023, at 9:30
a.m., in WRCOG's office located at 3390 University Avenue, Suite 200, Riverside. 
 
11.   ADJOURNMENT

The meeting of the Technical Advisory Committee adjourned at 10:22 a.m.

8



Item 5.B

Technical Advisory Committee

Minutes
 

1.     CALL TO ORDER

The meeting of the WRCOG Technical Advisory Committee was called to order by Vice-Chair Rod Butler
at 9:30 a.m. on March 16, 2023, at 
 
2.     PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Chair Johnson led members and guests in the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
3.     ROLL CALL
 

City of Banning - Doug Shulze
City of Calimesa - Will Kolbow
City of Corona - Jacob Ellis
City of Hemet - Mark Prestwich
City of Jurupa Valley - Rod Butler (Vice-Chair)
City of Menifee - Rochelle Clayton*
City of Moreno Valley - Michael Lloyd
City of Perris -  Clara Miramontes
City of Temecula - Betsy Lowrey
WMWD - Craig Miller
March JPA - Grace Martin

*Arrived after Roll Call
 
4.     PUBLIC COMMENTS
 
There were no public comments.
 
5.     CONSENT CALENDAR – Due to a lack of quorum, approval of item 5.A was moved to the next
meeting.
 
A.     Summary Minutes from the February 16, 2023, Technical Advisory Committee Meeting
 
Action:

1. Approved the Summary Minutes from the February 16, 2023, Technical Advisory Committee
meeting.

 
B.     Finance Department Activities Update
 
Action:  

9



1. Received and filed.
 
6.     REPORTS / DISCUSSION
 
A.     Environmental Department Activities Update - Regional Food Rescue and Technical
Assistance RFP
 
Casey Dailey, WRCOG Director of Energy & Environmental Programs, gave a presentation regarding
food rescue programs pursuant to SB 1383 to reduce organic waste disposal.  Since 2017, staff has
been researching programs to support WRCOG member cities with SB 1383 compliance.  In January
2023, the WRCOG Solid Waste Committee reviewed proposals to manage and implement this type of
program, and selected consultant MSW based on their subregional experience working with member
jurisdictions, and a unified and cohesive marketing plan.  The Scope of the plan includes inspections of
Food Recovery Organizations (FROs) and Tier 1 and Tier 2 Edible Food Generators (EFGs).  MSW will
also develop a regional food rescue program to connect EFGs and FROs via an application that will
allow EFGs to notify FROs when they have available food, and FROs in turn can schedule a pickup.  The
online application will be accessible to all participating member jurisdictions and associated FROs and
EFGs in the subregion.  Program costs are eligible under the CalRecycle SB 1383 Local Assistance
Grant Program. 
 
Vice-Chair Rod Butler asked about the timeline for the program.
 
Mr. Dailey says ideally commitments from member jurisdictions should be determined at the beginning of
Fiscal Year 2023/2024.  This is a three-year term program.  There is no firm deadline, but MSW would
like to start as soon as possible. 
 
Committee member Michael Lloyd asked if the intent is to initiate the program starting on July 1, 2023,
and, if there are differing levels of commitments, would that change the cost structure?
 
Mr. Dailey said that if they are able to get commitments within the next month or so, then it would be
feasible to begin on July 1.  There would be a minimum participation requirement of four or five cities in
order for the program to be effective and maintain the same price per city. 
 
Committee member Betsey Lowrey asked if there are any commitments from any of the cities. 
 
Mr. Dailey responded that there has been a lot of interest expressed, and offered to have a follow-up
conversation to talk specifics with each city. 
 
Committee member Clara Miramontes asked if the cost per city would only cover the project to rollout the
program. 
 
Mr. Dailey explained that it is a three-year timeline - year one would be slightly higher than years two and
three because there would be more expenses to implement the program. 
 
Action:

1. Received and filed.
 
B.     Update on REAP 1.0 and 2.0 Funding Opportunities

10



 
Suzanne Peterson, WRCOG Analyst III, reported that various programs were implemented with REAP
1.0 funds allocated from SCAG.  The Affordable Housing Pipeline established under REAP 1.0 is an
inventory of affordable housing projects at various stages and can be used as a resource tool to help
member agencies be more competitive when applying for grants. 
 
WRCOG is set to receive $1.6M in REAP 2.0 funding.  Proposed projects include continued direct local
assistance and pro-housing designation applications.  
 
Staff will continue to work on REAP 1.0 projects, submit the REAP 2.0 application once it becomes
available, and return with an update when the MOU for REAP 2.0 is ready to be executed.
 
Committee member Will Kolbow asked about the requirements for the pro-housing designation. 
 
Ms. Peterson indicated that the California Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD)
wants to see cities going above and beyond the basic requirements. 
 
Vice-Chair Butler asked if simply having an approved housing element alone would qualify. 
 
Ms. Peterson responded that no it would not, and in order to be competitive, cities would have to go the
extra mile to be able to receive funding. 
 
Committee member Lowrey asked if there are any cities that are currently designated. 
 
Ms. Peterson indicated that the only designated city in the Inland Empire is Fontana, which gives hope
for other cities. The City of Riverside is close, and will likely receive the designation upon review by
HCD. 
 
Committee member Doug Schulze stated that the City of Banning has had approximately 10,000 housing
units on hold by the California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CFW) for close to three years, trying to
get through the permit process.  CFW has required developers to mitigate over 1,000 acres of land. 
Having a state agency that is counterproductive to the Governor's policy direction, costing millions of
dollars in mitigation, it seems that affordable housing is not an option.  Developers were initially looking
at price points around $300k, but with the CFW requirements and mitigation, pricing is now above
$400k.  Projects like this are great, but it is hard to commit when affordable housing cannot be
developed.  The City of Banning wrote a letter to the Governor's office and received a letter back stating
that they received it, but it will take more than just the City of Banning to make a change. 
 
Committee member Craig Miller asked what the penalty is when cities do not meet the housing
requirements.
 
Vice-Chair Butler responded that the State can sue cities, as with Huntington Beach.  There is also a
process of HCD review, which can be costly and time-consuming. 
 
Action:

1. Received and filed.
 

11



C.     WRCOG Financial Sustainability Modeling and Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Budget Introduction
 
Jessica Oliphant and Andy Belknap from Baker Tilly, gave a presentation on a model of WRCOG's
financial sustainability.  Mr. Belknap said that it is difficult to make multi-year financial projections for
WRCOG because of the variability of certain program revenues, and expressed a concern with inflation-
based fee erosion.  Many WRCOG fees are not indexed for inflation, so revenue tends to erode with
inflation.

Baker Tilly modeled six funds: the General Fund, TUMF, LTF, Clean Cities Fund, Used Oil Fund, and the
REN Fund for Fiscal Year (FY) 2022/2023.  The General Fund is composed of disparate elements which
are difficult to project. Ms. Oliphant was conservative with revenue projections, especially with grants
because there is uncertainty of whether WRCOG will receive them.

There are two models: one assuming no recession in the next 10 years, and the other with a recession
occurring in 2027.  The baseline forecast for the General Fund expenses would outpace revenues by
2026, which would require budgeting strategies to break even.  The model indicated consistent growth
for the TUMF and LTF Fund over the next 10 years and showed potential deficiencies for the General
Fund and Used Oil Program within the 10-year period modeled.

Overall, WRCOG is financially healthy and will remain so in the short term.  Mr. Belknap indicated that
the forecasts were perhaps too conservative because it did not take into account the grant funding.  Staff
will continue to work with Baker Tilly to refine the model and apply it to the FY 2023/2024 budget, and
will help develop strategies to address budget shortfalls identified by the models.
 
Committee member Grace Martin asked how Baker Tilly came up with the numbers for the projections. 
 
Ms. Oliphant responded that Baker Tilly used FY 2022/2023 as the basis for the initial projections, so the
model starts with the same service level that is currently operating at WRCOG.
 
Committee member Martin asked if WRCOG has plans to identify and modify expenditures.
 
Ms. Oliphant indicated that it is, and she is working to identify ways to maintain fiscal sustainability and
building resiliency against future recessions as part of the project. 
 
Mr. Belknap indicated that one of the things that is being refined is the projection of grant revenue, which
is difficult to do given the nature of grant revenues. 
 
Dr. Kurt Wilson, WRCOG Executive Director, indicated that COVID did not really affect WRCOG as it did
the cities in terms of budget.  The changes in the programs are what drive the changes in the budget. 
With respect to the grant revenues versus growing expenditures, grant revenues are not all static
programs.  Many of the programs end and/or are replaced by other programs, so while WRCOG does
not anticipate growth, staff does anticipate changing over of many of the grant programs, which will offset
the growing expenditures. 
 
Dr. Wilson also noted that the nature of WRCOG's revenues is not tax-based, so the forecasting timeline
and process is slightly different than most public agencies, and provided a timeline for the approval of the
final budget, which will be voted on in the General Assembly.  There is a series of things that will happen
along the way, so if there are any particular items of concern, members can reach out to staff as they

12



work through the process.  Staff are working to finalize the budget processed in the May Executive
Committee meeting. 
 
Andrew Ruiz, WRCOG Chief Financial Officer, added that there were some budget changes for FY
2023/2024. Specifically, 96% of TUMF revenues will no longer be called "revenues" due to GASB 84, as
they are seen as a fiduciary activity.  Only 4% of revenues from TUMF administrative fees will be seen
as revenue.
 
The Administration Department will be broken out into administrative services, fiscal, and executive,
where the three were previously lumped together. 
 
Finally, a new accounting software will be budgeted for in the next fiscal year to bring WRCOG up to
date on the latest automated processes. 
 
Committee member Doug Schulze indicated that the 4% cost for TUMF seems low. 
 
Dr. Wilson responded that Measure A had a link to the TUMF Program, but the initiating documents for
TUMF spell out the 4%.  Because the development within all of the member agencies has continued to
be strong, WRCOG has been able to cover administrative expenses with that 4%. 
 
Action:

1. Received and filed
 
D.     2023 General Assembly Activities Update
 
Julian Brambila, WRCOG Analyst I, reported that registration this year will be completed entirely online
via WRCOG's website.  This will create a faster check-in process on the day of the event, and it will be
much easier to make changes.
 
Each member agency is entitled to 10 complimentary tickets, two of which will have access to the VIP
reception. Executive Committee members will also receive a complimentary hotel room for the night of
Thursday, June 29, 2023, only if they plan to attend the Friday's Executive Committee meeting. 
 
A detailed email will be sent out to all TAC and Executive Committee members with more information. 
Members will follow the link to create an account using their unique registration code, and fill out all
attendee information. Attendee information will be printed on the badges, so members should make sure
that the spelling is correct.  A valid cell phone number should be provided, which will be used to look up
the registration on the day of the event.  Agencies should assign one staff member to register all
attendees, who will serve as a point of contact and keep track of the registrations for their agency. 
 
When going through the registration, be sure to specify which two individuals will have the VIP pass.
 
Action:

1. Received and filed.
 
7.     REPORT FROM THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
 

13



Dr. Kurt Wilson was not present to provide an update. 
 
8.     ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDAS
 
There were no items for future agendas.
 
9.     GENERAL ANNOUNCEMENTS
 
Committee member Craig Miller provided an update on the Solve the Water Crisis effort.  Not a lot of
agencies in northern California are supporting this effort.  70 business entities, mostly water agencies,
have taken a support position.  The California Municipal Utilities Association is sponsoring legislation (SB
366) to develop another 15M acre-feet of water supply to distribute across the state.  This is a planning
legislation to force the State to have a long-term plan.  Mr. Miller is happy to talk with members offline
about supporting that activity.  
 
10.   NEXT MEETING

The next Technical Advisory Committee meeting is scheduled for Thursday, April 20, 2023, at 9:30 a.m.,
in WRCOG's office located at 3390 University Avenue, Suite 200, Riverside. 
 
11.   ADJOURNMENT

The meeting of the Technical Advisory Committee adjourned at 10:46 a.m.

14



Item 5.C

Western Riverside Council of Governments
Technical Advisory Committee

Staff Report

Subject: 2022 Fee Comparison Analysis Update - Final Report
Contact: Christopher Tzeng, Program Manager, ctzeng@wrcog.us, (951) 405-6711
Date: April 20, 2023

 

 
 
 
Requested Action(s): 

1. Receive and file. 

Purpose: 
The purpose of this item is to provide the final report of the 2022 Fee Comparison Analysis Update. 

WRCOG 2022-2027 Strategic Plan Goal: 
Goal #5 - Develop projects and programs that improve infrastructure and sustainable development in our
subregion.

Background: 
In 2016 WRCOG conducted a study to analyze fees / exactions required and collected by jurisdictions /
agencies in and immediately adjacent to the WRCOG subregion.  The study was presented to various
WRCOG committees and subsequent presentations were completed to various City Councils in the
subregion.  Based on the feedback provided and the requests made for data and presentations,
WRCOG indicated that the study would be updated on a consistent basis to enable jurisdictions the
value of understanding the impact of fees on development and the regional economy.  An updated
analysis utilizing 2018 data was completed at the beginning of 2019.  An update to the analysis utilizing
data available in 2022 commenced in May 2022.  Updates of the analysis were provided to the WRCOG
Administration & Finance, Planning Directors, Public Works, and Technical Advisory Committees in late
2022.  The final report will be provided to the WRCOG committees at their April / May 2023 meetings.  
 
The information analyzed and presented in the final report is solely for information purposes.  WRCOG is
not proposing any fee updates as part of the Fee Comparison Analysis. 
 
Overview
 
The update to the Fee Comparison Analysis follows the same methodology as in 2016 and 2018, and
updates the fee structures of the various fees.  The Analysis provides WRCOG jurisdictions with
comprehensive fee comparisons and also discusses the effect of other development costs, such as the
cost of land and interest rates, within the overall development framework.  Another key element of this
study is an analysis documenting the economic benefits of transportation investment.  Summary and
comparison data for WRCOG member agencies is provided in the final report in Attachment 1.  

15

mailto:ctzeng@wrcog.us


 
Fee Comparison Methodology
 
In addition to the jurisdictions within the WRCOG subregion, the study analyzed sample jurisdictions
within the Coachella Valley, San Bernardino County, and the northern portion of San Diego County.  The
inclusion of additional neighboring / peer communities allows for consideration of relative fee levels
between the WRCOG subregion and jurisdictions in surrounding areas that may compete for new
development. 
 
Land Uses and Development Prototypes
 
Fee comparisons have been conducted for five key land use categories, “development prototypes,”
including single-family residential, multi-family residential, office, retail, and industrial developments. 
Since every development project is different, and because fee structures are often complex and derived
based on different development characteristics, it is helpful to have “development prototypes” for each of
the land uses studied.  The use of consistent development prototypes increases the extent to which the
fee comparison is an “apples-to-apples” comparison. 
 
Development prototypical projects that were analyzed are as follows: 
 

Single-family residential development:  50-unit residential subdivision; 2,700 square foot homes,
and 7,200 square foot lots 
Multi-family residential development:  200-unit market-rate, 260,000 gross square foot apartment
buildings
Retail development:  10,000-gross square foot retail buildings
Office development:  20,000-gross square foot, Class A or Class B office buildings
Industrial development:  265,000 gross square foot high-cube industrial buildings

 
Fee Categories
 
The primary focus of the analysis is on the array of fees charged on new development to pay for a range
of infrastructure / capital facilities.  The major categories of fees include 1) school development impact
fees, 2) water / sewer connection / capacity fees, 3) city capital facilities fees, 4) regional transportation
fees (TUMF in Western Riverside County), and 5) other capital facilities / infrastructure / mitigation fees
charged by other regional / subregional agencies.  These fees typically represent 80% to 90% of the
overall development fees on new development.  Additional processing, permitting, and entitlement fees
are not included in this analysis.  The analysis focused on development impact fees, as these fees are
much larger than planning / processing fees for comparison purposes. 
 
Service Providers and Development Prototypes
 
The system of infrastructure and capital facilities fees in most California jurisdictions is complicated by
multiple service providers and, often, differential fees in different parts of individual jurisdictions.  Multiple
entities charge infrastructure / capital facilities fees – e.g., city, water districts, school districts, and
regional agencies.  In addition, individual jurisdictions are often served by different service providers
(e.g., more than one water district or school district) with different subareas within a jurisdiction,
sometimes paying different fees for water facilities and school facilities.  Also, some city fees, such as
storm drain fees, are sometimes differentiated by jurisdictional subareas.  To maintain consistency, the

16



service providers utilized in the previous analyses are utilized in this analysis.  Individual service
providers were selected where multiple service providers were present, and an individual subarea was
selected where different fees were charged by subarea. 

Prior Action(s): 
April 13, 2023:  The Public Works Committee received and filed. 
 
April 13, 2023:  The Planning Directors Committee received and filed. 
 
April 12, 2023:  The Administration & Finance Committee received and filed. 
 
December 14, 2022:  The Administration & Finance Committee received and filed. 
 
November 17, 2022:  The Technical Advisory Committee received and filed. 
 
October 13, 2022:  The Public Works Committee received and filed. 
 
October 13, 2022:  The Planning Directors Committee received and filed. 

Fiscal Impact: 
This item is for informational purposes only; therefore, there is no fiscal impact.  Transportation and
Planning Department activities are included in the Agency's adopted Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Budget
under the Transportation Department.  This analysis is covered under TUMF (Fund 110) to provide
additional information on development fees charged to support the TUMF Nexus Study. 

Attachment(s):
Attachment 1 - WRCOG Fee Comparison Study Final Report

17

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1875537/WRCOG_Fee_Comparison_Study_Final_Report.pdf


 

Report 

2022-23 Analysis and  
Regional Comparison of 
Development Impact Fees in 
Western Riverside County 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared for: 
Western Riverside Council of Governments (WRCOG) 
 
 
 
Prepared by: 
Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 
 
 
 
EPS #214063 
 
 
January 9, 2023 

18



Table of Contents 

1. Introduction and Findings ............................................................................... 1 

Summary of Findings .......................................................................................... 2 
Organization of Report ........................................................................................ 7 

2. Development Impact Fee Review and Comparison ............................................. 8 

Study Definition ................................................................................................. 8 
Methodology ..................................................................................................... 9 
Findings from WRCOG Member Jurisdiction Fee Review .......................................... 17 
Findings from Fee Comparison with Non-WRCOG Jurisdictions ................................ 21 

3. Development Impact Fees and Development Costs .......................................... 27 

Economics of Development ................................................................................ 27 
Methodology ................................................................................................... 28 
Results ........................................................................................................... 29 

4. Conclusions ................................................................................................. 32 

 

Appendices 

 APPENDIX A Development Prototypes 

APPENDIX B Location and Service Provider Assumptions 

 APPENDIX C Development Impact Fee Comparison by WRCOG Jurisdiction 

 

19



 

List of Tables 

Table 1 Average Total Fee Amounts & Changes since 2018-19 Study by Land Use Type ... 2 

Table 2 Development Impact Fees as % of Total Developments Cost/Returns* ............... 7 

Table 3 Jurisdictions Included in Fee Study ............................................................. 10 

Table 4 TUMF as a Proportion of Total Fees ............................................................. 17 

Table 5 Average Development Impact Fee Costs by Category in WRCOG Region ........... 18 

Table 6 Unincorporated Jurisdictions/March JPA and Total Jurisdictions Comparisons ..... 19 

Table 7 Single Family 2018-2022 Fee Comparison .................................................... 20 

Table 8 Multifamily 2018-2022 Fee Comparison ....................................................... 20 

Table 9 Retail 2018-2022 Fee Comparison .............................................................. 20 

Table 10 Office 2018-2022 Fee Comparison .............................................................. 20 

Table 11 Industrial 2018-2022 Fee Comparison ......................................................... 21 

Table 12 Average Development Cost and Return Estimates by Development Prototype .... 30 

Table 13 Proportional Development Costs and Returns by Development Prototype .......... 31 

 

20



 

List of Figures 

Figure 1 Average WRCOG Residential Development Impact Fees by Fee Category ............ 3 

Figure 2 Average WRCOG Nonresidential Development Impact Fees ............................... 4 

Figure 3 Average Residential Development Impact Fees in Neighboring Jurisdictions ........ 5 

Figure 4 Average Nonresidential Development Impact Fees in Neighboring Jurisdictions .... 6 

Figure 5 Average Development Impact Fee Costs in WRCOG Jurisdictions ..................... 19 

Figure 6 Average Single-Family Development Impact Fee Costs and Proportions in 
Neighboring Jurisdictions .......................................................................................... 22 

Figure 7 Average Multifamily Development Impact Fee Costs and Proportions in 
Neighboring Jurisdictions .......................................................................................... 23 

Figure 8 Average Retail Development Impact Fee Costs and Proportions in Neighboring 
Jurisdictions ............................................................................................................ 24 

Figure 9 Average Office Development Impact Fee Costs and Proportions in Neighboring 
Jurisdictions ............................................................................................................ 25 

Figure 10 Average Industrial Development Impact Fee Costs and Proportions in 
Neighboring Jurisdictions .......................................................................................... 26 

 

  

21



 Economic & Planning Systems 

 1 

1. Introduction and Findings 

The Western Riverside Council of Governments (WRCOG) commissioned this Report to provide 
increased regional understanding of development impact fees on new development in Western 
Riverside County. More specifically, the purpose of this report is to: (1) indicate the types and 
relative scale of the development impact fees placed on different land uses within WRCOG 
member jurisdictions, and (2) indicate the level of fees relative to overall development costs in 
Western Riverside County. The report is also intended to provide helpful background information 
on the impact of the regional Transportation Uniform Mitigation Fee (TUMF) by placing the TUMF 
in the context of the broader development impact fee composition, overall development costs, 
and other regional dynamics. 

This report (the 2022-23 Study) represents an update to the 2018-19 Study, which provided 
similar information on development impact fees and development costs. Information in this 
report is primarily based fee schedules and development cost estimates from 2022, while the 
prior study was primarily on schedules and estimates from 2018.  

This report recognizes that there are substantive and ongoing debates about the appropriate 
levels of development impact fees in regions throughout California and elsewhere in the United 
States. On the one hand, development impact fees provide revenue to support the construction 
of critical infrastructure and capital facilities (or in-kind capital facility development) that can 
generate development value, economic development, and quality of life benefits. On the other 
hand, these fees act as an additional development cost that can influence development feasibility 
and potentially impact the pace of new development. Each fee-adopting jurisdiction must 
weigh the costs and benefits of potential new or increased fee levels in the context of 
their goals, capital improvement needs, and economic and development dynamics. 

This report considers development impact fees defined as one-time fees collected for the 
purposes of funding infrastructure and capital facilities.1 Reflecting the broad range of land use 
and development projects in Western Riverside County, prototype development projects for 
single-family, multifamily, retail, Class A/B office, and large industrial use types were all selected 
to support comparisons of fees in different jurisdictions.  

A summary of key findings is provided below, followed by a description of the organization of this 
report. 

  

 
 

 

1 As used in this report and discussed further below, the phrase “development impact fee” includes all fees adopted 
pursuant to the Mitigation Fee Act and other monetary exactions due at the time of development. The term “fee,” 
as used in this report, means “development impact fee.” 

22



 Economic & Planning Systems 

 2 

Summary of  F ind ings 

FINDING #1: New development in Western Riverside County pay a wide range of 
one-time infrastructure/capital facilities associated fees with different public 
agencies. 

New development in Western Riverside County is required to pay development impact fees to 
help fund: 

• Water and Sewer Facilities 

• School Facilities 

• Regional Transportation Infrastructure 

• Additional Local Infrastructure/Capital Facilities (local transportation, parks and recreation, 
public facility, community/civic facilities, and storm drain infrastructure). 

• Subregional/Area Fees (habitat mitigation fees, Road and Bridge Benefit Assessment 
Districts, and other area-specific infrastructure/capital facilities fees). 

These fees are set/administered by a combination of water districts, school districts, individual 
cities, the County, the Western Riverside Council of Governments, the Western Riverside County 
Resource Conservation Authority, and other special districts.  

• Fees for each land use type have increased on average by between 6.9 and 24.5 
percent since the prior 2018-19 Study. As shown in Table 1, average fee totals for 
residential uses now range from $32,099 for multifamily units to $57,078 for single-
family units, and average fee totals for nonresidential uses now range from $6.48 per 
square foot for industrial projects to $25.27 per square foot for retail projects. 

Table 1 Average Total Fee Amounts & Changes since 2018-19 Study by Land Use Type 

 

 

Single Family 
Total Fees per Unit $57,078 $47,470 20.2%

Multifamily
Total Fees per Unit $32,099 $29,706 8.1%

Retail
Total Fees per SF $25.27 $23.63 6.9%

Office
Total Fees per SF $17.04 $14.06 21.2%

Industrial
Total Fees per SF $6.48 $5.20 24.5%

Land Use 2022-23 2018-19 % Change

23



 Economic & Planning Systems 

 3 

FINDING #2: TUMF represents a modest proportion of total residential 
development impact fees in Western Riverside County and a more variable 
proportion of nonresidential development impact fees. 

• For residential developments, TUMF represents close to 20 percent of total 
development impact fees for both single-family and multifamily development. Other 
fee categories are shown in Figure 1 below. Water and Sewer Fees together represent the 
greatest proportion of residential development impact fees. The smallest proportion is 
associated with Other Area/Regional Fees. 

 

Figure 1 Average WRCOG Residential Development Impact Fees by Fee Category 

 

• Regional Transportation Fees (TUMF) as a proportion of total development impact 
fees show more variation for nonresidential land uses. Retail and office fees are 
dominated by Water and Sewer Fees. For industrial developments, Water and Sewer Fees are 
substantially lower and Other City Fees are the greatest proportion of total fees (Figure 2). 

24



 Economic & Planning Systems 

 4 

Figure 2 Average WRCOG Nonresidential Development Impact Fees 

 

FINDING #3: Average development impact fees in WRCOG member jurisdictions 
are generally similar to those in San Bernardino County, though higher than those 
in Coachella Valley. 

• Average residential development impact fees for WRCOG jurisdictions are equal to 
or somewhat higher than the average of selected San Bernardino County cities and 
the average of selected Coachella Valley cities. As seen in Figure 3 below, when 
compared with the average of selected San Bernardino County cities (Fontana, Yucaipa, San 
Bernardino, Ontario, Chino, and Rialto) and Coachella Valley cities (Indio, Palm Desert, and 
Palm Springs), the WRCOG average is slightly higher than the San Bernadino County fees for 
single-family development and the same for multifamily development.  Coachella Valley has 
substantially lower fees on both single-family and multifamily development.   

25



 Economic & Planning Systems 

 5 

Figure 3 Average Residential Development Impact Fees in Neighboring Jurisdictions 

 

• Average nonresidential development impact fees for WRCOG jurisdictions are either 
higher than or similar to the average of selected San Bernardino County cities for 
the different land use categories.  The average of selected Coachella Valley cities is 
lower for all land use categories. As seen in Figure 4 below, comparing average 
nonresidential development impact fees in WRCOG to selected San Bernardino County cities 
shows that, on average, WRCOG fees are substantially higher for retail, somewhat higher for 
office development, and the same for industrial development. The selected Coachella Valley 
cities have the lowest average fees in all these nonresidential land uses. 

 

26



 Economic & Planning Systems 

 6 

Figure 4 Average Nonresidential Development Impact Fees in Neighboring Jurisdictions 

 

FINDING #4: Average development impact fees among WRCOG member 
jurisdictions represent between 3.9 percent and 8.9 percent of total development 
costs/returns, with TUMF as a lower fraction of these proportions. 

• Total development impact fees represent between 3.9 percent and 8.9 percent of 
total development costs/returns for the prototype feasible projects. As shown in 
Table 2 below, development impact fees represent 8.9 percent of total development 
costs/returns for the prototype single-family and 7.9 percent of total costs/returns for 
multifamily developments. As is common, nonresidential development impact fees are lower 
as a percent of total development cost/return at 3.9 percent for industrial development and 
4.7 percent for office development. For retail development, the fee level is 6.8 percent of 
total costs/returns, between that of residential uses and other nonresidential uses. 

• TUMF represents between 0.7 percent and 1.6 percent of total development 
costs/returns for the prototype feasible projects. While changes in the TUMF can 
add or subtract from total development costs, it would take a substantial change to 
increase/decrease overall development costs/returns by more than 1 percent. As a 
proportion of overall development costs, TUMF represents 1.6 percent for both single-family 
and multifamily. For nonresidential uses, TUMF represents 0.7 percent of total development 
costs for office development, 1.0 percent for industrial development, and 1.4 percent for 
retail development. TUMF represents between 14.4 percent and 21.4 percent of total 
development impact fees with the highest ratios for retail and industrial development and 
lowest for office development, as seen previously in Figure 2.  

 

27



 Economic & Planning Systems 

 7 

Table 2 Development Impact Fees as % of Total Developments Cost/Returns* 

 
*Totals may not sum due to rounding. 

Organizat ion of  Report  

After this initial chapter, this report is divided into three other chapters and several appendices. 
Chapter 2 describes the definitions, methodology, and results of the fee review and comparison 
for WRCOG and non-WRCOG jurisdictions. Chapter 3 describes the TUMF and other 
development impact fees as components of overall estimated development costs and returns for 
each development prototypes evaluated. Finally, Chapter 4 provides a brief conclusion on the 
purposes and goals of this and other development impact fee comparison studies.  

The appendices provide a substantial amount of additional supporting detail and information, 
including: 

• APPENDIX A provides detailed information on the Development Prototypes. 

• APPENDIX B provides information on assumptions around location and corresponding service 
provider (e.g., water district, school district) assignments within each jurisdiction. 

• APPENDIX C provides fee comparison summaries and detailed fee estimation information for 
each WRCOG jurisdiction/area and each land use category. 

  

Development Impact Fees Single Family Multifamily Industrial Retail Office

TUMF 1.6% 1.6% 1.0% 1.4% 0.7%
Other Development Impact Fees 7.4% 6.2% 3.0% 5.3% 4.0%
Total Development Fees 8.9% 7.9% 3.9% 6.8% 4.7%

28



 Economic & Planning Systems 

 8 

2. Development Impact Fee Review and 
Comparison 

To accomplish the study purpose outlined in Chapter 1, development impact fees were 
estimated for each WRCOG jurisdictions as well as for selected neighboring jurisdictions in 
Coachella Valley and San Bernardino County. This required detailed research into fee schedules 
and calculation methodologies for each of these jurisdictions and associated service providers. 

All the development impact fee estimates shown are based on fee schedules and information 
available at the time the research was conducted, primarily during the summer of 2022. EPS 
attempted to use the most current and up-to-date fee information to enhance comparability and 
create a representation of fee levels at a single moment in time. However, limited online 
availability of complete fee information in some jurisdictions and annual fee program update 
schedules (typically in July) in several jurisdictions added an additional challenge in pinpointing 
fees at a given moment in time. While every effort was made to ensure that fees are updated 
and comparable, the final estimates should be considered as planning-level approximations. The 
actual fees due for a particular project will depend on the specifications of the individual project 
and the fee schedule at the time of project application. 

The first section below provides some key definitions. The subsequent section provides a detailed 
description of the fee research methodology. The final section provides findings concerning 
development impacts fees in WRCOG member jurisdictions and other jurisdictions studied. In 
general, the definitions and approach in this study are consistent with those in the 2018-19 
Study to maintain consistency. In some situations, as noted below, refinements were necessary; 
for example, some water districts provided new information on the water meter assumptions to 
be used in fee calculations. 

Study Def init ion 

Development impact fees have become an increasingly used mechanism among California 
jurisdictions to require new development to fund the demands it places on local and regional 
infrastructure and capital facilities. As already noted, this report defines development impact fees 
as one-time fees collected for the purposes of funding infrastructure and capital facilities. This 
includes fees for the funding of a broad range of capital improvements, including water, sewer, 
storm drain, transportation, parks and recreation, public safety, and numerous other types of 
civic/community facilities. The majority of these fees are adopted under or consistent with the 
Mitigation Fee Act, though the analysis also includes other one-time capital facilities fees, such as 
parkland in-lieu fees under the Quimby Act and one-time charges through Community Facilities 
Districts or Benefit Assessment Districts among others. 

This report does not include estimates of other types of fees charged by cities including 
permitting, planning, and processing fees that are charged on new development, and that do not 
fund capital facilities/infrastructure. These fees are typically associated with some sort of review 

29



 Economic & Planning Systems 

 9 

or administrative service provided by a jurisdiction and are typically more modest charges 
relative to development impact fees (most studies find them to be in the 5 to 15 percent range 
of development impact fees, between 1 and 2 percent of total development costs). 

Some typical fee types that fall in this category of permitting, planning, and processing fees and 
that are standard across most development projects include: 

• Building Permit Fee – This fee is charged in a various of ways. Jurisdictions charge 
based on development size, development valuation, or flat fee.  

• Plan Check Fee – This fee is charged in a various of ways. Jurisdictions charge based on 
development size, development valuation, flat fee, percentage of the Building Permit Fee, 
or an hourly charge.  

• California Building Standards Commission Fee – This fee is calculated by charging 
$1 per $25,000 of a development’s valuation multiplied by the development’s area.  

• Strong Motion Instrumentation Program Fee – This fee is calculated by charging $13 
per $100,000 of a development’s valuation multiplied by the development’s area.  

• Technology Surcharge – This fee is charged differently by jurisdiction. Some 
jurisdictions charge based on the development’s valuation and area, while other some 
jurisdictions choose to charge this as a percentage of the Building Permit Fee.  

Many other fee types exist that are project-dependent and may be related to: various 
inspections, tentative tract/parcel maps, conditional use permits, plan amendments, 
annexations, and a wide variety of minor permits. These are typically charged through some 
combination of flat fee, deposit, and/or actual hourly costs incurred by planning or building 
department staffs. 

Methodology 

In order to provide a fee comparison that was as close as possible to an “apples-to-apples” 
comparison, WRCGOG staff and EPS identified the following parameters to guide the study: 

• Jurisdictions to be studied. 
• Land uses to be evaluated and associated development prototypes. 
• Selection of service providers where there are multiple service providers in same 

jurisdiction. 
• Categorization of the various types of development impact fees 

This section describes these study parameters as well as the process of review with the 
jurisdictions/relevant service providers.  

Selection of Jurisdictions for Prototype Analysis 

Jurisdictions selected for this analysis include all eighteen (18) WRCOG member cities. WRCOG 
staff and the EPS also identified three additional unincorporated areas to study, the March JPA, 
Temescal Valley, and Winchester, all locations where substantial growth is occurring and/or 
planned within the WRCOG region. 

30



 Economic & Planning Systems 

 10 

A separate prototype was tested for each city within the WRCOG, as well as three unincorporated 
areas. Wherever possible, this analysis sought to use the same jurisdictional assumptions as in 
the 2018-19 Study. Where cities or unincorporated areas are served by multiple school districts, 
utility districts, and other subdistricts or assessment zones, assumptions were made around 
subarea locations, as discussed later in this Chapter. 

Table 3 shows the cities/communities evaluated, including the twenty-one (21) WRCOG 
cities/communities and the nine (9) non-WRCOG comparison communities. 

Table 3 Jurisdictions Included in Fee Study 

 

Land Uses and Development Prototypes 

Land Uses 

Development impact fees are levied on a variety of residential and nonresidential land uses with 
variations for different uses and certain product types often built into the fee programs.  

For the purposes of this study, five (5) common land use types that reflect typical development 
projects and are consistent with prior studies were selected: single-family residential, multifamily 
residential, retail, office, and “high-cube” industrial2  

Development Prototype Selections 

Within each of the five (5) general land use types selected, this study identifies a detailed 
development prototype meant to represent a typical development that may likely occur 
anywhere within the WRCOG region. Based on the characteristics of the protype, the 
development impact fees can be calculated for each jurisdiction based on applicable fee levels. 

 
 

 

2 "High Cube" is defined as warehouses/distribution centers with a minimum gross floor area of 200,000 sq. ft., 
minimum ceiling height of 24 feet, and minimum dock-high door loading ratio of 1 door per 10,000 sq. ft. 

Coachella Valley San Bernardino 
County

Banning Murrieta Indio Fontana
Beaumont Norco Palm Desert Yucaipa
Calimesa Perris Palm Springs San Bernardino

Canyon Lake Riverside Ontario
Corona San Jacinto Chino

Eastvale Temecula Rialto
Hemet Wildomar

Jurupa Valley Temescal Valley
Lake Elsinore Winchester

Menifee March JPA
Moreno Valley

WRCOG Jurisdiction

31



 Economic & Planning Systems 

 11 

Choosing a representative prototype that is the same across all jurisdictions ensures that the fee 
comparison will be “apples-to-apples”. 

As a starting point, this study utilized the development prototypes used in the 2018-19 Study for 
each of the five land uses. EPS then reviewed recent data on new single-family, multifamily, 
office, retail, and industrial developments throughout WRCOG jurisdictions to confirm whether 
the prototypes still match common characteristics.  

Information on multifamily, retail, office, and industrial developments built between 2017 and 
2022 was reviewed as was information on single-family developments between 2019 and 2022. 
Single-family developments were reviewed over a shorter timeframe based on the much larger 
size of the dataset available (the number of homes built has been much greater relative to the 
number of other projects). From this data, EPS identified the median building/home size in 
square feet (and lot size for single-family developments) for each of the land use types and 
compared these against the prior prototypes. 

Based on this analysis, EPS confirmed that all prototypes were still representative of typical 
projects in the WRCOG region and could be used in this study update. That said, the number of 
very large industrial projects has increased in recent years, along with the median project size. 
WRCOG Staff and EPS considered doubling the size of the industrial prototype to reflect this 
trend and focus specifically on high-cube development, however, it was ultimately decided that 
utilizing the same prototype as prior studies would be more valuable in providing a better 
comparison to fee levels in the 2018-19 Study. Furthermore, it was determined that the selected 
industrial prototype still reflects a common, high-cube industrial development, and the per 
square foot fee estimates can still be viewed as representative of typical development impact 
fees for industrial projects.  

These prototypes used were also vetted and reviewed in 2018 by the WRCOG Planning Directors’ 
Committee, Public Works Committee, and Technical Advisory Committee. The prototypes are 
summarized below along with images that represent examples projects with matching 
characteristics.  

Single-Family Residential Development  
50-unit residential subdivision; 2,700 square foot homes and 7,200 square foot lots 

 
Example Prototype Single-Family Home, City of Riverside  

32



 Economic & Planning Systems 

 12 

Multifamily Residential Development  
200-unit market-rate, 260,000 gross square foot apartment building 

 

Retail Development  
10,000-gross square foot retail building 

 

 

Example Prototype Multi-Family Development, City of Temecula 

Example Prototype Retail Development, City of Hemet 

33



 Economic & Planning Systems 

 13 

Office Development  
20,000-gross square foot, Class A or Class B office building 

 
 

Industrial Development  
265,000 gross square foot “high cube” industrial building3 

 
 

In addition to building size, several other development characteristics can affect development 
impact fees. For example, many water facilities fees are tied to the number and size of meters 

 
 

 

3 “High cube” is defined as warehouses/distribution centers with a minimum gross floor area of 200,000 sq. ft., 
minimum ceiling height of 24 feet, and minimum dock-high door loading ratio of 1 door per 10,000 sq. ft. 

Example Prototype Industrial Development, City of Perris 

Example Prototype Office Development, City of Hemet 

34



 Economic & Planning Systems 

 14 

associated with a new development. Other fees are tied to the gross site or lot area. EPS utilized 
a set of additional development prototypes assumptions detailed in Appendix A. 

In general, and wherever possible, these assumptions were kept consistent with those used in 
the 2018-19 Study to improve comparability. The 2018-19 assumptions were developed based 
on a review of equivalent assumptions used in other regional fee studies (e.g., in the San 
Joaquin Valley and the Sacramento Valley) and refined through feedback from Western Riverside 
County service providers. In a few cases, fee calculation formulas required even more 
assumptions, such as estimates of water/sewage flow rates, which were specific to and provided 
by each service provider. 

Where assumptions differed from 2018-19, changes primarily occurred where service providers 
provided updated information on their typical water meter assumptions or otherwise 
recommended changes. In certain cases, small deviations from listed prototype assumptions 
were used. For example, Jurupa Community Services District (JCSD) indicated that they typically 
permit new single-family homes with ¾” water pipes, which is slightly smaller than the prototype 
assumption of a 1” pipe, but ¾” is more representative of typical/comparable development fees 
(JCSD charges much higher fees for the larger 1” pipes, so developers rarely use them) and was 
used in the estimate. 

Subarea Location Assumptions 

In some cities, there are multiple service providers providing the same type of facilities in 
different parts of the city. For example, some cities are served by two or more distinct school 
districts, and many cities are served by two or more water and/or sewer districts. Therefore, an 
assumption around location within a subarea or zone associated with a given service provider 
had to be made in order to calculate each fee estimate. Where possible, these assumptions were 
kept consistent with those used in the 2018-19 Study, and which were developed based on the 
following factors: 

• Suggestions from the City. 

• Commonality of service provider between multiple cities; for example, Eastern Municipal 
Water District serves many cities. 

• Scale/nature of service areas was also considered; for example, in some cases the majority 
of a City was served by one service provider and/or the majority of the growth areas were 
served by a particular service provider. 

• In some cases, there was one service provider – e.g., the City – with different fees by City 
subarea (e.g., storm drain). In these cases, an effort was made to select the area expected 
to see the most growth based on discussions with City and WRCOG staff.  

• In other cases, area-specific one-time fees/assessments/special taxes were in place to cover 
the costs of capital facilities in a new growth area. Where substantial in scale, these areas 
and the associated area fees were used in the fee comparison. 

35



 Economic & Planning Systems 

 15 

The location and corresponding service provider assignment assumptions are shown in 
Appendix B. 

Fee Types and Categories 

The primary focus of the fee research is to develop estimates of existing development impact 
fees charged on new development in the selected jurisdictions. While some fees are highly 
uniform, such as school district fees, there is substantial variation in the naming and types of 
facilities included in other development impact fees. The fee review sought to organize the full 
set of fees in a normalized set of categories to allow for best comparison. The key fee categories 
are as follows, which are consistent with the 2018-19 Study: 

• Regional Transportation Fees. This category includes the respective TUMFs in Western 
Riverside County and Coachella Valley. TUMF in Western Riverside County is charged by 
WRCOG directly on the following bases: 

o Single-Family Residential Development - Per unit basis. 

o Multifamily Residential Development - Per unit basis. 

o Retail Development - Per gross building square foot basis. There is no fee on 
the first 3,000 square feet of an retail development. 

o Industrial Development - Per gross building square foot basis. The industrial 
fee includes a base fee on square footage up to 200,000 square feet and then, 
where the building meets the definition of a "high cube" building4, an effective 
discount of 73 percent in the base fee for all additional development above 
200,000 square feet.  

o Office Development – Per gross building square foot basis. 

This category also includes regional transportation impact fees in other 
subregions/jurisdictions where they are clearly called out. In San Bernardino County, cities 
are similarly required to contribute towards regional transportation funding, but not all of 
them distinguish between local and regional fees, in which case all transportation fees fall 
under the “Other City Fees” category. 

• Water and Sewer Fees. All development locations studied were subject to some form of 
water and sewer development impact fees, whether a connection or capacity related charge, 
and these are combined into one category. These are typically collected either by a city or 
directly by a service provider 

• Other City Fees. Beyond water/sewer fees (which are sometimes charged or collected by 
cities), jurisdictions frequently adopt a large number of additional citywide (or countywide) 

 
 

 

4 "High Cube" is defined as warehouses/distribution centers with a minimum gross floor area of 200,000 sq. ft., 
minimum ceiling height of 24 feet, and minimum dock-high door loading ratio of 1 door per 10,000 sq. ft. 

36



 Economic & Planning Systems 

 16 

fees used to fund various capital facilities. This category captures a wide variety of fees 
including: local transportation fees, parks and recreation facilities fees, Quimby Act in-lieu 
parkland fees, storm drain fees, public safety facilities fees, other civic/community facilities 
fees, and, on occasion, affordable housing, or public art in-lieu fees. 

• School Fees. School facilities fees are governed by State law and therefore show more 
similarity between jurisdictions than most fees. Under State law, School Districts can charge 
specified Level 1 development impact fees. If School Districts go through the process of 
identifying and estimating required capital improvement costs, higher Level 2 fees can be 
charged to fund up to 50 percent of the School District’s capital improvement costs. Only five 
school districts serving WRCOG jurisdictions charged Level 2 fees at the time of this study. 

• Other Area/Regional Fees. A final category was developed to capture other fees not 
included in the above categories, typically other sub-regional fees or area-specific fees. For 
example, this category includes the Western Riverside County Multiple Species Habitat 
Conservation Plan mitigation fee, various Road and Bridge Benefit Districts (RBBD) fees, as 
well as other one-time community facilities district charges/fees for infrastructure/capital 
facilities applied in particular growth areas. 

Fee Estimation and Review Process 

For WRCOG member jurisdictions, EPS worked with WRCOG staff to complete the following data 
collection and review process to come up with each fee estimate: 

• Confirm base assumptions including development prototype characteristics and set of service 
providers 

• Use online sources to obtain development impact fee schedules from each jurisdiction or 
service provider. 

• Identify and list development impact fees charged in jurisdiction and/or for each service 
provider. 

• Where fee schedule provided insufficient information, review available mitigation fee nexus 
studies, ordinances, or resolutions, as applicable. 

• Where sufficient data was not available or incomplete, contact City, County, or other service 
provider to obtain/confirm appropriate fee schedules. 

• Develop initial estimates of each development impact fee for each development prototype. 

• Review estimates in comparison with 2018 fee amounts to identify unusual or unexpected 
discrepancies or large changes in fee levels. 

• Compile summary charts showing initial fee estimates and share with representatives of each 
jurisdiction and/or relevant service providers (e.g., Eastern Municipal Water District). 

• Receive feedback, corrections, and refinements (and in some cases actual fee calculations). 

• Refine fee estimates based on feedback and confirm changes with jurisdictions. 

37



 Economic & Planning Systems 

 17 

For non-WRCOG jurisdictions, the process followed was largely the same, except that fee 
estimate information was not reviewed by jurisdiction representatives. 

Findings from WRCOG Member  Jur isd ict ion Fee  
Review 

General findings from fee research for the WRCOG region are summarized below. 

On average, WRCOG TUMF residential fees represent close to 20 percent of total 
development impact fees for both single-family and multifamily development. Regional 
Transportation Fees (or TUMF) for both single-family TUMF and multifamily TUMF represent 
around 20 percent of the respective average total development impact fees, with the percentage 
for single-family development being slightly lower at 17.7% compared with 20.5% for 
multifamily development. However, within individual jurisdictions, fee totals vary widely – from 
$41,338 per unit to $82,711 per unit for single-family development and from $19,267 per unit to 
$47,196 per unit for multifamily development – and TUMF, which is the same across 
jurisdictions, therefore varies as a percent of total fees from 12.2 percent to 24.4 percent for 
single-family development and 13.9 percent to 34.2 percent for multifamily development (see 
Table 4, and Figure 5). Nominal average fee totals by fee category are shown in Table 5. 

Table 4 TUMF as a Proportion of Total Fees 

  

Low High

Single Family 
Total Fees per Unit $57,078 $41,338 $82,711
TUMF as a % of Total Fees 17.7% 24.4% 12.2%

Multifamily
Total Fees per Unit $32,099 $19,267 $47,196
TUMF as a % of Total Fees 20.5% 34.2% 13.9%

Industrial 
Total Fees per SF $6.48 $4.02 $10.98
TUMF as a % of Total Fees 24.2% 39.0% 14.3%

Retail 
Total Fees per SF $25.27 $14.21 $39.61
TUMF as a % of Total Fees 21.4% 38.0% 13.6%

Office
Total Fees per SF $17.04 $8.30 $25.11
TUMF as a % of Total Fees 14.4% 29.5% 9.8%

* Average and ranges as shown encompass 21 jurisdiction, including 18 cities and the 
incorporated areas of Temescal Valley, Winchester, and March JPA.

RangeAverageItem

38



 Economic & Planning Systems 

 18 

On average, WRCOG nonresidential TUMF shows more variation in level and in 
proportion of overall development impact fees (between 10 percent and 39 percent) 
than for the residential fee categories. Average total retail fees are about $25 per square 
foot, of which Regional Transportation Fees represent 21 percent. Due to the variation in the 
total fees on retail development among jurisdictions (from $14.21 to $39.26 per square foot), 
TUMF as a percent of total fees ranges from 13.6 percent to 38 percent. Average total industrial 
fees are substantially lower at $6.48 per square foot with a range from $4.08 per square foot to 
$10.98 per square foot. TUMF represents about 24 percent of the average total industrial fees, 
with a range from 14.3 percent to 39 percent. Total fees on office development fall in between 
the retail and industrial fees at an average of $17.04 per square foot and a range from $8.30 to 
$25.11 per square foot. The TUMF fee represents a relatively low 14.4 percent of average overall 
fees on office development with a range from 9.8 percent to 29.5 percent (see Table 4, Table 
5, and Figure 5). 

Nonresidential development impact fees show more variation in terms of the 
distribution between fee categories. Retail fees are dominated by water and sewer fees 
(40.8 percent) as well as Regional Transportation Fees (21.4 percent). Fees for industrial 
buildings, which are typically less intensive water users, are lower overall and more dominated 
on a proportionate basis by Other City fees (33.2 percent) and Regional Transportation Fees 
(24.2 percent). Office fees reflect a different pattern with substantial Water and Sewer Fees at 
48 percent followed by Other City fees at 26.2 percent (see Table 5 and Figure 5). 

Table 5 Average Development Impact Fee Costs by Category in WRCOG Region 

 

Fee Single Family
(per Unit)

Multifamily
(per Unit)

Industrial
(per Sq.Ft)

Retail
(per Sq.Ft)

Office
(per Sq.Ft)

Regional Transportation Fees $10,104 $6,580 $1.57 $5.40 $2.45
Water and Sewer Fees $20,772 $10,012 $0.99 $10.31 $8.19
Other City Fees $12,075 $8,608 $2.15 $6.66 $4.47
School Fees $9,275 $5,480 $0.66 $0.66 $0.66
Other Area/Regional Fees $4,853 $1,418 $1.11 $2.23 $1.27
Total Fees $57,078 $32,099 $6.48 $25.27 $17.04

39



 Economic & Planning Systems 

 19 

Figure 5 Average Development Impact Fee Costs in WRCOG Jurisdictions 

 

Unincorporated jurisdictions have slightly lower total fees as compared to the average 
for all WRCOG study jurisdictions. For single-family and multifamily residential uses, total 
fees for the unincorporated study areas were 85 percent and 95 percent, respectively, of the 
WRCOG average total fee amount for residential uses, as shown in Table 6. For nonresidential 
uses, total fees for unincorporated study areas were between 67 and 73 percent of the WRCOG 
average for nonresidential uses. Across land use types, this difference can be primarily attributed 
to fewer fees in the Other City Fees category.  

Table 6 Unincorporated Jurisdictions/March JPA and Total Jurisdictions Comparisons 

 

Item Single Family
(per Unit)

Multifamily
(per Unit)

Industrial
(per Sq.Ft)

Retail
(per Sq.Ft)

Office
(per Sq.Ft)

Unincorporated Jurisdictions and 
March JPA $48,672 $30,341 $4.37 $17.61 $12.49

Total Jursidictions $57,078 $32,099 $6.48 $25.27 $17.04
Unincorporated Jurisdictions and 
March JPA / Total Jurisdiction 85% 95% 67% 70% 73%

40



 Economic & Planning Systems 

 20 

Fee Level Changes since 2018-19 Study 

Table 7 through Table 11 provide additional detail on the changes in fee levels by fee category. 

Table 7 Single Family 2018-2022 Fee Comparison 

 

Table 8 Multifamily 2018-2022 Fee Comparison 

 

Table 9 Retail 2018-2022 Fee Comparison 

 

Table 10 Office 2018-2022 Fee Comparison 

 

Single Family 2018 2022 $ Change % Change
Regional Transportation Fees $8,873 $10,104 $1,231.00 13.9%
Water and Sewer Fees $17,070 $20,772 $3,702 21.7%
Other City Fees $10,055 $12,075 $2,020 20.1%
School Fees $8,785 $9,275 $489 5.6%
Other Area/Regional Fees $2,686 $4,853 $2,167 80.7%
Total Fees $47,470 $57,078 $9,609 20.2%

Average Fee Per Dwelling Unit

Multifamily 2018 2022 $ Change % Change
Regional Transportation Fees $6,134 $6,580 $446 7.3%
Water and Sewer Fees $9,636 $10,012 $376 3.9%
Other City Fees $7,231 $8,608 $1,377 19.0%
School Fees $5,191 $5,480 $289 5.6%
Other Area/Regional Fees $1,512 $1,418 -$94 -6.2%
Total Fees $29,706 $32,099 $2,393 8.1%

Average Fee Per Dwelling Unit

Retail 2018 2022 $ Change % Change
Regional Transportation Fees $7.50 $5.40 -$2.10 -27.9%
Water and Sewer Fees $9.84 $10.31 $0.47 4.8%
Other City Fees $4.75 $6.66 $1.91 40.3%
School Fees $0.59 $0.66 $0.07 11.7%
Other Area/Regional Fees $0.95 $2.23 $1.28 135.7%
Total Fees $23.63 $25.27 $1.64 6.9%

Average Fee Per Square Foot

Office 2018 2022 $ Change % Change
Regional Transportation Fees $2.19 $2.45 $0.26 11.9%
Water and Sewer Fees $7.34 $8.19 $0.84 11.5%
Other City Fees $3.39 $4.47 $1.07 31.6%
School Fees $0.59 $0.66 $0.07 11.7%
Other Area/Regional Fees $0.54 $1.27 $0.73 135.8%
Total Fees $14.06 $17.04 $2.98 21.2%

Average Fee Per Square Foot

41



 Economic & Planning Systems 

 21 

Table 11 Industrial 2018-2022 Fee Comparison 

 

 

Findings from Fee Compar ison with Non-WRCOG 
Jurisdict ions 

Figure 6 through Figure 9 compare the average overall WRCOG development impact fees (and 
their proportionate distributions between the five major fee categories) with other cities/groups 
of cities for all five land uses/development prototypes studied. The comparative cities/subregions 
include selected jurisdictions in the Coachella Valley and San Bernardino County.  

Average development impact fees for WRCOG jurisdictions are equal to or somewhat 
higher than the average of selected San Bernardino County cities. When compared with 
the average of selected San Bernardino County cities (Fontana, Yucaipa, San Bernardino, 
Ontario, Chino, and Rialto), the WRCOG average is higher for all land uses, and roughly 
equivalent for multifamily and industrial. New development in San Bernardino County cities is 
required to make payments towards regional transportation infrastructure, though the distinction 
between the regional and local transportation fees is often unclear. Overall, the combination of 
Regional Transportation Fees, Other City fees, and Area/Other Regional fees is lower in San 
Bernardino County than in Riverside County for all land uses. 

The average development impact fees for selected Coachella Valley cities are lower 
than the WRCOG averages for all land uses. The average for selected Coachella Valley cities 
(Indio, Palm Desert, and Palm Springs) is substantially lower for single-family, multifamily, 
office, and retail development, and modestly lower industrial development. In the case of 
residential uses, this is primarily due to lower Regional Transportation Fees and Other City Fees. 
For nonresidential uses, this is more generally attributable to lower Water and Sewer Fees and 
lower Other Area/Regional Fees. 

Industrial 2018 2022 $ Change % Change
Regional Transportation Fees $1.45 $1.57 $0.11 7.9%
Water and Sewer Fees $1.04 $0.99 -$0.05 -4.7%
Other City Fees $1.65 $2.15 $0.50 30.1%
School Fees $0.59 $0.66 $0.07 11.7%
Other Area/Regional Fees $0.47 $1.11 $0.64 137.1%
Total Fees $5.20 $6.48 $1.27 24.5%

Average Fee Per Square Foot

42



 Economic & Planning Systems 

 22 

Figure 6 Average Single-Family Development Impact Fee Costs and Proportions in Neighboring 
Jurisdictions 

 

43



 Economic & Planning Systems 

 23 

Figure 7 Average Multifamily Development Impact Fee Costs and Proportions in Neighboring 
Jurisdictions 

 

44



 Economic & Planning Systems 

 24 

Figure 8 Average Retail Development Impact Fee Costs and Proportions in Neighboring Jurisdictions 

 

45



 Economic & Planning Systems 

 25 

Figure 9 Average Office Development Impact Fee Costs and Proportions in Neighboring Jurisdictions 

 

 

46



 Economic & Planning Systems 

 26 

Figure 10 Average Industrial Development Impact Fee Costs and Proportions in Neighboring 
Jurisdictions 

 

 

 

  

47



 Economic & Planning Systems 

 27 

3. Development Impact Fees and Development 
Costs 

This chapter evaluates development impact fees, including the TUMF, in Western Riverside 
County in the context of overall development costs. The first section below provides an overview 
of the complex factors that influence decisions to develop, one of which is development cost. The 
subsequent section describes the methodology used to estimate development costs for different 
land use types. The next section provides conclusions concerning the level of fees and TUMF in 
the context of overall costs. 

It is critical to note that this analysis uses generalized development prototypes and 
development cost and return estimates to draw overall conclusions about development 
impact fees relative to development costs. This analysis does not represent a project-
specific analysis as the development program, development costs, and returns 
associated with any individual project can vary widely. No conclusions concerning the 
feasibility of any specific project should be drawn from this analysis. 

Economics of  Development  

Key Factors in New Development 

The drivers of growth and development are complex and multifaceted, and market conditions 
influenced by broader global, national, and regional economic conditions are typically the 
strongest factor. Though regional and local policies (including the choice of whether and how 
much to charge in impact fees) will not be sufficient to attract or capture development when 
market conditions are poor, they can influence the feasibility and pace of development during 
more moderate or strong market conditions. Market strength is typically reflected by the price 
point or lease rate that users/homeowners/renters are willing to pay. 

Developers (whether looking to do speculative development or to provide build-to-suit 
developments for larger users) will review a number of conditions before determining whether to 
move forward with site acquisition/optioning and pre-development activities. Factors will include: 
(1) the availability of appropriate sites, (2) the availability of/proximity to/quality of 
infrastructure/facilities (e.g., proximity to transportation corridors, schools, and other amenities), 
(3) local market strength (achievable sales prices/lease rates) in the context of competitive 
supply, (4) expected development costs (including land acquisition costs, construction materials 
and labor costs, the availability and costs of financing, and development impact fees, among 
others), and, (5) where sites are unentitled, the entitlement risk. 

When the strength of market demand for new residential and nonresidential development is 
sufficient, it typically spurs more detailed review and evaluation of sites by developers. Even in 
cases where market factors look strong, there is a complex balance between development 
revenues, development costs, land costs, and required developer returns that must be achieved 

48



 Economic & Planning Systems 

 28 

to catalyze new development. Modest fluctuations in development revenues (i.e., market prices), 
development costs (materials, labor costs, etc.), and landowner expectations (perceived value of 
land) can all affect development decisions as can assessments of entitlement risk and 
complexity, where entitlements are still required. 

While many of these factors, such as the price of steel, the complexities of CEQA, the market for 
labor, and land values, are outside of the control of local public agencies, development impact 
fees represent one factor that can be adjusted at the local level. That said, given limited sources 
of revenue for local jurisdictions, there are policy tradeoffs to not charging development impact 
fees, especially as they can have long-term influence on other factors that influence market 
demand, including local infrastructure/amenities, transportation connections to job centers, and 
school district quality. 

Methodology 

Every development project is different and will have different development costs. For the 
purposes of this analysis, EPS considered the same set of land use prototypes as for the fee 
review and comparison and developed an illustrative estimate of the full set of development 
costs. The steps taken in developing the development cost estimates are described in the 
subsections below. 

Land Uses Evaluated 

The development cost evaluation was completed for the same development prototypes as used 
in the estimation of development impact fees described in Chapter 2: 

• Residential Single-family Development – Single-family homes in a 50-unit subdivision 
• Residential Multifamily Development – Multifamily apartments in a 200-unit building 
• Industrial Development – Industrial space in a 265,000 square foot “high cube” building 
• Office Development – Office space in a 20,000 square foot office building 
• Retail Development – Retail space in a 10,000 square foot retail building 

Development Cost Estimates 

An illustrative static pro forma structure was developed. The pro forma incorporated different 
categories of development costs (see below). It also considered potential land values/acquisition 
costs based on a residual land value approach that considered potential development values, 
subtracted direct and indirect development costs and developer return requirements, and 
indicated a potential residual land value. The development values were refined based on 
available market data ranges and the need to generate a land value of an appropriate level to 
support land acquisition and new development. Available information on land transactions was 
also reviewed. As noted above, this analysis is designed to provide overall insights on general 
economic relationships and does not draw conclusions concerning the feasibility of individual 
projects. 

49



 Economic & Planning Systems 

 29 

It is also important to note that the pro formas developed were specifically configured 
to represent a potentially feasible set of relationships, in terms of revenues, costs, and 
returns. This allows for consideration of development impact fees in the context of 
illustrative projects that would make sense to undertake. To the extent, development 
costs/returns are higher than those indicated – a reality which could certainly be true 
for many projects – development values would need to be higher or feasibility is not 
likely to be attained. To the extent, this is true, development impact fees as a 
proportion of development costs/returns would be lower than those shown. 

In this study, major cost categories were revised from the 2018-19 Study, including direct 
construction costs, land costs, and development impact fees. 

• Direct Construction Costs – Site Work/Improvements and Vertical Construction Costs. 
Estimates were taken from Marshal & Swift (a construction cost data provider) estimates, 
available pro formas, and information from developers where available. 

• Indirect Costs – Architecture and Engineering Costs, Sales and Marketing, Financing, 
Development Impact Fee, and other soft costs. Estimates were taken from Marshal & Swift, 
the WRCOG Fee Comparison, available pro formas, and information from developers where 
available.  

• Developer Return Requirements – Developer return requirements were set to be equal to 
between 9 and 10 percent of development value for all land uses. This represented between 
10 and 20 percent of direct and indirect construction costs consistent with typical developer 
hurdle returns. 

• Land Costs – Land costs were based on the estimated residual land values when costs and 
returns were subtracted from estimates of development value and/or information on actual 
land transactions. Land costs as a percent of development value were reviewed to make sure 
they fell within a viable range. 

Results  

As context for the description of the results of this analysis, it is worth repeating that there will 
be considerable variation throughout Western Riverside County in terms of different development 
cost components and overall development costs. On an average/illustrative basis, overall 
development costs included in this analysis may be conservative as they do not include union 
labor costs and may be conservative with regard to entitlement costs. Given that the focus of 
this analysis is on the relationship between development impact fees and total development 
costs, an underestimate in total development costs would mean that the proportionate 
significance of impact fees has been overestimated. 

It is again important to note that the analysis shown here is not an evaluation of development 
feasibility. Such an analysis would require a more-location specific analysis and is highly 
dependent on site characteristics, local market conditions, and site land values, among other 
factors. 

50



 Economic & Planning Systems 

 30 

Table 12 summarizes the estimated development costs/returns on a per residential unit and per 
Nonresidential building square foot basis. Table 13 converts the cost estimates into percent 
allocations out of the total development/return. It should be noted that the total cost/return 
(equivalent to the 100 percent) equals the sum of direct and indirect costs, estimated land costs, 
and required development return. This total cost/return is equivalent to the sales 
prices/capitalized building value a developer would need to command to cover all costs/return 
requirements. To the extent, actual costs are higher (e.g., higher land costs or construction 
costs), the achievable sales prices/capitalized lease rates would also need to be higher. 

Table 12 Average Development Cost and Return Estimates by Development Prototype 

 

DIRECT
Basic Site Work/ Lot Improveme $30,000 $9,257 $11.50 $25.00 $14.29
Direct Construction Cost $302,400 $220,350 $80.00 $158.00 $203.00
  Hard Cost Total $332,400 $229,607 $91.50 $183.00 $217.29

INDIRECT   
TUMF $10,104 $6,580 $1.57 $5.40 $2.45
Other Development Impact Fees $46,974 $25,519 $4.91 $19.87 $14.59
Other Soft Costs $74,420 $53,791 $18.30 $35.46 $44.34
  Soft Cost Total $131,498 $85,890 $24.78 $60.73 $61.38

 
Total Direct and Indirect Costs $463,898 $315,497 $116.28 $243.73 $278.66

  
Developer Return Requirement $63,800 $40,863 $15.00 $34.61 $38.18

  
 Land Value  $110,302 $52,269 $33.80 $95.93 $45.70

TOTAL COST/RETURN $638,000 $408,629 $165.08 $374.27 $362.54

*  Assumes generally feasible market conditions (i.e. ability to generate developer return and positive land value).

Office
(per Sq.Ft)

Development Costs, Land 
Values, and Return

Single Family
(per Unit)

Multifamily
(per Unit)

Industrial
(per Sq.Ft)

Retail
(per Sq.Ft)

51



 Economic & Planning Systems 

 31 

Table 13 Proportional Development Costs and Returns by Development Prototype 

 

Key findings include: 

• Direct construction costs represent the largest proportion of total development 
costs/returns, typically followed by other land costs, other soft costs (collectively), 
developer returns, and development impact fees. Unsurprisingly, direct construction 
costs are the largest cost, representing between 42.2 percent and 56 percent of total 
costs/returns for the prototypes evaluated. Land costs are likely to be most variable, and 
depending on circumstance, range from 12.6 percent to 25.6 percent for the prototypes. 
Other soft costs collectively are the next highest component, though their subcomponents 
(not shown), such as sales and marketing, architecture and engineering, financing costs, are 
smaller. The expected hurdle developer return at 9 to 10 percent is the next highest factor. 
The range for total development impact fees is below all these other ranges, though when 
indirect costs are considered individually development impact fees are larger than other 
subcomponents. 

• Total development impact fees represent between 4 percent and 8.9 percent of 
total development costs/returns for the prototype feasible projects. Total 
development impact fees represent 8.9 percent and 7.9 percent of total development 
costs/returns respectively for single-family and multifamily developments, respectively. As 
discussed in Chapter 2, these capital facilities fees included water and sewer fees, school 
district fees, other local jurisdiction fees, TUMF, and other agency/subarea fees. As is 
common, nonresidential development impact fees are lower as a percent though show a 

Development Costs, Land 
Values, and Return Single Family Multifamily Industrial Retail Office

DIRECT
Basic Site Work/ Lot Improveme 4.7% 2.3% 7.0% 6.7% 3.9%
Direct Construction Cost 47.4% 53.9% 48.5% 42.2% 56.0%
  Hard Cost Total 52.1% 56.2% 55.4% 48.9% 59.9%

INDIRECT   
TUMF 1.6% 1.6% 1.0% 1.4% 0.7%
Other Development Impact Fees 7.4% 6.2% 3.0% 5.3% 4.0%
Other Soft Costs 11.7% 13.2% 11.1% 9.5% 12.2%
  Soft Cost Total 20.6% 21.0% 15.0% 16.2% 16.9%

  
Total Direct and Indirect Costs 72.7% 77.2% 70.4% 65.1% 76.9%

  
Developer Return Requirement 10.0% 10.0% 9.1% 9.2% 10.5%

  
 Land Value  17.3% 12.8% 20.5% 25.6% 12.6%

TOTAL COST/RETURN (%) 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

*  Assumes generally feasible market conditions (i.e. ability to generate developer return and positive land value).

52



 Economic & Planning Systems 

 32 

significant range from 4 percent for industrial development, to 4.7 percent for office 
development, to 6.8 percent for retail development. Since the 2018-19 Study, the percent of 
costs that the development impact fees represent has seen a minimal change. The largest 
change was seen in the proportion of fees on multifamily projects, which decreased by 1 
percentage point.  

• TUMF represent between 0.7 percent and 1.6 percent of total development 
costs/returns for the prototype feasible projects. As a proportion of overall 
development costs, TUMF represent 1.6 percent total residential development costs for both 
single-family and multifamily. For nonresidential uses there is greater variation with TUMF 
representing 0.7 percent of total costs for office development, 1 percent of total costs for 
industrial development, and 1.4 percent of total costs for retail development. TUMF represent 
between 14.4 percent and 24.2 percent of total development impact fees, on average, as 
indicated in the Fee Comparison with the highest ratios for industrial development and lowest 
for office development. 

 

4. Conclusions 

The Western Riverside Council of Governments (WRCOG) commissioned this and prior studies to 
provide increased regional understanding of development impact fees on new development in 
Western Riverside County. It is common practice for new and updated Development Impact Fee 
Nexus Studies to be accompanied by some consideration of impact fees in neighboring and peer 
communities and, less frequently, by consideration of impact fees in the context of overall 
development costs and economics. This is true where individual jurisdictions are 
introducing/updating a single development impact fee category (e.g. transportation or parks) as 
well as when undertaking a more comprehensive update to multiple fee categories. 

Following the first study in 2016, WRCOG recommended that this report and study be updated 
periodically to ensure the regional understanding of the region’s impact fees remains current in 
the context of: (1) frequent adjustments to fee levels by individual jurisdictions, (2) changing 
development cost and economic conditions, and (3) less frequent, but highly significant changes 
in State law that affect the use and availability of other public financing tools. 

The development of this updated study follows that recommendation and represents the second 
effort to bring the original study up to date.  

 

53



 Economic & Planning Systems 

  

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX A: 

Development Prototypes 

  

54



Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 1

Single Family Prototype

• Reflects median home size for Western Riverside County home sales since 2014

Example Prototype Home, City of Riverside 

Product Type: Single Family Detached Unit
Development Type: Residential Subdivision
No. of Acres: 10 Acres
No. of Units: 50 Units
Building Sq.Ft. 2,700 Sq.Ft.
No. of Bedrooms: 4 
No. of Bathrooms: 3 
Garage Space (Sq.Ft): 500 Sq.Ft.
Habitable Space (Sq.Ft:) 2,200 Sq.Ft.
Lot Size: 7,200 Sq.Ft.
Density: 5 DU/AC
Lot Width: 60 Ft.
Lot Depth: 120 Ft.
Total Lot Dimensions (Sq.Ft.): 7,200 Sq.Ft.
Water Meter Size One 1 Inch Meter

55



Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 2

Multi-Family Prototype

• Reflects median building size for multi-family developments since 2010

Example Prototype Multi-Family Development, City of Temecula

Product Type: Multi Family Apartment Unit
Development Type: Multi Family Apartment Building
Number of Acres: 10 Acres
Apartment Building Square Feet: 260,000 Sq.Ft.
FAR: 0.60
Number of Stories: 3
Dwelling Units: 200
Density: 20.0 DU/AC
Average Unit Size: 1,100
Water Meter Sizes*:
Roof Area: 86,667 Sq.Ft.
Lot Width: 515.0 Ft.
Lot Depth: 846.6 Ft.

Eight 2 inch Meters

*Note: Assumption is for analytical simplicity.  Different assumptions are used where recommended 
by individual jurisdictions.

56



Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 3

Industrial Prototype

• Reflects median building size for industrial developments since 2010

Example Prototype Industrial Development, City of Perris

Product Type: Warehouse/ Distribution
Criteria: Meets criteria for High-Cube
No. of Acres: 15.2 Acres
Rentable Square Feet: 265,000 Sq.Ft.
FAR: 0.4
Water Meter Sizes: One 2 Inch Meter
Roof Area: 265,000 Sq.Ft.
Lot Width: 813.9 Ft.
Lot Depth: 813.9 Ft.

265,000

265,000

15.2

One 2 Inch Meter

813.7
813.7

57



Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 4

Retail Prototype

• Reflects building size for retail developments since 2010

Example Prototype Retail Development, City of Hemet

Product Type:
No. of Acres: 1.15 Acres
Rentable Square Feet: 10,000 Sq.Ft.
FAR: 0.2
No. of Stories: 1
Water Meter Sizes: One 2 Inch Meter 
Roof Area: 10,000 Sq.Ft.
Lot Width: 223.6 Ft.
Lot Depth: 223.6 Ft.

Retail Building

58



Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 5

Office Prototype

• Reflects median building size for office developments since 2010

Example Prototype Office Development, City of Hemet

Product Type:
Number of Acres: 1.3 Acres
Rentable Square Feet: 20,000 Sq.Ft.
FAR: 0.35
No. of Stories: 2
Water Meter Sizes: One 2 Inch Meter 
Roof Area: 10,000 Sq.Ft.
Lot Width: 239.0 Ft.
Lot Depth: 239.0 Ft.

Office Building

59



 Economic & Planning Systems 

  

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX B: 

Location & Service Provider Assumptions 

  

60



Study Location and Service Provider Assumptions

City / Location School District Water District Sewer District

Western Riverside Council of Governments
1 Banning Banning Unified School District City of Banning City of Banning
2 Beaumont Beaumont Unified School District Beaumont-Cherry Valley Water District City of Beaumont Sewer & Refuse Service
3 Calimesa  Yucaipa- Calimesa Joint Unified School District Yucaipa Valley Water District Yucaipa Valley Water District
4 Canyon Lake Lake Elsinore Unified School District Elsinore Valley Municipal Water District Elsinore Valley Municipal Water District
5 Corona Corona-Norco Unified School District City of Corona City of Corona
6 Eastvale Corona-Norco Unified School District Jurupa Community Services District (JCSD) Jurupa Community Services District (JCSD)
7 Hemet Hemet Unified School District Eastern Municipal Water District (EMWD) Eastern Municipal Water District (EMWD)
8 Jurupa Valley Jurupa Unified School District Jurupa Community Services District (JCSD) Jurupa Community Services District (JCSD)
9 Lake Elsinore Lake Elsinore Unified School District Elsinore Valley Municipal Water District Elsinore Valley Municipal Water District
10 Menifee Menifee Union (Elementary) & Perris Union (High) Eastern Municipal Water District (EMWD) Eastern Municipal Water District (EMWD)
11 Moreno Valley  Moreno Valley Unified School District Eastern Municipal Water District (EMWD) Eastern Municipal Water District (EMWD)
12 Murrieta Murrieta Valley Unified School District Eastern Municipal Water District (EMWD) Eastern Municipal Water District (EMWD)
13 Norco Corona-Norco Unified School District City of Norco City of Norco
14 Perris Perris Union High & Perris Union Elementary Eastern Municipal Water District (EMWD) Eastern Municipal Water District
15 Riverside  Riverside Unified School District City of Riverside City of Riverside
16 San Jacinto San Jacinto Unified School District Eastern Municipal Water District Eastern Municipal Water District (EMWD)
17 Temecula Temecula Valley Unified School District Rancho California Water District Eastern Municipal Water District (EMWD)
18 Wildomar Lake Elsinore Unified School District Elsinore Valley Municipal Water District Elsinore Valley Municipal Water District
19 Unincorporated Temescal Valley Corona-Norco Unified School District Temescal Valley Water District Temescal Valley Water District
20 Unincorporated Winchester Menifee Union (Elementary) & Perris Union (High) Eastern Municipal Water District (EMWD) Eastern Municipal Water District (EMWD)
21 March JPA Moreno Valley Unified School District Western Municipal Water District (WMWD) Western Municipal Water District (WMWD)

San Bernardino County
1 Fontana Fontana unified School District Fontana Water Company City of Fontana 
2 Yucaipa Yucaipa- Calimesa Joint Unified School District Yucaipa Valley Water District Yucaipa Valley Water District 
3 San Bernardino San Bernadino City Unified School District East Valley Water District San Bernardino Municipal Water Department

4 Ontario Ontario-Montclier School District Inland Empire Utilities Agency Inland Empire Utilities Agency
(formerly Ontario Municipal Utilities Company)

5 Chino Chino Valley Unified School District Inland Empire Utilities Agency Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
(formerly City of Chino Public Works Department)

6 Rialto Rialto Unified School District Rialto Water Services Rialto Water Services

Coachella Valley Association of Governments
1 Indio Desert Sands Unified School District Indio Water Authority Valley Sanitary District
2 Palm Desert Desert Sands Unified School District Coachella Valley Water District Coachella Valley Water District 
3 Palm Spring Palm Springs Unified School District Desert Water Agency Desert Water Agency

Economic & Planning Systems, Inc  Z:\Shared\Projects\LA\214000s\214063_WRCOG Fee Comp Update\Models\214063 - 2022 WRCOG Fee Comparison Prototype Assumptions.xlsx

61



 Economic & Planning Systems 

  

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX C: 

Development Impact Fee Comparison by WRCOG Jurisdictions 
  

 

62



$0

$10,000

$20,000

$30,000

$40,000

$50,000

$60,000

$70,000

$80,000

Banning Beaumont Canyon Lake Calimesa Corona Eastvale Hemet Jurupa Valley Lake Elsinore Menifee Moreno Valley Murrieta Norco Perris Riverside San Jacinto Temecula Wildomar Unincorporated
Temescal Valley

Unincorporated
Winchester

March JPA

Single Family Prototype
Development Fees by Jurisdiction (Per Unit)

Regional Transportation Fees Water & Sewer Other City Fees School Fees Other Area & Regional Fees Average

Fee estimates for specified development prototypes as of 2022. Actual fees will vary based on project specifics and any fee updates.
"Other Area Fees/ Regional Fees" include, but are not limited to, roads and bridges, regional parks, trails, multiservice center fees, area specific fees, and habitat mitigation fees.

63



$0

$5,000

$10,000

$15,000

$20,000

$25,000

$30,000

$35,000

$40,000

$45,000

Banning Beaumont Canyon Lake Calimesa Corona Eastvale Hemet Jurupa Valley Lake Elsinore Menifee Moreno Valley Murrieta Norco Perris Riverside San Jacinto Temecula Wildomar Unincorporated
Temescal Valley

Unincorporated
Winchester

March JPA

Multifamily Prototype
Development Fees by Jurisdiction (Per Unit)

Regional Transportation Fees Water & Sewer Other City Fees School Fees Other Area & Regional Fees Average

Fee estimates for specified development prototypes as of 2022. Actual fees will vary based on project specifics and any fee updates.
"Other Area Fees/ Regional Fees" include, but are not limited to, roads and bridges, regional parks, trails, multiservice center fees, area specific fees, and habitat mitigation fees.

64



$0

$5

$10

$15

$20

$25

$30

$35

$40

Banning Beaumont Canyon Lake Calimesa Corona Eastvale Hemet Jurupa Valley Lake Elsinore Menifee Moreno Valley Murrieta Norco Perris Riverside San Jacinto Temecula Wildomar Unincorporated
Temescal Valley

Unincorporated
Winchester

March JPA

Retail Prototype
Development Fees by Jurisdiction (Per Square Foot)

Regional Transportation Fees Water & Sewer Other City Fees School Fees Other Area & Regional Fees Average

Fee estimates for specified development prototypes as of 2022. Actual fees will vary based on project specifics and any fee updates.
"Other Area Fees/ Regional Fees" include, but are not limited to, roads and bridges, regional parks, trails, multiservice center fees, area specific fees, and habitat mitigation fees.

65



$0

$5

$10

$15

$20

$25

Banning Beaumont Canyon Lake Calimesa Corona Eastvale Hemet Jurupa Valley Lake Elsinore Menifee Moreno Valley Murrieta Norco Perris Riverside San Jacinto Temecula Wildomar Unincorporated
Temescal Valley

Unincorporated
Winchester

March JPA

Office Prototype
Development Fees by Jurisdiction (Per Square Foot)

Regional Transportation Fees Water & Sewer Other City Fees School Fees Other Area & Regional Fees Average

Fee estimates for specified development prototypes as of 2022. Actual fees will vary based on project specifics and any fee updates.
"Other Area Fees/ Regional Fees" include, but are not limited to, roads and bridges, regional parks, trails, multiservice center fees, area specific fees, and habitat mitigation fees.

66



$0

$2

$4

$6

$8

$10

Banning Beaumont Canyon Lake Calimesa Corona Eastvale Hemet Jurupa Valley Lake Elsinore Menifee Moreno Valley Murrieta Norco Perris Riverside San Jacinto Temecula Wildomar Unincorporated
Temescal Valley

Unincorporated
Winchester

March JPA

Industrial Prototype
Development Fees by Jurisdiction (Per Square Foot)

Regional Transportation Fees Water & Sewer Other City Fees School Fees Other Area & Regional Fees Average

Fee estimates for specified development prototypes as of 2022. Actual fees will vary based on project specifics and any fee updates.
"Other Area Fees/ Regional Fees" include, but are not limited to, regional parks, trails, multiservice center fees, area specific fees, and habitat mitigation fees.

67



Item 5.D

Western Riverside Council of Governments
Technical Advisory Committee

Staff Report

Subject: SCAG Activities Update:  March 2023
Contact: Chris Gray, Deputy Executive Director, cgray@wrcog.us, (951) 405-6710
Date: April 20, 2023

 

 
 
 
Requested Action(s): 

1. Receive and file. 

Purpose: 
The purpose of this item is to share SCAG activities updates for March 2023.

WRCOG 2022-2027 Strategic Plan Goal: 
Goal #1 - Serve as an advocate at the regional, state, and federal level for the Western Riverside
subregion.

Background: 
Please see the attached for information on SCAG activities.  Please contact Rachel Wagner, SCAG
Senior Government Affairs Officer, at wagner@scag.ca.gov with any questions. 

Prior Action(s): 
None.

Fiscal Impact: 
This item is for informational purposes only; therefore, there is no fiscal impact.

Attachment(s):
Attachment 1 - SCAG Update: March 2023

68

mailto:cgray@wrcog.us
mailto:wagner@scag.ca.gov
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1888700/SCAG_Update_March_2023__002_.pdf


 

Page | 1 of 5 

To: Executive Director 

Subject: SCAG Update March 2023 

From: Rachel Wagner, SCAG Senior Government Affairs Officer; 

wagner@scag.ca.gov    

 

 

HIGHLIGHTS FROM THE MARCH 2nd SCAG REGIONAL 

COUNCIL MEETING 

ACTION 

REGIONAL COUNCIL APPROVES DRAFT COMPREHENSIVE 

BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2024  

The Regional Council has moved to approve SCAG’s Draft 

Comprehensive Budget for Fiscal Year 2023-24, including the Draft 

Overall Work Plan (OWP). The framework for developing the Draft 

Comprehensive Budget is SCAG’s multi-year Strategic Plan, which 

focuses on SCAG’s vision and priorities to improve the organization and 

its operations. 

The Regional Council’s vote also authorized the release of the Draft 

OWP for a 30-day period of public review from March 2 to April 3. 

Comments may be sent by email to nguyenk@scag.ca.gov or by 

completing the comment form. 

At the close of the public comment period, the Final OWP will be 

submitted to the Regional Council for approval on May 4. The General 

Fund Budget and the Membership Assessment will be submitted to the 

General Assembly for approval, also in May. 

REGIONAL COUNCIL ADOPTS RESOLUTION AND CALL TO 

ACTION TO SUPPORT SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA’S CRITICAL 

LOGISTICS INDUSTRY  

The Transportation Committee recommended on Feb. 2, that the 

Regional Council approve the Goods Movement Supply Chain 

Resolution; today, the resolution was adopted.  

The SCAG region is home to the largest port complex in the country – 

the Ports of Los Angeles and Long Beach (together called the San 

Pedro Bay Ports)– and has an extensive intermodal freight network that 

supports the flow of goods throughout the nation. Goods movement 

significantly contributes to the region’s economy and generates more 

than one-third of jobs in Southern California.  

 

69

mailto:wagner@scag.ca.gov
https://scag.ca.gov/sites/main/files/file-attachments/fy23-24-draft-owp.pdf
https://scag.ca.gov/sites/main/files/file-attachments/fy23-24-draft-owp.pdf
mailto:nguyenk@scag.ca.govv
https://scag.ca.gov/post/draft-fy-2023-24-overall-work-program
https://scag.ca.gov/sites/main/files/file-attachments/rc030223fullpacket.pdf#page=21
https://scag.ca.gov/sites/main/files/file-attachments/rc030223fullpacket.pdf#page=21


Page | 2 of 5 

As part of the presentation, experts from the California Trucking Association and Pacific 

Merchant Shipping Association spoke about recent supply chain disruptions, the regulatory 

challenges ahead, loss of market share and uncertainty. For instance, the San Pedro Bay Ports 

had 26 consecutive months of growth from 2019, spurred by the pandemic, with only five 

months seeing growth below 10 percent; the last four months, however, have shown declines. 

Overall, container trade volumes through U.S. West Coast ports fell to some of their lowest 

levels in years. Specifically, January 2023 container traffic at the major U.S. and Canadian ports 

on the Pacific Coast was uniformly down from pre-pandemic January 2019, while the opposite is 

true at U.S. East and Gulf Coast ports. 

There was uniform agreement and support for the transition to zero emission technologies, with 

acknowledgement that significant challenges remain that require collective coordination and 

support at all levels of government. With heightened volatility and uncertainty, the focus on how 

to improve goods movement is at an all-time high. In response, SCAG has been working with 

partners and stakeholders to support a regional call-to-action including five core principles for 

addressing critical goods movement supply chain challenges and needs in the region. The 

adopted resolution codifies the five principles, including integration with Connect SoCal 2024 – 

Regional Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategy, and reaffirms SCAG’s 

regional leadership role in addressing current and future goods movement supply chain 

challenges. 

REGIONAL COUNCIL APPROVES PROGRAMS TO ACCELERATE TRANSFORMATIVE 

HOUSING (PATH) APPLICATION 

The Regional Council today approved the REAP 2.0 PATH Program application and authorized 

its Calls for Applications. The PATH program, formerly named the Housing Supportive 

Infrastructure Program, is one of the three major funding areas in SCAG’s REAP 2.0 Program 

Development Framework. The program guidelines, which the Regional Council adopted on Nov. 

3, 2022, outline the program’s components, requirements, eligibility and application process, 

and staff recommendation to set aside $88.835 million of SCAG’s REAP 2.0 funding to support 

the program.   

The PATH program supports actions that accelerate infill development that facilitates housing 

supply, choice and affordability; affirmatively furthers fair housing; and reduces vehicle miles 

traveled. Funding opportunities in this program are designed to bring housing production to 

scale in transit-supported infill areas across the Southern California region to meet the 6th Cycle 

Regional Housing Needs Allocation.   

Following state approval of SCAG’s REAP 2.0 application, SCAG anticipates releasing Calls for 

Applications for the Notice of Funding Availability and Housing Infill on Public and Private Lands 

programs in April 2023. The Call for Applications for the Regional Utilities Supporting Housing 

program is anticipated to be released in Summer 2023. For more information on REAP 2.0, visit 

scag.ca.gov/reap2021 

 

 

 

70

https://scag.ca.gov/sites/main/files/file-attachments/rc030223fullpacket.pdf#page=23
https://scag.ca.gov/sites/main/files/file-attachments/rc030223fullpacket.pdf#page=21
https://scag.ca.gov/sites/main/files/file-attachments/rc030223fullpacket.pdf#page=174
https://scag.ca.gov/sites/main/files/file-attachments/rc070722fullpacket.pdf#page=30
https://scag.ca.gov/sites/main/files/file-attachments/rc070722fullpacket.pdf#page=30
https://scag.ca.gov/sites/main/files/file-attachments/rc110322fullpacket.pdf#page=80
https://scag.ca.gov/reap2021


Page | 3 of 5 

NEWS FROM THE PRESIDENT 
 

ANNUAL STATE LEGISLATIVE AGENDA ESTABLISHED  
Last week, under the strategic leadership of Jose Luis Solache, the Legislative/ 

Communications and Membership Committee discussed legislative priorities for the Sacramento 

Summit in April.  SCAG’s top four legislative priorities will focus on:    

1. Protecting transportation budget priorities that the Governor proposed cutting back on in 

his January budget;  

2. Communicating our region’s housing progress, especially the good happening with our 

REAP funds;    

3. Recognizing the important role that regions play in helping the state achieve our shared 

climate goals;    

4. And asking the Legislature to establish a statewide task force to evaluate 

comprehensive modernization for the California Environmental Quality Act, or CEQA.    

 

NEWS FROM THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR  

 

REGIONAL CONFERENCE AND GENERAL ASSEMBLY REGISTRATION NOW OPEN   

Register today for SCAG’s 58th annual Regional Conference and General Assembly to join 
Southern California’s most influential leaders on May 4–5, 2023, at the JW Marriot Desert 
Springs Resort & Spa. This two-day event brings together elected officials, policymakers, 
business and civic leaders, transportation and environmental stakeholders, government staff 
and others for solution-oriented discussions on crucial challenges facing communities across 
the SCAG region.   
 
Register by Friday, March 31 to get $100 off the general admission price. The event is free for 
elected officials and city managers in the region.   
 
For more information about the event, please visit scag.ca.gov/ga2023. Interested in becoming 
a sponsor? Click here.  
 

71

https://cvent.me/Br4eAL?RefId=email
https://scag.ca.gov/2023-regional-conference-general-assembly
https://scag.ca.gov/2023-regional-conference-general-assembly
https://scag.ca.gov/sites/main/files/file-attachments/23-3056-ga-sponsorship-brochure-final.pdf


Page | 4 of 5 

UPDATE ON REGIONAL ADVANCE MITIGATION PLANNING AND SOCAL 

GREENPRINT  

The Regional Council approved the Regional Advanced Mitigation Planning (RAMP) Policy 
Framework in February. RAMP is a process to expedite project delivery by planning for 
environmental mitigation to reduce environmental impacts earlier in the planning process 
and at a wider scale.  
 
This decision supports advanced mitigation in the region and directs the creation of the 
Greenprint Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) to ensure the future SoCal Greenprint tool 
is aligned with policy objectives identified in the framework. Recruitment for the TAC will 
begin in the next month, with letters to agencies and organizations asking for nominations, 
as well as outreach to SCAG’s advisory groups to help spread the word.  
 
The TAC will convene in Spring 2023 and will advise staff on the development of SoCal 
Greenprint – a tool to help stakeholders make early and informed decisions about 
infrastructure, growth and conservation, and to mitigate the environmental impacts of 
Connect SoCal, the Regional Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategy.  
 
SCAG staff are currently initiating a competitive procurement process for a consultant to 
facilitate the TAC and complete the SoCal Greenprint tool.  
 

SURVEY TO SUPPORT PERMIT STREAMLINING FOR BROADBAND 

INFRASTRUCTURE NOW OPEN  

To support the expansion of broadband access across the region, SCAG and the San Diego 
Association of Governments are working towards creating a universal permit and model 
ordinance to expedite the permitting process and have developed a survey seeking input from 
local jurisdictions in developing a Permit Streamlining Manual to support the rapid deployment 
of broadband infrastructure.  
 
The survey has two sections, "Planning" and "Public Works," to reflect different roles in 
permitting broadband infrastructure, and seeks to understand the existing laws, policies and 
resources affecting conditions in each jurisdiction.  
 

• Permit Streamlining Survey for Planning  

• Permit Streamlining Survey for Public Works  
 
The surveys are open through March 23. For more details on SCAG's permit streamlining 
survey efforts, contact Roland Ok at ok@scag.ca.gov. 
 

GO HUMAN COMMUNITY HUBS GUIDELINES NOW AVAILABLE 

The guidelines for the 2023 Go Human Community Hubs Program were released last month. 
The program offers funding opportunities for community organizations to implement local traffic 
safety and community engagement strategies that leverage community gatherings, resource 
sites and networks.  The Program will award up to $40,000 to selected projects; interested 
applicants are invited to review the Program Guidelines in anticipation of the Spring 2023 Call 
for Applications. SCAG expects to host an informational webinar when the Call opens. 

The full March Executive Director’s Report is available here   

72

https://scag.ca.gov/sites/main/files/file-attachments/final-approved-ramp-policy-framework-020223.pdf
https://scag.ca.gov/sites/main/files/file-attachments/final-approved-ramp-policy-framework-020223.pdf
https://forms.office.com/pages/responsepage.aspx?id=bSodmOQ9r0OHPtuB0Q6dFip1iX-o4xdOqptJNAL_0mtUMzhKNlQ5NlhRSDhGUTNZVlBWVFRTUENOOS4u
https://forms.office.com/pages/responsepage.aspx?id=bSodmOQ9r0OHPtuB0Q6dFip1iX-o4xdOqptJNAL_0mtUME9WMDBYU0tORDE1S1JIODZHNUUyMjNXRy4u
mailto:Ok@scag.ca.gov
https://scag.ca.gov/apply-funding?utm_source=SCAG+Community&utm_campaign=dd29a971e4-GO_HUMAN_2023_02_14&utm_medium=email&utm_term=0_-dd29a971e4-%5BLIST_EMAIL_ID%5D
https://scag.ca.gov/sites/main/files/file-attachments/23-2821-gh-communityhub-guidelines-8.5x11-v1-jan-23-23.pdf?1675298154&utm_source=SCAG+Community&utm_campaign=dd29a971e4-GO_HUMAN_2023_02_14&utm_medium=email&utm_term=0_-dd29a971e4-%5BLIST_EMAIL_ID%5D
https://scag-my.sharepoint.com/personal/wagner_scag_ca_gov/Documents/Documents/SCAG%20Monthly%20Highlights/scag.ca.gov/edr-mar-23


Page | 5 of 5 

UPCOMING MEETING 

 

MARCH 

• 9th Equity Working Group 

• 15th SCAG/SANDAG Housing Forum 

• 16th Technical Working Group  

• 21st Legislative/ Communications and Membership Committee 

• 22nd Safe and Active Streets Working Group 

• 22nd General Assembly Host Committee 

• 23rd Development Streamlining Workshop #1 

• 28th Transportation Conformity Working Group 

• 29th Regional Transit Technical Advisory Committee 

APRIL 

• 5th Executive Administration Committee 

• 6th Community, Economic and Human Development Committee  

• 6th Energy and Environment Committee  

• 6th Transportation Committee  

• 6th Regional Council  

• 13th General Assembly Host Committee  

• 13th Development Streamlining Workshop #2 

• 18th Housing Working Group  

• 25th Transportation Conformity Working Group 

 

73



Item 5.E

Western Riverside Council of Governments
Technical Advisory Committee

Staff Report

Subject: Finance Department Activities Update
Contact: Andrew Ruiz, Chief Financial Officer, aruiz@wrcog.us, (951) 405-6740
Date: April 20, 2023

 

 
 
 
Requested Action(s): 

1. Receive and file.

Purpose: 
The purpose of this item is to provide an update on the Agency financials through February 2023.

WRCOG 2022-2027 Strategic Plan Goal: 
Goal #3 - Ensure fiscal solvency and stability of the Western Riverside Council of Governments.

Background: 
On April 3, 2023, the Executive Committee adopted a new Strategic Plan with specific fiscal-related
goals:
 

1. Maintain sound, responsible fiscal policies.
2. Develop a process to vet fiscal impact(s) and potential risk(s) for all new programs and projects.
3. Provide detailed financial statements for public review online.

 
Regarding goal #1, staff have planned out a process to go through and revise all of its fiscal-related
policies. They plan to have them vetted and revised by the end of the fiscal year.  Staff will begin by
updating its investment policy with the assistance of its financial advisor, Public Financial Management
(PFM), and will seek input from the Finance Directors Committee at its next meeting.
 
Regarding goal #3, staff have updated the public financial statements with significantly more detail,
including breaking out each line item by fund, department, and program.  These detailed financial
statements provide more transparency into each of the Agency's funds and programs.
 
As staff continue to work through these goals, input from WRCOG's Committee structure will be
important to ensure the goals are met.
 
Financial Report Summary Through February 2023
 
The Agency's Financial Report summary through February 2023, a detailed overview of WRCOG's
financial statements in the form of combined Agency revenues and costs, plus a detailed breakout, are

74

mailto:aruiz@wrcog.us


provided as an attachment to this Staff Report.
 
The Financial Report also includes a fund-level, budget-to-actual report, as well as additional graphs. 
Additionally, some account descriptions have been broken out and cleaned up.  These changes have
been made based on input received from members of WRCOG's various committees.
 
Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/2024 Agency Budget
 
While work on the Fiscal Year 2023/2024 budget process started earlier in the Fiscal Year with the
Classification and Compensation Study and long-range fiscal modeling, staff have started to bring
forward items related to the Fiscal Year 2023/2024 budget to its various committees, starting with the
Finance Directors Committee in February.  A separate item on the budget is in this agenda packet with
additional details.

Prior Action(s): 
April 12, 2023:  The Administration and Finance Committee received and filed.

Fiscal Impact: 
This item is for informational purposes only; therefore, there is no fiscal impact.  Finance Department
activities are included in the Agency's adopted Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Budget under the Administration
Department under Fund 110.

Attachment(s):
Attachment 1 - February 2023 Agency Financials

75

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1897921/Attachment_1-_February_2023_Agency_Financials.pdf


 

 

 

 
Attachment 

February 2023 
Agency Financials

76

lfernandez
Typewritten text
`



Description Actual FY 23 Budget Variance

Revenues
Member Dues 294,410              294,410                  -                       
Fellowship 81,948                100,000                  18,052                 
Operating Transfer Out 1,359,145           2,476,847              1,117,701           
Solid Waste - SB1383 117,593              117,593                  -                       
HERO Admin Revenue 337,685              1,130,000              792,315              
Greenworks PACE Commercial Revenue 69,021                100,000                  30,979                 
Twain PACE Commercial Revenue -                       10,000                    10,000                 
PACE  Funding Recording Revenue 38                        -                          (38)                       
Regional Streetlights Revenue 131,852              135,542                  3,691                   
Solid Waste 174,206              173,157                  (1,049)                  
Used Oil Grants 198,398              198,398                  -                       
Clean Cities 123,800              270,167                  146,367              
Inland Regional Energy Network (I-REN) 614,991              7,738,349              7,123,358           
REAP Revenue 230,186              750,000                  519,814              
LTF Revenue 1,072,500           1,072,500              -                       
Other Misc Revenue-RIVTAM 17,500                25,000                    7,500                   
TUMF Commercial - Admin Fee 39,778                72,000                    32,222                 
TUMF Retail - Admin Fee 36,449                72,000                    35,551                 
TUMF Industrial - Admin Fee 341,913              480,000                  138,087              
TUMF Single Family - Admin Fee 1,010,786           1,320,000              309,214              
TUMF Multi Family - Admin Fee 395,815              456,000                  60,185                 
TUMF Commercial - Program Revenue 1,057,278           1,728,000              670,722              
TUMF Retail - Program Revenue 677,113              1,728,000              1,050,887           
TUMF Industrial - Program Revenue 9,013,947           11,520,000            2,506,053           
TUMF Single Family - Program Revenue 23,117,161         31,680,000            8,562,839           
TUMF Multi Family - Program Revenue 9,084,549           10,944,000            1,859,451           
Beaumont TUMF Settlement Revenue 1,955,458           10,884,000            8,928,542           
General Fund Investment / Interest Revenue 90,508                180,000                  89,492                 
TUMF Investment Revenue / Earnings 797,305              1,985,000              1,187,695           
Total Revenues 52,441,335$      87,640,963$          35,199,628$      

Western Riverside Council of Governments
Budget-to-Actuals

As of February 28, 2023

77



Description Actual FY 23 Budget Variance

Western Riverside Council of Governments
Budget-to-Actuals

As of February 28, 2023

Expenses
Salaries & Wages - Fulltime 1,782,219           3,254,202              1,471,983           
Fringe Benefits 811,872              1,448,358              636,486              
Overhead Allocation 1,157,638           2,174,586              1,016,947           
General Legal Services 1,391,414           2,057,092              665,678              
Audit Svcs - Professional Fees -                       30,000                    30,000                 
Bank Fees 3,525                   67,008                    63,483                 
Commissioners Per Diem 43,050                72,000                    28,950                 
Parking Cost 19,309                28,000                    8,691                   
Office Lease 225,581              340,000                  114,419              
WRCOG Auto Fuels Expenses 104                      1,000                      896                      
WRCOG Auto Maintenance Expense -                       500                         500                      
Parking Validations 4,820                   20,712                    15,892                 
Staff Recognition 2,547                   3,100                      553                      
Coffee and Supplies 411                      2,500                      2,089                   
Event Support 81,618                164,750                  83,132                 
Program/Office Supplies 8,999                   22,550                    13,551                 
Computer Supplies 2,669                   7,000                      4,331                   
Computer Software 38,762                102,500                  63,738                 
Rent/Lease Equipment 8,440                   15,000                    6,560                   
Membership Dues 17,497                362,250                  344,753              
Subscriptions/Publications 22,822                9,200                      (13,622)               
Meeting Support Services 357                      3,350                      2,993                   
Postage 4,034                   7,850                      3,816                   
Other Expenses 1,698                   4,600                      2,902                   
Storage 3,703                   5,500                      1,797                   
Printing Services 1,856                   6,650                      4,794                   
Computer Hardware 1,410                   11,700                    10,290                 
Misc Office Equipment -                       3,000                      3,000                   
Communications - Regular Phone 14,771                17,500                    2,729                   
Communications - Cellular Phones 7,717                   17,650                    9,933                   
Communications - Computer Services 5,743                   40,000                    34,257                 
Communications  - Web Site 6,610                   8,000                      1,390                   
Equipment Maintenance 290                      7,500                      7,210                   
Maintenance - Building and Improvement 13,034                12,000                    (1,034)                  

78



Description Actual FY 23 Budget Variance

Western Riverside Council of Governments
Budget-to-Actuals

As of February 28, 2023

Insurance - Gen/Busi Liab/Auto 73,569                104,266                  30,697                 
WRCOG Auto Insurance 3,181                   6,000                      2,819                   
Data Processing Support 15,649                8,000                      (7,649)                  
Recording Fee 5,362                   13,000                    7,638                   
Seminars/Conferences 11,659                31,850                    20,191                 
Travel - Mileage Reimbursement 4,013                   31,910                    27,897                 
Travel - Ground Transportation 932                      15,050                    14,118                 
Travel - Airfare 2,876                   56,750                    53,874                 
Lodging 9,469                   110,100                  100,631              
Meals 4,096                   16,990                    12,894                 
Other Incidentals 29                        1,500                      1,471                   
Training 3,137                   159,375                  156,238              
OPEB Repayment -                       110,526                  110,526              
Supplies/Materials 1,232                   8,650                      7,418                   
Advertising Media - Newspaper Ad 29,000                29,048                    48                        
Staff Education Reimbursement -                       7,500                      7,500                   
Compliance Settlements 75,280                100,000                  24,720                 
Direct Costs -                       1,111,056              1,111,056           
Consulting Labor 1,434,721           5,241,110              3,806,389           
TUMF Project Reimbursement 3,333,405           25,000,000            21,666,595         
COG REN Reimbursement -                       1,474,000              1,474,000           
Beaumont Settlement Distributions 525,000              6,488,595              5,963,595           
Total Expenses 11,217,128$      50,452,884$          39,235,756$      

79



Revenues

Member Dues Fellowship Operating Transfer Out

Solid Waste - SB1383 HERO Admin Revenue Greenworks PACE Commercial Revenue
Twain PACE Commercial Revenue PACE  Funding Recording Revenue Regional Streetlights Revenue
Solid Waste Used Oil Grants Clean Cities

Inland Regional Energy Network (I-REN) REAP Revenue LTF Revenue
Other Misc Revenue-RIVTAM TUMF Commercial - Admin Fee TUMF Retail - Admin Fee

TUMF Industrial - Admin Fee TUMF Single Family - Admin Fee TUMF Multi Family - Admin Fee
TUMF Commercial - Program Revenue TUMF Retail - Program Revenue TUMF Industrial - Program Revenue
TUMF Single Family - Program Revenue TUMF Multi Family - Program Revenue Beaumont TUMF Settlement Revenue

General Fund Investment / Interest Revenue TUMF Investment Revenue / Earnings

80



Expenditures

Salaries & Wages - Fulltime Fringe Benefits Overhead Allocation General Legal Services

Audit Svcs - Professional Fees Bank Fees Commissioners Per Diem Parking Cost

Office Lease WRCOG Auto Fuels Expenses WRCOG Auto Maintenance Expense Parking Validations

Staff Recognition Coffee and Supplies Event Support Program/Office Supplies

Computer Supplies Computer Software Rent/Lease Equipment Membership Dues

Subscriptions/Publications Meeting Support Services Postage Other Expenses

Storage Printing Services Computer Hardware Misc Office Equipment

Communications - Regular Phone Communications - Cellular Phones Communications - Computer Services Communications  - Web Site

Equipment Maintenance Maintenance - Building and Improvement Insurance - Gen/Busi Liab/Auto WRCOG Auto Insurance

Data Processing Support Recording Fee Seminars/Conferences Travel - Mileage Reimbursement

Travel - Ground Transportation Travel - Airfare Lodging Meals

Other Incidentals Training OPEB Repayment Supplies/Materials

Advertising Media - Newspaper Ad Staff Education Reimbursement Compliance Settlements Direct Costs

Consulting Labor TUMF Project Reimbursement COG REN Reimbursement Beaumont Settlement Distributions

81



Fund Department Account Project Location Description Actual FY 23 Budget Variance

Revenues
110 12 40001 0000 0000 Member Dues 294,410$                  294,410$                   -$                          
110 12 49001 0000 0000 Interest Revenue - Other 90,508                       180,000                     89,492                     
110 12 97001 0000 0000 Operating Transfer Out 1,359,145                 2,476,847                  1,117,701                

Total Revenues 1,744,064$               2,951,257$               1,207,193$              

Expenses
110 12 60001 0000 0000 Salaries & Wages - Fulltime 550,068$                  989,480$                   439,412$                 
110 12 61000 0000 0000 Fringe Benefits 368,383                    449,211                     80,829                     
110 12 65101 0000 0000 General Legal Services 51,745                       115,000                     63,255                     
110 12 65401 0000 0000 Audit Svcs - Professional Fees -                             30,000                       30,000                     
110 12 65505 0000 0000 Bank Fees -                             2,000                          2,000                        
110 12 65507 0000 0000 Commissioners Per Diem 43,050                       70,000                       26,950                     
110 12 71615 0000 0000 Parking Cost 19,309                       28,000                       8,691                        
110 12 73001 0000 0000 Office Lease 225,581                    340,000                     114,419                   
110 12 73003 0000 0000 WRCOG Auto Fuels Expenses 104                            1,000                          896                           
110 12 73004 0000 0000 WRCOG Auto Maintenance Expense -                             500                             500                           
110 12 73102 0000 0000 Parking Validations 1,559                         10,000                       8,442                        
110 12 73104 0000 0000 Staff Recognition 2,287                         3,100                          813                           
110 12 73106 0000 0000 Coffee and Supplies 411                            2,500                          2,089                        
110 12 73107 0000 0000 Event Support 14,400                       45,000                       30,600                     
110 12 73108 0000 0000 Program/Office Supplies 8,854                         20,000                       11,146                     
110 12 73109 0000 0000 Computer Equipment/Supplies 2,669                         5,500                          2,831                        
110 12 73110 0000 0000 Computer Software 24,735                       35,000                       10,265                     
110 12 73111 0000 0000 Rent/Lease Equipment 8,440                         15,000                       6,560                        
110 12 73113 0000 0000 Membership Dues 14,952                       30,000                       15,048                     
110 12 73114 0000 0000 Subscription/Publications 13,630                       6,000                          (7,630)                      
110 12 73115 0000 0000 Meeting Support Services 95                              500                             405                           
110 12 73116 0000 0000 Postage 3,662                         5,000                          1,338                        
110 12 73117 0000 0000 Other Household Exp 1,698                         1,500                          (198)                          
110 12 73119 0000 0000 Storage 432                            1,500                          1,068                        
110 12 73120 0000 0000 Printing Services 1,856                         1,000                          (856)                          

Western Riverside Council of Governments
Budget-to-Actuals

As of February 28, 2023

Administration

82



Fund Department Account Project Location Description Actual FY 23 Budget Variance

Western Riverside Council of Governments
Budget-to-Actuals

As of February 28, 2023

110 12 73122 0000 0000 Computer Hardware 1,410                         8,000                          6,590                        
110 12 73201 0000 0000 Communications - Regular Phone 14,771                       17,500                       2,729                        
110 12 73204 0000 0000 Communications - Cellular Phones 2,981                         7,500                          4,519                        
110 12 73206 0000 0000 Communications - Computer Services 5,743                         40,000                       34,257                     
110 12 73209 0000 0000 Communications  - Web Site 6,610                         8,000                          1,390                        
110 12 73302 0000 0000 Equipment Maintenance - Comp/Software 290                            5,000                          4,710                        
110 12 73303 0000 0000 Maintenance - Building and Improvement 13,034                       12,000                       (1,034)                      
110 12 73405 0000 0000 Insurance - Gen/Busi Liab/Auto 73,569                       100,266                     26,697                     
110 12 73407 0000 0000 WRCOG Auto Insurance 3,181                         6,000                          2,819                        
110 12 73601 0000 0000 Seminars/Conferences 6,141                         3,500                          (2,641)                      
110 12 73611 0000 0000 Travel - Mileage Reimbursement 1,941                         3,500                          1,559                        
110 12 73612 0000 0000 Travel - Ground Transportation 416                            1,500                          1,084                        
110 12 73613 0000 0000 Travel - Airfare 1,131                         3,000                          1,869                        
110 12 73620 0000 0000 Lodging 3,595                         1,500                          (2,095)                      
110 12 73630 0000 0000 Meals 2,272                         3,500                          1,228                        
110 12 73650 0000 0000 Training 2,447                         30,000                       27,553                     
110 12 73660 0000 0000 OPEB Repayment -                             110,526                     110,526                   
110 12 73801 0000 0000 Staff Education Reimbursement -                             7,500                          7,500                        
110 12 85100 0000 0000 Direct Costs -                             111,056                     111,056                   
110 12 85101 0000 0000 Consulting Labor 190,084                    250,000                     59,916                     

Total Expenses 1,687,536$               2,936,639$               1,249,103$              

83



Fund Department Account Project Location Description Actual FY 23 Budget Variance

Western Riverside Council of Governments
Budget-to-Actuals

As of February 28, 2023

Revenues
110 12 40009 4700 0000 Fellowship 81,948$                    100,000$                   18,052$                   

Total Revenues 81,948$                    100,000$                   18,052$                   

Expenses
110 12 60001 4700 0000 Salaries & Wages - Fulltime 27,181$                    174,412$                   147,231$                 
110 12 61000 4700 0000 Fringe Benefits 1,823                         15,660                       13,837                     
110 12 65101 4700 0000 General Legal Services 507                            100                             (407)                          
110 12 73102 4700 0000 Parking Validations -                             1,000                          1,000                        
110 12 73104 4700 0000 Staff Recognition 260                            -                              (260)                          
110 12 73107 4700 0000 Event Support -                             1,000                          1,000                        
110 12 73108 4700 0000 Program/Office Supplies -                             500                             500                           
110 12 73115 4700 0000 Meeting Support Services -                             250                             250                           
110 12 73116 4700 0000 Postage -                             100                             100                           
110 12 73601 4700 0000 Seminars/Conferences -                             150                             150                           
110 12 73611 4700 0000 Travel - Mileage Reimbursement -                             1,000                          1,000                        
110 12 73612 4700 0000 Travel - Ground Transportation -                             150                             150                           
110 12 73630 4700 0000 Meals -                             350                             350                           
110 12 73650 4700 0000 Training -                             250                             250                           
110 12 85101 4700 0000 Consulting Labor -                             500                             500                           

Total Expenses 29,771$                    195,422$                   165,651$                 

Fellowship

84



Fund Department Account Project Location Description Actual FY 23 Budget Variance

Western Riverside Council of Governments
Budget-to-Actuals

As of February 28, 2023

Revenues
120 80 41402 1010 0000 Air Quality - Other Reimburse 123,800$                  270,167$                   146,367$                 
120 80 41701 1010 0000 LTF Revenue 70,000                       70,000                       -                            

Total Revenues 193,800$                  340,167$                   146,367$                 

Expenses
120 80 60001 1010 0000 Salaries & Wages - Fulltime 91,999$                    170,523$                   78,524$                   
120 80 61000 1010 0000 Fringe Benefits 32,202                       86,260                       54,058                     
120 80 63000 1010 0000 Overhead Allocation 24,000                       36,000                       12,000                     
120 80 73107 1010 0000 Event Support 8,354                         10,000                       1,646                        
120 80 73115 1010 0000 Meeting Support Services 246                            500                             254                           
120 80 73122 1010 0000 Computer Hardware -                             700                             700                           
120 80 73204 1010 0000 Communications - Cellular Phones 354                            600                             246                           
120 80 73601 1010 0000 Seminars/Conferences -                             1,000                          1,000                        
120 80 73611 1010 0000 Travel - Mileage Reimbursement 64                              500                             436                           
120 80 73612 1010 0000 Travel - Ground Transportation 392                            750                             358                           
120 80 73613 1010 0100 Travel - Airfare 1,253                         3,500                          2,247                        
120 80 73620 1010 0100 Lodging 2,166                         3,500                          1,334                        
120 80 73630 1010 0000 Meals 159                            500                             341                           
120 80 73640 1010 0000 Other Incidentals -                             500                             500                           
120 80 73703 1010 0000 Supplies/Materials -                             1,000                          1,000                        
120 80 85101 1010 0000 Consulting Labor 14,668                       23,950                       9,282                        

Total Expenses 175,858$                  339,783$                   163,924$                 

Clean Cities

85



Fund Department Account Project Location Description Actual FY 23 Budget Variance

Western Riverside Council of Governments
Budget-to-Actuals

As of February 28, 2023

Revenues
110 80 41201 1035 0000 Solid Waste 50,000$                    50,000$                     -$                          

Total Revenues 50,000$                    50,000$                     -$                         

Expenses
110 80 60001 1035 0000 Salaries 5,417$                       9,086$                       3,669$                     
110 80 61000 1035 0000 Fringe Benefits 1,574                         4,518                          2,944                        
110 80 65101 1035 0000 General Legal Services 135                            -                              (135)                          
110 80 73107 1035 0000 Event Support 3,600                         10,000                       6,400                        
110 80 85101 1035 0000 Consulting Labor -                             26,396                       26,396                     

Total Expenses 10,726$                    50,000$                     39,274$                   

Love Your Neighborhood

86



Fund Department Account Project Location Description Actual FY 23 Budget Variance

Western Riverside Council of Governments
Budget-to-Actuals

As of February 28, 2023

Revenues
110 80 40301 1038 0000 Solid Waste - SB1383 117,593$                  117,593$                   -$                          
110 80 41201 1038 0000 Solid Waste 124,206                    123,157                     (1,049)                      

Total Revenues 241,800$                  240,750$                   (1,049)$                    

Expenses
110 80 60001 1038 0000 Salaries 39,127$                    61,429$                     22,301$                   
110 80 61000 1038 0000 Fringe Benefits 10,714                       31,224                       20,510                     
110 80 63000 1038 0000 Overhead Allocation 8,000                         12,000                       4,000                        
110 80 65101 1038 0000 Legal 1,048                         1,000                          (48)                            
110 80 73102 1038 0000 Parking Validations -                             500                             500                           
110 80 73107 1038 0000 Event Support 733                            2,000                          1,267                        
110 80 73114 1038 0000 Subscriptions/Publications -                             250                             250                           
110 80 73204 1038 0000 Cell Phone Expense 600                            500                             (100)                          
110 80 73209 1038 0000 Communications  - Web Site -                             -                              -                            
110 80 73601 1038 0000 Seminars/Conferences 285                            500                             215                           
110 80 73611 1038 0000 Mileage Reimbursement -                             250                             250                           
110 80 73612 1038 0000 Ground Transportation -                             150                             150                           
110 80 73613 1038 0000 Airfare -                             250                             250                           
110 80 73630 1038 0000 Meals -                             500                             500                           
110 80 73650 1038 0000 Training 235                            500                             265                           
110 80 85101 1038 0000 Consulting Labor 88,824                       129,556                     40,733                     

Total Expenses 149,566$                  240,609$                   91,043$                   

Solid Waste

87



Fund Department Account Project Location Description Actual FY 23 Budget Variance

Western Riverside Council of Governments
Budget-to-Actuals

As of February 28, 2023

Revenues
140 80 41401 2057 0000 Used Oil Grants 198,398$                  198,398$                   -$                          

Total Revenues 198,398$                  198,398$                   -$                         

Expenses
140 80 60001 2057 0000 Salaries & Wages - Fulltime 49,843$                    76,400$                     26,557$                   
140 80 61000 2057 0000 Fringe Benefits 14,423                       38,486                       24,063                     
140 80 63000 2057 0000 Overhead Allocation 13,226                       19,839                       6,613                        
140 80 65101 2057 0000 General Legal Services -                             1,000                          1,000                        
140 80 73102 2057 0000 Parking Validations -                             250                             250                           
140 80 73107 2057 0000 Event Support 29,531                       20,000                       (9,531)                      
140 80 73108 2057 0000 Program/Office Supplies -                             500                             500                           
140 80 73113 2057 0000 Membership Dues -                             500                             500                           
140 80 73115 2057 0000 Meeting Support Services -                             1,000                          1,000                        
140 80 73119 2057 0000 Storage 3,271                         4,000                          729                           
140 80 73120 2057 0000 Printing Services -                             1,000                          1,000                        
140 80 73204 2057 0000 Communications - Cellular Phones 322                            200                             (122)                          
140 80 73405 2057 0000 Insurance - Gen/Busi Liab/Auto -                             1,000                          1,000                        
140 80 73601 2057 0000 Seminars/Conferences 700                            2,000                          1,300                        
140 80 73611 2057 0000 Travel - Mileage Reimbursement -                             1,000                          1,000                        
140 80 73612 2057 0000 Travel - Ground Transportation -                             500                             500                           
140 80 73613 2057 0000 Travel - Airfare 492                            -                              (492)                          
140 80 73620 2057 0000 Meals 331                            -                              (331)                          
140 80 73630 2057 0000 Meals -                             500                             500                           
140 80 73703 2057 0000 Supplies/Materials -                             1,000                          1,000                        
140 80 73704 2057 0000 Advertising Media - Newspaper Ad 29,000                       29,048                       48                             

Total Expenses 141,139$                  198,223$                   57,084$                   

Used Oil

88



Fund Department Account Project Location Description Actual FY 23 Budget Variance

Western Riverside Council of Governments
Budget-to-Actuals

As of February 28, 2023

Revenues
110 67 40615 2026 0000 Regional Streetlights Revenue 131,852$                  135,542$                   3,691$                     

Total Revenues 131,852$                  135,542$                   3,691$                     

Expenses
110 67 60001 2026 0000 Salaries 56,505$                    67,444$                     10,940$                   
110 67 61000 2026 0000 Fringe Benefits 15,183                       27,245                       12,063                     
110 67 63000 2026 0000 Overhead Allocation 8,000                         12,000                       4,000                        
110 67 65101 2026 0000 Legal 9,025                         750                             (8,275)                      
110 67 65505 2026 0000 Streetllights Bank Fees -                             508                             508                           
110 67 73102 2026 0000 Parking Validations -                             150                             150                           
110 67 73107 2026 0000 Event Support -                             1,000                          1,000                        
110 67 73108 2026 0000 Program/Office Supplies -                             500                             500                           
110 67 73114 2026 0000 Subscriptions/Publications -                             1,600                          1,600                        
110 67 73115 2026 0000 Meeting&Support -                             600                             600                           
110 67 73116 2026 0000 Postage 33                              150                             117                           
110 67 73204 2026 0000 Communications - Cellular Phones 405                            500                             95                             
110 67 73601 2026 0000 Seminars/Conferences -                             1,200                          1,200                        
110 67 73611 2026 0000 Travel - Mileage Reimbursement 145                            250                             105                           
110 67 73612 2026 0000 Travel-Ground Transportation 123                            500                             377                           
110 67 73613 2026 0000 Travel - Airfare -                             1,000                          1,000                        
110 67 73620 2026 0000 Lodging 574                            800                             226                           
110 67 73630 2026 0000 Meals 32                              250                             218                           
110 67 73650 2026 0000 Training -                             500                             500                           
110 67 73703 2026 0000 Supplies/Materials 1,050                         2,900                          1,850                        
110 67 85101 2026 0000 Consulting Labor 2,100                         15,433                       13,333                     

Total Expenses 93,174$                    135,280$                   42,107$                   

Streetlights

89



Fund Department Account Project Location Description Actual FY 23 Budget Variance

Western Riverside Council of Governments
Budget-to-Actuals

As of February 28, 2023

Revenues
180 67 41480 2080 71XX IREN - Public Sector 287,665$                  4,739,958$                4,452,293$              

Total Revenues 287,665$                  4,739,958$               4,452,293$              

Expenses
180 67 60001 2080 7101 Salaries & Wages - Fulltime 108,037$                  221,281$                   113,243$                 
180 67 61000 2080 7101 Fringe Benefits 34,479                       100,535                     66,056                     
180 67 63000 2080 7101 Overhead Allocation 87,305                       350,457                     263,152                   
180 67 65101 2080 7101 General Legal Services 3,673                         5,194                          1,521                        
180 67 65101 2080 7111 General Legal Services 3,673                         5,194                          1,521                        
180 67 65101 2080 7102 General Legal Services 1,631                         2,306                          675                           
180 67 65101 2080 7112 General Legal Services 1,631                         2,306                          675                           
180 67 65505 2080 7101 Bank Fees -                             1,500                          1,500                        
180 67 73102 2080 7101 Parking Validations -                             1,000                          1,000                        
180 67 73107 2080 7103 Event Support 4,167                         12,500                       8,333                        
180 67 73107 2080 7113 Event Support 4,167                         12,500                       8,333                        
180 67 73113 2080 7101 Membership Dues -                             25,000                       25,000                     
180 67 73117 2080 7101 Other Household Exp -                             1,000                          1,000                        
180 67 73120 2080 7101 Printing Services -                             2,500                          2,500                        
180 67 73122 2080 7101 Computer Hardware -                             1,000                          1,000                        
180 67 73125 2080 7101 Misc. Office Equipment -                             1,000                          1,000                        
180 67 73204 2080 7101 Communications - Cellular Phones 463                            3,600                          3,137                        
180 67 73601 2080 7101 Seminars/Conferences -                             10,000                       10,000                     
180 67 73611 2080 7101 Travel - Mileage Reimbursement 602                            10,530                       9,928                        
180 67 73612 2080 7101 Travel - Ground Transportation -                             5,000                          5,000                        
180 67 73613 2080 7101 Travel - Airfare -                             25,000                       25,000                     
180 67 73620 2080 7101 Lodging 336                            35,004                       34,668                     
180 67 73620 2080 7111 Lodging 336                            34,996                       34,661                     
180 67 73630 2080 7101 Meals 50                              1,504                          1,454                        
180 67 73630 2080 7111 Meals 46                              1,376                          1,330                        
180 67 73703 2080 7101 Supplies/Materials -                             1,000                          1,000                        
180 67 85100 2080 7101 Direct Costs -                             1,000,000                  1,000,000                

Inland Regional Energy Network - Public Sector

90



Fund Department Account Project Location Description Actual FY 23 Budget Variance

Western Riverside Council of Governments
Budget-to-Actuals

As of February 28, 2023

180 67 85101 2080 7101 Consulting Labor 12,204                       638,806                     626,602                   
180 67 85101 2080 7102 Consulting Labor 2,946                         154,184                     151,238                   
180 67 85101 2080 7103 Consulting Labor 3,386                         177,221                     173,835                   
180 67 85101 2080 7111 Consulting Labor 12,832                       671,685                     658,853                   
180 67 85101 2080 7112 Consulting Labor 2,946                         154,184                     151,238                   
180 67 85101 2080 7113 Consulting Labor 2,758                         144,341                     141,584                   
180 67 85182 2080 7101 COG REN Reimbursement -                             916,256                     916,256                   

Total Expenses 287,665$                  4,729,958$               4,442,294$              

91



Fund Department Account Project Location Description Actual FY 23 Budget Variance

Western Riverside Council of Governments
Budget-to-Actuals

As of February 28, 2023

Revenues
180 67 41480 2080 72XX IREN - Workforce Education and Training 212,325$                  1,923,361$                1,711,036$              

Total Revenues 212,325$                  1,923,361$               1,711,036$              

Expenses
180 67 60001 2080 7201 Salaries & Wages - Fulltime 68,945$                    136,088$                   67,143$                   
180 67 61000 2080 7201 Fringe Benefits 27,381                       56,124                       28,743                     
180 67 63000 2080 7201 Overhead Allocation 59,009                       111,309                     52,300                     
180 67 65101 2080 7201 General Legal Services 3,673                         5,194                          1,521                        
180 67 65101 2080 7202 General Legal Services 1,631                         2,306                          675                           
180 67 65101 2080 7211 General Legal Services 3,673                         5,194                          1,521                        
180 67 65101 2080 7212 General Legal Services 1,631                         2,306                          675                           
180 67 73102 2080 7201 Parking Validations -                             1,000                          1,000                        
180 67 73107 2080 7203 Event Support 4,167                         12,500                       8,333                        
180 67 73107 2080 7213 Event Support 4,167                         12,500                       8,333                        
180 67 73113 2080 7201 Membership Dues -                             302,000                     302,000                   
180 67 73117 2080 7201 Other Expenses -                             1,000                          1,000                        
180 67 73120 2080 7201 Printing Services -                             1,000                          1,000                        
180 67 73122 2080 7201 Computer Hardware -                             1,000                          1,000                        
180 67 73125 2080 7201 Misc Office Equipment -                             1,000                          1,000                        
180 67 73601 2080 7203 Seminars/Conferences 79                              1,250                          1,171                        
180 67 73601 2080 7213 Seminars/Conferences 79                              1,250                          1,171                        
180 67 73611 2080 7201 Mileage Reimbursement 54                              10,530                       10,476                     
180 67 73612 2080 7201 Ground Transportation -                             2,500                          2,500                        
180 67 73613 2080 7201 Airfare -                             10,000                       10,000                     
180 67 73620 2080 7201 Lodging 336                            7,000                          6,664                        
180 67 73620 2080 7211 Lodging 336                            7,000                          6,665                        
180 67 73630 2080 7201 Meals 50                              1,502                          1,452                        
180 67 73630 2080 7211 Meals 46                              1,378                          1,332                        
180 67 73650 2080 7201 Training -                             126,125                     126,125                   
180 67 73703 2080 7201 Supplies/Materials -                             500                             500                           
180 67 85101 2080 7201 Consulting Labor 12,204                       251,065                     238,861                   

Inland Regional Energy Network - Workforce Education and Training

92



Fund Department Account Project Location Description Actual FY 23 Budget Variance

Western Riverside Council of Governments
Budget-to-Actuals

As of February 28, 2023

180 67 85101 2080 7202 Consulting Labor 2,946                         60,598                       57,652                     
180 67 85101 2080 7203 Consulting Labor 3,386                         69,652                       66,266                     
180 67 85101 2080 7211 Consulting Labor 12,204                       251,065                     238,861                   
180 67 85101 2080 7212 Consulting Labor 2,946                         60,598                       57,652                     
180 67 85101 2080 7213 Consulting Labor 3,386                         69,652                       66,266                     
180 67 85182 2080 7201 COG REN Reimbursement -                             341,155                     341,155                   

Total Expenses 212,325$                  1,923,341$               1,711,016$              

93



Fund Department Account Project Location Description Actual FY 23 Budget Variance

Western Riverside Council of Governments
Budget-to-Actuals

As of February 28, 2023

Revenues
180 67 41480 2080 73XX IREN - Codes and Standards 115,002$                  1,075,030$                960,028$                 

Total Revenues 115,002$                  1,075,030$               960,028$                 

Expenses
180 67 60001 2080 7301 Salaries & Wages - Fulltime 27,172                       66,439                       39,267                     
180 67 61000 2080 7301 Fringe Benefits 8,900                         28,691                       19,792                     
180 67 63000 2080 7301 Overhead Allocation 22,098                       103,597                     81,500                     
180 67 65101 2080 7301 General Legal Services 3,673                         5,194                          1,521                        
180 67 65101 2080 7302 General Legal Services 1,631                         2,306                          675                           
180 67 65101 2080 7311 General Legal Services 3,673                         5,194                          1,521                        
180 67 65101 2080 7312 General Legal Services 1,631                         2,306                          675                           
180 67 73102 2080 7301 Parking Validations -                             1,000                          1,000                        
180 67 73107 2080 7303 Event Support 4,167                         12,500                       8,333                        
180 67 73107 2080 7313 Event Support 4,167                         12,500                       8,333                        
180 67 73113 2080 7301 Membership Dues -                             1,000                          1,000                        
180 67 73117 2080 7301 Other Expenses -                             1,000                          1,000                        
180 67 73120 2080 7301 Printing Services -                             1,000                          1,000                        
180 67 73122 2080 7301 Computer Hardware -                             1,000                          1,000                        
180 67 73125 2080 7301 Misc Office Equipment -                             1,000                          1,000                        
180 67 73601 2080 7301 Seminars/Conferences -                             2,500                          2,500                        
180 67 73611 2080 7301 Mileage Reimbursement 54                              1,000                          946                           
180 67 73612 2080 7301 Ground Transportation -                             2,500                          2,500                        
180 67 73613 2080 7301 Airfare -                             10,000                       10,000                     
180 67 73620 2080 7301 Lodging 336                            7,000                          6,664                        
180 67 73620 2080 7311 Lodging 336                            7,000                          6,664                        
180 67 73630 2080 7301 Meals 50                              1,502                          1,452                        
180 67 73630 2080 7311 Meals 46                              1,378                          1,332                        
180 67 73703 2080 7311 Supplies/Materials -                             500                             500                           
180 67 85101 2080 7301 Consulting Labor 12,204                       191,052                     178,848                   
180 67 85101 2080 7302 Consulting Labor 2,946                         46,113                       43,167                     
180 67 85101 2080 7303 Consulting Labor 3,386                         53,002                       49,617                     

Inland Regional Energy Network - Codes and Standards

94



Fund Department Account Project Location Description Actual FY 23 Budget Variance

Western Riverside Council of Governments
Budget-to-Actuals

As of February 28, 2023

180 67 85101 2080 7311 Consulting Labor 12,204                       191,051                     178,847                   
180 67 85101 2080 7312 Consulting Labor 2,946                         46,112                       43,167                     
180 67 85101 2080 7313 Consulting Labor 3,386                         53,002                       49,617                     
180 67 85182 2080 7301 COG REN Reimbursement -                             216,589                     216,589                   

Total Expenses 115,002$                  1,075,030$               960,028$                 

95



Fund Department Account Project Location Description Actual FY 23 Budget Variance

Western Riverside Council of Governments
Budget-to-Actuals

As of February 28, 2023

Revenues
110 67 40611 2104 0000 PACE  Revenue 38$                            -$                            (38)$                          

Total Revenues 38$                            -$                           (38)$                         

Expenses
110 67 73506 2104 0000 Recording Fee-PACE 68$                            -$                            (68)$                          

Total Expenses 68$                            -$                           (68)$                         

Revenues
110 67 40604 2105 0000 WRCOG HERO CAFTA Revenue 69,021$                    100,000$                   30,979$                   

Total Revenues 69,021$                    100,000$                   30,979$                   

Expenses
110 67 60001 2105 0000 Salaries & Wages -Greenworks Lending 39,165$                    61,792$                     22,627$                   
110 67 61000 2105 0000 Fringe Benefits 17,719                       31,869                       14,150$                   
110 67 63000 2105 0000 Overhead Allocation 16,000                       24,000                       8,000$                     
110 67 73506 2105 0000 Recording Fee 174                            1,000                          826$                         
110 67 85101 2105 0000 Consulting Labor 10,000                       24,757                       14,757$                   

Total Expenses 83,058$                    143,417$                   60,360$                   

Revenues
110 67 40607 2115 0000 PACE Commercial Sponsor Revenue -$                           10,000$                     10,000$                   

Total Revenues -$                           10,000$                     10,000$                   

Expenses
110 67 65101 2115 0000 General Legal Services 660$                          3,000$                       2,340$                     
110 67 73506 2115 0000 Recording Fee -                             2,000                          2,000                        
110 67 85101 2115 0000 Consulting Labor -                             5,000                          5,000                        

Total Expenses 660$                          10,000$                     9,340$                     

PACE Funding

Nuveen (Greenworks)

Twain

96



Fund Department Account Project Location Description Actual FY 23 Budget Variance

Western Riverside Council of Governments
Budget-to-Actuals

As of February 28, 2023

Expenses
110 67 60001 2225 0000 Salaries & Wages - Fulltime 8,001$                       8,035$                       34$                           
110 67 61000 2225 0000 Fringe Benefits 2,104                         3,635                          1,531                        
110 67 65101 2225 0000 General Legal Services 608                            250                             (358)                          
110 67 85101 2225 0000 Consulting Labor 84,275                       119,127                     34,853                     

Total Expenses 94,988$                    131,047$                   36,059$                   

California Resiliency Challenge

97



Fund Department Account Project Location Description Actual FY 23 Budget Variance

Western Riverside Council of Governments
Budget-to-Actuals

As of February 28, 2023

Revenues
110 67 40621 5000 0000 Hero Admin Fees 337,685$                  1,130,000$                792,315$                 

Total Revenues 337,685$                  1,130,000$               792,315$                 

Expenses
110 67 60001 5000 0000 Stwide AB811 Salaries & Wages 208,906$                  326,906$                   118,000$                 
110 67 61000 5000 0000 Fringe Benefit 92,520                       182,932                     90,412                     
110 67 63000 5000 0000 Overhead Allocation 266,667                    400,000                     133,333                   
110 67 65101 5000 0000 GENERAL LEGAL SERVICES 358,141                    400,000                     41,859                     
110 67 65505 5000 0000 Bank Fee 3,525                         48,000                       44,475                     
110 67 65507 5000 0000 Commissioners Per Diem -                             2,000                          2,000                        
110 67 73102 5000 0000 Parking Validations -                             200                             200                           
110 67 73107 5000 0000 Statewide - Event Support -                             500                             500                           
110 67 73108 5000 0000 General Supplies -                             300                             300                           
110 67 73109 5000 0000 Computer Supplies -                             1,000                          1,000                        
110 67 73110 5000 0000 Computer Software 4,997                         2,000                          (2,997)                      
110 67 73113 5000 0000 NWCC- Membership Dues 168                            1,500                          1,332                        
110 67 73114 5000 0000 Subscriptions/Publications 1,990                         1,000                          (990)                          
110 67 73115 5000 0000 Meeting Support Services 16                              500                             484                           
110 67 73116 5000 0000 Postage 339                            2,000                          1,661                        
110 67 73204 5000 0000 Cellular Phone 995                            1,500                          505                           
110 67 73504 5000 0000 Data Processing Support 15,649                       8,000                          (7,649)                      
110 67 73506 5000 0000 Recording Fee 5,120                         10,000                       4,880                        
110 67 73601 5000 0000 Seminar/Conferences -                             2,500                          2,500                        
110 67 73611 5000 0000 Travel - Mileage Reimbursement 33                              500                             468                           
110 67 73612 5000 0000 Travel - Ground Transportatoin -                             500                             500                           
110 67 73613 5000 0000 Travel - Airfare -                             2,500                          2,500                        
110 67 73620 5000 0000 Lodging -                             1,500                          1,500                        
110 67 73630 5000 0000 Meals 326                            500                             174                           
110 67 73640 5000 0000 Statewide Other Incidentals -                             500                             500                           
110 67 73650 5000 0000 Training 455                            2,000                          1,545                        
110 67 73703 5000 0000 Supplies/Materials -                             1,500                          1,500                        

HERO 

98



Fund Department Account Project Location Description Actual FY 23 Budget Variance

Western Riverside Council of Governments
Budget-to-Actuals

As of February 28, 2023

110 67 81010 5000 0000 Compliance Settlements 75,280                       100,000                     24,720                     
110 67 85101 5000 0000 CA HERO Direct Exp 3,782                         70,000                       66,218                     

Total Expenses 1,038,909$               1,570,338$               531,429$                 

99



Fund Department Account Project Location Description Actual FY 23 Budget Variance

Western Riverside Council of Governments
Budget-to-Actuals

As of February 28, 2023

Revenues
110 65 43001 1148 0000 Commerical/Service 39,778$                    72,000$                     32,222$                   
110 65 43002 1148 0000 Retail 36,449                       72,000                       35,551                     
110 65 43003 1148 0000 Industrial 341,913                    480,000                     138,087                   
110 65 43004 1148 0000 Residential/Multi/Single 1,010,786                 1,320,000                  309,214                   
110 65 43005 1148 0000 Multi-Family 395,815                    456,000                     60,185                     
110 65 43027 1148 0000 Beaumont TUMF Settlement Revenue -                             205,932                     205,932                   

Total Revenues 1,824,741$               2,605,932$               781,191$                 

Expenses
110 65 60001 1148 0000 Salaries & Wages Fulltime 242,052$                  425,181$                   183,130$                 
110 65 61000 1148 0000 Fringe Benefits 87,950                       189,249                     101,298                   
110 65 63000 1148 0000 Overhead Allocation 533,333                    800,000                     266,667                   
110 65 65101 1148 0000 General Legal Services 48,111                       75,000                       26,889                     
110 65 65505 1148 0000 Bank Fees -                             15,000                       15,000                     
110 65 73102 1148 0000 Parking Validations -                             500                             500                           
110 65 73108 1148 0000 General Supplies 145                            500                             355                           
110 65 73109 1148 0000 Computer Supplies -                             500                             500                           
110 65 73110 1148 0000 Computer Software 9,030                         65,000                       55,970                     
110 65 73113 1148 0000 Membership Dues 877                            1,500                          623                           
110 65 73114 1148 0000 Subscriptions/Publications 6,966                         100                             (6,866)                      
110 65 73116 1148 0000 POSTAGE -                             100                             100                           
110 65 73117 1148 0000 Other Household Expenses -                             100                             100                           
110 65 73120 1148 0000 Printing Services -                             150                             150                           
110 65 73204 1148 0000 Cellular Phone 1,292                         3,000                          1,708                        
110 65 73302 1148 0000 Equipment Maintenance -                             2,500                          2,500                        
110 65 73405 1148 0000 Insurance - Gen/Busi Liab/Auto -                             3,000                          3,000                        
110 65 73601 1148 0000 Seminar/Conferences -                             1,500                          1,500                        
110 65 73611 1148 0000 Travel - Mileage Reimbursement 155                            1,500                          1,345                        
110 65 73612 1148 0000 Travel - Ground Transportation -                             250                             250                           
110 65 73613 1148 0000 Travel-AirFare -                             750                             750                           
110 65 73620 1148 0000 Lodging -                             800                             800                           

TUMF Administration

100



Fund Department Account Project Location Description Actual FY 23 Budget Variance

Western Riverside Council of Governments
Budget-to-Actuals

As of February 28, 2023

110 65 73630 1148 0000 Meals 396                            1,000                          604                           
110 65 73640 1148 0000 Other Incidentals 29                              500                             471                           
110 65 85101 1148 0000 Outside Consultants 349,893                    450,000                     100,107                   

Total Expenses 1,280,229$               2,037,680$               757,451$                 

101



Fund Department Account Project Location Description Actual FY 23 Budget Variance

Western Riverside Council of Governments
Budget-to-Actuals

As of February 28, 2023

Revenues
220 65 43001 1148 0000 Commercial/Svcs 1,057,278$               1,728,000$                670,722$                 
220 65 43002 1148 0000 Retail 677,113                    1,728,000                  1,050,887                
220 65 43003 1148 0000 Industrial 9,013,947                 11,520,000                2,506,053                
220 65 43004 1148 0000 Residential/Multi/Single 23,117,161               31,680,000                8,562,839                
220 65 43005 1148 0000 Multi Family 9,084,549                 10,944,000                1,859,451                
220 65 43027 1148 0000 Beaumont TUMF Settlement Revenue 1,955,458                 10,678,068                8,722,610                
220 65 49104 1148 0000 Citizens Trust Investment Interest 797,305                    1,985,000                  1,187,695                

Total Revenues 45,702,810$             70,263,068$             24,560,258$           

Expenses
220 65 65101 1148 3307 Beaumon Legal Srvs-URBAN LOGIC 2,694$                       2,694$                       -$                          
220 65 65101 1148 3310 General Legal Services 873,594                    1,390,077                  516,483                   
220 65 65101 1148 3311 General Legal Services 7,229                         7,229                          -                            
220 65 85195 1148 0000 Beaumont Settlement Distributions 525,000                    6,488,595                  5,963,595                
220 65 85160 1148 0000 TUMF Project Reimbursement 3,333,405                 25,000,000                21,666,595              

Total Expenses 4,741,922$               32,888,595$             28,146,673$           

TUMF (Zone Revenues)

102



Fund Department Account Project Location Description Actual FY 23 Budget Variance

Western Riverside Council of Governments
Budget-to-Actuals

As of February 28, 2023

Expenses
110 65 85101 1300 0000 Consulting Labor -$                           20,000$                     20,000$                   

Total Expenses -$                           20,000$                     20,000$                   

Grant Writing

103



Fund Department Account Project Location Description Actual FY 23 Budget Variance

Western Riverside Council of Governments
Budget-to-Actuals

As of February 28, 2023

Revenues
210 65 41701 1400 0000 LTF Revenue 1,002,500$               1,002,500$                -$                          

Total Revenues 1,002,500$               1,002,500$               -$                         

Expenses
210 65 60001 1400 0000 Salaries & Wages - Fulltime 173,499$                  375,872$                   202,373$                 
210 65 61000 1400 0000 Fringe Benefits 63,879                       166,069                     102,190                   
210 65 63000 1400 0000 Overhead Allocation 120,000                    180,000                     60,000                     
210 65 65101 1400 0000 General Legal Services -                             2,000                          2,000                        
210 65 73102 1400 0000 Parking Validations -                             500                             500                           
210 65 73107 1400 0000 Event Support -                             250                             250                           
210 65 73108 1400 0000 Program/Office Supplies -                             250                             250                           
210 65 73110 1400 0000 Computer Software -                             500                             500                           
210 65 73113 1400 0000 Membership Dues 1,500                         750                             (750)                          
210 65 73114 1400 0000 Subcriptions/Publications 236                            250                             14                             
210 65 73116 1400 0000 Postage -                             500                             500                           
210 65 73204 1400 0000 Communications - Cellular Phones 304                            250                             (54)                            
210 65 73601 1400 0000 Seminars/Conferences 4,375                         4,500                          125                           
210 65 73611 1400 0000 Travel - Mileage Reimbursement 965                            1,350                          385                           
210 65 73612 1400 0000 Travel - Ground Transportation -                             750                             750                           
210 65 73613 1400 0000 Travel - Airfare -                             750                             750                           
210 65 73620 1400 0000 Lodging 1,120                         4,000                          2,880                        
210 65 73630 1400 0000 Meals 293                            1,250                          957                           
210 65 73703 1400 0000 Supplies/Materials 182                            250                             68                             
210 65 85101 1400 0000 Consulting Labor 185,328                    250,000                     64,672                     

Total Expenses 551,681$                  990,040$                   438,359$                 

Local Transportation Fund

104



Fund Department Account Project Location Description Actual FY 23 Budget Variance

Western Riverside Council of Governments
Budget-to-Actuals

As of February 28, 2023

Revenues
110 65 42001 2039 0000 Other Misc Revenue-RIVTAM 17,500$                    25,000$                     7,500$                     

Total Revenues 17,500$                    25,000$                     7,500$                     

Expenses
110 65 60001 2039 0000 Salaries & Wages - Fulltime 4,231$                       6,686$                       2,455$                     
110 65 61000 2039 0000 Fringe Benefits 1,661                         3,601                          1,940                        
110 65 85101 2039 0000 Consulting Labor -                             14,571                       14,571                     

Total Expenses 5,892$                       24,859$                     18,967$                   

RIVTAM

105



Fund Department Account Project Location Description Actual FY 23 Budget Variance

Western Riverside Council of Governments
Budget-to-Actuals

As of February 28, 2023

Revenues
110 65 41606 2235 0000 REAP Revenue 230,186$                  750,000$                   519,814$                 

Total Revenues 230,186$                  750,000$                   519,814$                 

Expenses
110 65 60001 2235 0000 Salaries & Wages - Fulltime 87,488$                    86,234$                     (1,254)$                    
110 65 61000 2235 0000 Fringe Benefits 32,552                       37,566                       5,015                        
110 65 63000 2235 0000 Overhead Allocation -                             125,383                     125,383                   
110 65 65101 2235 6001 General Legal Services 2,366                         5,000                          2,634                        
110 65 85101 2235 0000 Consulting Labor 394,554                    558,437                     163,883                   

Total Expenses 516,959$                  812,620$                   295,661$                 

Regional Early Action Planning (REAP)

106



 $-

 $500,000

 $1,000,000

 $1,500,000

 $2,000,000

 $2,500,000

 $3,000,000

 $3,500,000

 $4,000,000

 $4,500,000

 $5,000,000
Ad

m
in

is
tr

at
io

n 
Re

ve
nu

es

Ad
m

in
is

tr
at

io
n 

Ex
pe

ns
es

Ca
lif

or
ni

a 
Re

si
lie

nc
y 

Ch
al

le
ng

e 
Ex

pe
ns

es

Cl
ea

n 
Ci

tie
s R

ev
en

ue
s

Cl
ea

n 
Ci

tie
s E

xp
en

se
s

Fe
llo

w
sh

ip
 R

ev
en

ue
s

Fe
llo

w
sh

ip
 E

xp
en

se
s

G
ra

nt
 W

rit
in

g 
Ex

pe
ns

es

H
ER

O
  R

ev
en

ue
s

H
ER

O
  E

xp
en

se
s

In
la

nd
 R

eg
io

na
l E

ne
rg

y 
N

et
w

or
k 

- C
od

es
 a

nd
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

…

In
la

nd
 R

eg
io

na
l E

ne
rg

y 
N

et
w

or
k 

- C
od

es
 a

nd
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

…

In
la

nd
 R

eg
io

na
l E

ne
rg

y 
N

et
w

or
k 

- P
ub

lic
 S

ec
to

r…

In
la

nd
 R

eg
io

na
l E

ne
rg

y 
N

et
w

or
k 

- P
ub

lic
 S

ec
to

r E
xp

en
se

s

In
la

nd
 R

eg
io

na
l E

ne
rg

y 
N

et
w

or
k 

- W
or

kf
or

ce
 E

du
ca

tio
n…

In
la

nd
 R

eg
io

na
l E

ne
rg

y 
N

et
w

or
k 

- W
or

kf
or

ce
 E

du
ca

tio
n…

Lo
ca

l T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

Fu
nd

 R
ev

en
ue

s

Lo
ca

l T
ra

ns
po

rt
at

io
n 

Fu
nd

 E
xp

en
se

s

Lo
ve

 Y
ou

r N
ei

gh
bo

rh
oo

d 
Re

ve
nu

es

Lo
ve

 Y
ou

r N
ei

gh
bo

rh
oo

d 
Ex

pe
ns

es

N
uv

ee
n 

(G
re

en
w

or
ks

) R
ev

en
ue

s

N
uv

ee
n 

(G
re

en
w

or
ks

) E
xp

en
se

s

PA
CE

 F
un

di
ng

 R
ev

en
ue

s

PA
CE

 F
un

di
ng

 E
xp

en
se

s

Re
gi

on
al

 E
ar

ly
 A

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 (R

EA
P)

 R
ev

en
ue

s

Re
gi

on
al

 E
ar

ly
 A

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 (R

EA
P)

 E
xp

en
se

s

RI
VT

AM
 R

ev
en

ue
s

RI
VT

AM
 E

xp
en

se
s

So
lid

 W
as

te
 R

ev
en

ue
s

So
lid

 W
as

te
 E

xp
en

se
s

St
re

et
lig

ht
s R

ev
en

ue
s

St
re

et
lig

ht
s E

xp
en

se
s

TU
M

F 
Ad

m
in

is
tr

at
io

n 
Re

ve
nu

es

TU
M

F 
Ad

m
in

is
tr

at
io

n 
Ex

pe
ns

es

Tw
ai

n 
Re

ve
nu

es

Tw
ai

n 
Ex

pe
ns

es

U
se

d 
O

il 
Re

ve
nu

es

U
se

d 
O

il 
Ex

pe
ns

es

Budget-to-Actual Program Level

Actual FY 23 Budget

107



Description Actual FY 23 Budget Variance

Revenues
Member Dues 294,410              294,410                  -                       
Fellowship 81,948                100,000                  18,052                 
Solid Waste - SB1383 117,593              117,593                  -                       
HERO Admin Revenue 337,685              1,130,000              792,315              
Greenworks PACE Commercial Revenue 69,021                100,000                  30,979                 
Twain PACE Commercial Revenue -                       10,000                    10,000                 
PACE  Funding Recording Revenue 38                        -                          (38)                       
Regional Streetlights Revenue 131,852              135,542                  3,691                   
Solid Waste 174,206              173,157                  (1,049)                  
REAP Revenue 230,186              750,000                  519,814              
Other Misc Revenue-RIVTAM 17,500                25,000                    7,500                   
TUMF Commercial - Admin Fee 39,778                72,000                    32,222                 
TUMF Retail - Admin Fee 36,449                72,000                    35,551                 
TUMF Industrial - Admin Fee 341,913              480,000                  138,087              
TUMF Single Family - Admin Fee 1,010,786           1,320,000              309,214              
TUMF Multi Family - Admin Fee 395,815              456,000                  60,185                 
Beaumont TUMF Settlement Revenue -                       205,932                  205,932              
Operating Transfer Out 1,359,145           2,476,847              1,117,701           
General Fund Investment / Interest Revenue 90,508                180,000                  89,492                 
Total Revenues 4,728,835           8,098,481              3,369,646           

Expenses
Salaries & Wages - Fulltime 1,262,724           2,207,599              944,875              
Fringe Benefits 630,608              972,193                  341,585              
Overhead Allocation 832,000              1,373,383              541,383              
General Legal Services 479,337              613,704                  134,367              
Audit Svcs - Professional Fees -                       30,000                    30,000                 
Bank Fees 3,525                   65,508                    61,983                 
Commissioners Per Diem 43,050                72,000                    28,950                 
Parking Cost 19,309                28,000                    8,691                   
Office Lease 225,581              340,000                  114,419              
WRCOG Auto Fuels Expenses 104                      1,000                      896                      
WRCOG Auto Maintenance Expense -                       500                         500                      
Parking Validations 1,559                   12,350                    10,792                 
Staff Recognition 2,547                   3,100                      553                      

Western Riverside Council of Governments
Budget-to-Actuals - Fund Level

As of February 28, 2023

General Fund - 110

108



Description Actual FY 23 Budget Variance

Western Riverside Council of Governments
Budget-to-Actuals - Fund Level

As of February 28, 2023

Coffee and Supplies 411                      2,500                      2,089                   
Statewide - Event Support 18,733                59,500                    40,767                 
General Supplies 8,999                   21,800                    12,801                 
Computer Supplies 2,669                   7,000                      4,331                   
Computer Software 38,762                102,000                  63,238                 
Rent/Lease Equipment 8,440                   15,000                    6,560                   
Membership Dues 15,997                33,000                    17,003                 
Subscriptions/Publications 22,586                8,950                      (13,636)               
Meeting Support Services 111                      1,850                      1,739                   
POSTAGE 4,034                   7,350                      3,316                   
Other Household Expenses 1,698                   1,600                      (98)                       
Storage 432                      1,500                      1,068                   
Printing Services 1,856                   1,150                      (706)                     
Computer Hardware 1,410                   8,000                      6,590                   
Communications - Regular Phone 14,771                17,500                    2,729                   
Cellular Phone 6,274                   13,000                    6,726                   
Communications - Computer Services 5,743                   40,000                    34,257                 
Communications  - Web Site 6,610                   8,000                      1,390                   
Equipment Maintenance 290                      7,500                      7,210                   
Maintenance - Building and Improvement 13,034                12,000                    (1,034)                  
Insurance - Gen/Busi Liab/Auto 73,569                103,266                  29,697                 
WRCOG Auto Insurance 3,181                   6,000                      2,819                   
Data Processing Support 15,649                8,000                      (7,649)                  
Recording Fee 5,362                   13,000                    7,638                   
Seminar/Conferences 6,426                   9,350                      2,924                   
Travel - Mileage Reimbursement 2,274                   7,000                      4,726                   
Travel - Ground Transportation 539                      3,050                      2,511                   
Travel-AirFare 1,131                   7,500                      6,369                   
Lodging 4,169                   4,600                      431                      
Meals 3,026                   6,100                      3,074                   
Other Incidentals 29                        1,000                      971                      
Training 3,137                   33,250                    30,113                 
OPEB Repayment -                       110,526                  110,526              
Supplies/Materials 1,050                   4,400                      3,350                   
Staff Education Reimbursement -                       7,500                      7,500                   
Compliance Settlements 75,280                100,000                  24,720                 
Direct Costs -                       111,056                  111,056              
Consulting Labor 1,123,512           1,683,777              560,265              
Total Expenses 4,991,536           8,307,913              3,316,377           

109



Description Actual FY 23 Budget Variance

Western Riverside Council of Governments
Budget-to-Actuals - Fund Level

As of February 28, 2023

Revenues
Air Quality - Other Reimburse 123,800              270,167                  146,367              
LTF Revenue 70,000                70,000                    -                       
Total Revenues 193,800              340,167                 146,367              

Expenses
Salaries & Wages - Fulltime 91,999                170,523                  78,524                 
Fringe Benefits 32,202                86,260                    54,058                 
Overhead Allocation 24,000                36,000                    12,000                 
Event Support 8,354                   10,000                    1,646                   
Meeting Support Services 246                      500                         254                      
Computer Hardware -                       700                         700                      
Communications - Cellular Phones 354                      600                         246                      
Seminars/Conferences -                       1,000                      1,000                   
Travel - Mileage Reimbursement 64                        500                         436                      
Travel - Ground Transportation 392                      750                         358                      
Travel - Airfare 1,253                   3,500                      2,247                   
Lodging 2,166                   3,500                      1,334                   
Meals 159                      500                         341                      
Other Incidentals -                       500                         500                      
Supplies/Materials -                       1,000                      1,000                   
Consulting Labor 14,668                23,950                    9,282                   
Total Expenses 175,858              339,783                 163,924              

Clean Cities Fund - 120

110



Description Actual FY 23 Budget Variance

Western Riverside Council of Governments
Budget-to-Actuals - Fund Level

As of February 28, 2023

Revenues
Used Oil Grants 198,398              198,398                  -                       
Total Revenues 198,398              198,398                 -                       

Expenses
Salaries & Wages - Fulltime 49,843                76,400                    26,557                 
Fringe Benefits 14,423                38,486                    24,063                 
Overhead Allocation 13,226                19,839                    6,613                   
General Legal Services -                       1,000                      1,000                   
Parking Validations -                       250                         250                      
Event Support 29,531                20,000                    (9,531)                  
Program/Office Supplies -                       500                         500                      
Membership Dues -                       500                         500                      
Meeting Support Services -                       1,000                      1,000                   
Storage 3,271                   4,000                      729                      
Printing Services -                       1,000                      1,000                   
Communications - Cellular Phones 322                      200                         (122)                     
Insurance - Gen/Busi Liab/Auto -                       1,000                      1,000                   
Seminars/Conferences 700                      2,000                      1,300                   
Travel - Mileage Reimbursement -                       1,000                      1,000                   
Travel - Ground Transportation -                       500                         500                      
Travel - Airfare 492                      -                          (492)                     
Meals 331                      500                         169                      
Supplies/Materials -                       1,000                      1,000                   
Advertising Media - Newspaper Ad 29,000                29,048                    48                        
Total Expenses 141,139              198,223                 57,084                 

Used Oil Fund - 140

111



Description Actual FY 23 Budget Variance

Western Riverside Council of Governments
Budget-to-Actuals - Fund Level

As of February 28, 2023

Revenues
I-REN Revenues 614,991              7,738,349              7,123,358           
Total Revenues 614,991              7,738,349              7,123,358           

Expenses
Salaries & Wages - Fulltime 204,155              423,808                  219,654              
Fringe Benefits 70,759                185,350                  114,591              
Overhead Allocation 168,412              565,363                  396,951              
General Legal Services 28,560                40,388                    11,828                 
Bank Fees -                       1,500                      1,500                   
Parking Validations 3,261                   7,612                      4,351                   
Event Support 25,000                75,000                    50,000                 
Membership Dues -                       328,000                  328,000              
Other Expenses -                       3,000                      3,000                   
Printing Services -                       4,500                      4,500                   
Computer Hardware -                       3,000                      3,000                   
Misc Office Equipment -                       3,000                      3,000                   
Communications - Cellular Phones 463                      3,600                      3,137                   
Seminars/Conferences 158                      15,000                    14,842                 
Mileage Reimbursement 710                      22,060                    21,350                 
Ground Transportation -                       10,000                    10,000                 
Airfare -                       45,000                    45,000                 
Lodging 2,013                   98,000                    95,987                 
Meals 287                      8,640                      8,353                   
Training -                       126,125                  126,125              
Supplies/Materials -                       2,000                      2,000                   
Direct Costs -                       1,000,000              1,000,000           
Consulting Labor 111,213              3,283,383              3,172,170           
COG REN Reimbursement -                       1,474,000              1,474,000           
Total Expenses 614,991              7,728,330              7,113,338           

Inland Regional Energy Network (I-REN) Fund - 180

112



Description Actual FY 23 Budget Variance

Western Riverside Council of Governments
Budget-to-Actuals - Fund Level

As of February 28, 2023

Revenues
LTF Revenue 1,002,500           1,002,500              -                       
Total Revenues 1,002,500           1,002,500              -                       

Expenses
Salaries & Wages - Fulltime 173,499              375,872                  202,373              
Fringe Benefits 63,879                166,069                  102,190              
Overhead Allocation 120,000              180,000                  60,000                 
General Legal Services -                       2,000                      2,000                   
Parking Validations -                       500                         500                      
Event Support -                       250                         250                      
Program/Office Supplies -                       250                         250                      
Computer Software -                       500                         500                      
Membership Dues 1,500                   750                         (750)                     
Subcriptions/Publications 236                      250                         14                        
Postage -                       500                         500                      
Communications - Cellular Phones 304                      250                         (54)                       
Seminars/Conferences 4,375                   4,500                      125                      
Travel - Mileage Reimbursement 965                      1,350                      385                      
Travel - Ground Transportation -                       750                         750                      
Travel - Airfare -                       750                         750                      
Lodging 1,120                   4,000                      2,880                   
Meals 293                      1,250                      957                      
Supplies/Materials 182                      250                         68                        
Consulting Labor 185,328              250,000                  64,672                 
Total Expenses 551,681              990,040                 438,359              

Local Transportation Fund (LTF) - 210

113



Description Actual FY 23 Budget Variance

Western Riverside Council of Governments
Budget-to-Actuals - Fund Level

As of February 28, 2023

Revenues
Commercial/Svcs 1,057,278           1,728,000              670,722              
Retail 677,113              1,728,000              1,050,887           
Industrial 9,013,947           11,520,000            2,506,053           
Residential/Multi/Single 23,117,161         31,680,000            8,562,839           
Multi Family 9,084,549           10,944,000            1,859,451           
Beaumont TUMF Settlement Revenue 1,955,458           10,678,068            8,722,610           
TUMF Investment Revenue / Earnings 797,305              1,985,000              1,187,695           
Total Revenues 45,702,810        70,263,068            24,560,258         

Expenses
General Legal Services 883,517              1,400,000              516,483              
TUMF Project Reimbursement 3,333,405           25,000,000            21,666,595         
Beaumont Settlement Distributions 525,000              6,488,595              5,963,595           
Total Expenses 4,741,922           32,888,595            28,146,673         

Transportation Uniform Mitigation Fee (TUMF) Fund - 220

114



 -

 1,000,000

 2,000,000

 3,000,000

 4,000,000

 5,000,000

 6,000,000

 7,000,000

 8,000,000

 9,000,000

 Clean Cities Fund
Revenues

 Clean Cities Fund
Expenditures

 General Fund
Revenues

 General Fund
Expenditures

 Inland Regional
Energy Network

(I- REN) Fund
Revenues

 Inland Regional
Energy Network (I

- REN) Fund
Expenditures

 Local
Transportation

Fund (LTF)
Revenues

 Local
Transportation

Fund (LTF)
Expenditures

 Used Oil Fund
Revenues

 Used Oil Fund
Expenditures

Budget-to-Actual Fund Level

 Actual  Budget

115



Item 6.A

Western Riverside Council of Governments
Technical Advisory Committee

Staff Report

Subject: Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Budget
Contact: Dr. Kurt Wilson, Executive Director, kwilson@wrcog.us, (951) 405-6701

Andrew Ruiz, Chief Financial Officer, aruiz@wrcog.us, (951) 405-6740
Date: April 20, 2023

 

 

 
 
Requested Action(s): 

1. Receive and file.

Purpose: 
The purpose of this item is to provide a presentation on the Fiscal Year 2023/2024 budgeted revenues.

WRCOG 2022-2027 Strategic Plan Goal: 
Goal #3 - Ensure fiscal solvency and stability of the Western Riverside Council of Governments.

Background: 
Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Budget Update
 
As part of the ongoing analysis and evolution of the WRCOG budgeting process, this year’s focus is
largely on improving transparency in order to better communicate the Agency’s finances.  This provides
a better vantage point to work toward the budgeting principles of 1) ensuring the fair distribution of funds
and funding requests, 2) requiring non-comprehensive programs (those which do not benefit the entirety
of the member agencies) to be self-sustaining, 3) focusing on the long-term health of each fund, and 4)
moving toward these goals in an incremental way when full scale immediate changes are impractical.
 
Revenue and Expenditure Proposals
 
The largest revenue change in the proposed budget is the result of an accounting change to WRCOG's
largest program – Transportation Uniform Mitigation Fee (TUMF).  The bulk of the revenues collected for
the TUMF Program are redistributed to partner agencies.  WRCOG’s current practice has been to
account for the full collection as revenue.  WRCOG’s new auditor, relying on Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) Statement 84, has recommended the redistributed funds be treated as pass
through funds rather than Agency revenues.  For FY 2023/2024, only the 4% of TUMF funds retained by
WRCOG will be counted as revenue.  While this has no impact on the Program of its ability to fund
projects, the year-over-year comparison of revenues may appear dramatic (reduction of approximately
$70M).     
 
Energy and Environmental Programs

116

mailto:kwilson@wrcog.us
mailto:aruiz@wrcog.us


 
C-PACE:  The Commercial Property Assessed Clean Energy (C-PACE) Program is currently limited to
two providers: Twain and Nuveen (formerly known as Greenworks).  In previous years, the revenues and
expenditures were estimated in a similar manner as other programs – predicting the revenue level, then
constraining expenses accordingly.  Program revenues are the result of completed projects with one of
the two providers.  Projects happen at unpredictable intervals which makes estimating revenues more
difficult and typically requires mid-year budget adjustments to reflect actual activity.  With the exception
of a fixed cost ($148k), the PACE expenses increase and decrease in concert with revenue increases
and decreases.    
 
In order to more accurately predict revenues and constrain expenditures, this proposed budget
downgrades revenues and expenditures to the maintenance level.  Revenue estimates would then be
increased as revenue from completed projects is realized and the related expenditures would be
adjusted accordingly.  This allows for a more accurate reflection of finances related to the project and
provides a scalable solution that can be easily adapted as conditions change.   
 
A second change in the proposed budget is to consolidate revenues and expenditures from both
providers into a single budget line item (while continuing to track each provider separately).  This allows
for a more accurate allocation of overhead costs and paves the way for an easier transition in the event
additional providers were added to C-PACE Program.  It also provides a built-in safeguard against
overspending if revenues come in lower than expected.   
 
SoCalGas Company Partnership:  The Energy Department is poised to re-establish its relationship with
SoCalGas with a new partnership.  This two-year agreement will provide WRCOG with revenues of
$100k a year for two years (for a total of $200k).  Anticipated expenditures will be aligned with revenues
at $100k.  The Partnership will serve public agencies through customer incentives and deemed rebate
programs, third-party energy efficiency programs, fill gaps in statewide programs, collaborate with local
organizations and agencies, collaborate with customers to develop energy solutions and regional
strategies, and provide Regional Ambassadors.  Ambassadors will serve public agencies as an
extension of staff to SoCalGas’ Regional Energy Pathway team, ensuring public sector customers have
a local “go-to” resource that supports their agencies’ ability to increase energy efficiency.      
 
Streetlight Program:  The Streetlight Program, now in its maintenance phase, coordinates service
contracts between entities and provides support on an as-needed basis to participating member
jurisdictions.  Revenue is relatively fixed with a 3% annual increase baked into the agreements with
member jurisdictions.  Revenues for FY 2023/2024 will be budgeted at $139k and expenditures at
$125k.    
 
I-REN:  The Inland Regional Energy Network, or I-REN, will have an anticipated budget of $10.4M in
revenues and $9.8M in expenditures in FY 2023/2024, spread across three Sectors:  1) Public, 2)
Workforce Education & Training, and 3) Codes & Standards; however, it is important to note that the I-
REN’s budget is $65M over a six-year budget period, where funds can be rolled into subsequent years if
they are not spent in earlier years, as long as it’s within the six-year Program period.  While the I-REN
was approved in November 2021, it has taken some time to organize the governing structure (I-REN
Executive Committee) and associated agreements, onboard new staff, and solicit procurements for
implementers necessary to begin the launch of programs.  Now, as the I-REN brings on its implementers
and consultants under contract, a substantial increase in activity is expected as work on those contracts
begin.  Staff will file an advice letter with the California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC) to roll over

117



any unspent funds from 2022 and 2023 into the later years of the six-year budget period.   
 
HERO Program:  The HERO Program is in a winddown phase and has an anticipated budget of $764k, a
decrease of approximately $366k.  This decrease was anticipated and is primarily due to a decrease in
early payoffs and outstanding assessments, which make up the Program’s annual administrative fee. 
Anticipated expenditures are $1.15M, representing a deficit of approximately $388k.   
 
Clean Cities Program:  The Clean Cities Program has an anticipated budget of $434k in revenues, an
increase of approximately $94k compared to FY 2022/2023.  This increase is primarily due to two
additional grants and an increase in the allocation received from the U.S. Department of Energy.  This
also includes an allocation of $70k from the Local Transportation Fund (LTF) Program.  The proposed
budget for Clean Cities also includes a proposed increase in member dues of approximately $12k. 
Anticipated expenditures will be aligned with revenues at $434k.
 
Solid Waste:  The Solid Waste Program has an anticipated budget of $183k in revenues and
expenditures, a decrease of approximately $57k compared to FY 2022/2023.  This decrease is due to
one-time revenues received for SB 1383 capacity planning in FY 2022/2023.  The proposed budget for
Solid Waste also includes a proposed increase in member dues of approximately $62k. 
 
Love Your Neighborhood Program:  The Love Your Neighborhood Program, a partnership with the
Riverside County Flood Control and Water Conservation District, will continue into next year with
anticipated revenues and expenditures of $50k, no change from this current year.   
 
Used Oil Program:  A grant from CalRecycle provides an anticipated budget of $220k in revenues and
expenditures, an increase of $22k compared to FY 2022/2023.   
 
Transportation and Planning Programs
 
TUMF Program:  As noted earlier in the staff report, the TUMF Program budget will only include the
administrative fee, which is 4% of the total TUMF collections, in the upcoming budget.  The
administrative fee has an anticipated budget of $2M in revenues and expenditures, which is based on
$50M in total collections.  An additional $52k is anticipated in revenues due to Beaumont Measure A
funds to be allocated to WRCOG based on the Beaumont Settlement Agreement.   
 
Local Transportation Fund (LTF) Program:  This Program has an anticipated budget of $1.2M in
revenues and expenditures, an increase of approximately $200k compared to FY 2022/2023.   
 
RivCOM Program:  This Program has an anticipated budget of $25k in revenues and expenditures, no
change from this current year.   
 
REAP 1.0 Program:  This grant will be expending its remaining funds in FY 2023/2024.  The remaining
funds are approximately $300k based on current estimates.   
 
REAP 2.0 Program:  A new grant from SCAG will be commencing in FY 2023/2024 and has anticipated
revenues and expenditures of $500k.   
 
Administration

118



 
Previously, the Administration Department grouped the Administrative Services, Finance, and Executive
functions under one budget; however, for Fiscal Year 2023/2024, these three functions will now have
their own separate budgets.  Member dues remain flat at $294k; however, member dues will be
discussed further in this agenda item.  Interest revenues are estimated at $200k, an increase of $20k
from FY 2022/2023.  Lastly, overhead, which is charged across WRCOG’s various programs, and is the
primary funding source for the Administration function, is anticipated to be $2.37M, a decrease of $100k
compared to Fiscal Year 2022/2023.
 
Administrative Services:  Administrative Services houses the majority of Administration’s expenses, such
as legal, consulting, office lease, etc., and has anticipated expenditures of approximately $2M.
 
Fellowship:  The Fellowship Program has anticipated revenues and expenditures of $100k, which is an
assumption based on five Fellows funded at 100%; however, based on the current funding structure,
some Fellows could be funded at 50%, or there could potentially be more than five Fellows.
 
Finance:  Costs for a potential software upgrade are included in the FY 2023/2024 budget under
Finance; however, a formal RFP process still needs to be performed to select a software vendor, and
this is just an estimate based on what staff received from a potential software company, Tyler
Technologies.  Total anticipated expenditures are $556k.
 
Executive:  Anticipated expenditures are budgeted at approximately $289k.
 
FY 2023/2024 Budget Summary
 
General Fund revenues and transfers in (overhead) are anticipated to be $7,230,158 against $7,592,023
in expenditures, a difference of $361,865.  This difference is primarily due to the HERO Program budget.
 
Clean Cities Fund revenues and transfers in (from Local Transportation Fund - LTF) are anticipated to be
$434,600 against $434,600 in expenditures.
 
Used Oil Fund revenues are anticipated to be $220,753 against $220,115 in expenditures, a difference
of $638.
 
I-REN Fund revenues are anticipated to be $10,478,589 against $9,835,997 in expenditures, a
difference of $642,592.  The I-REN’s budget is $65M over a six-year budget period, where funds can be
rolled into subsequent years if they are not spent in earlier years, as long as it’s within the six-year
Program period.
 
LTF revenues are anticipated to be $1,208,750 against $1,203,562 in expenditures, a difference of
$5,188.
 
For Fiscal Year 2023/2024, the total Agency budgeted revenues and transfers in (overhead) are
anticipated to be $19,572,850 against $19,286,298 in expenditures, a difference of $286,552.
 
Compared to Fiscal Year 2022/2023, this represents a decrease of approximately $68M in revenues and
$31M in expenditures; however, as previously noted, this drastic decrease is attributable to the TUMF
collections (with the exception of the 4% admin fee) now no longer being considered a revenue for the

119



Agency.  Excluding these revenues for an apples-to-apples comparison actually shows revenues for the
Agency increasing by approximately $2.2M, with expenditures increasing by approximately $1.8M, which
is primarily attributable to the increased I-REN revenues, decreased HERO revenues, and decreased
TUMF Administrative revenues.
 
Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Budget Discussion Items
 
Based on feedback received from the Executive Committee on April 3, 2023, and the Administration &
Finance Committee on April 12, 2023, the Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) is requested to provide
feedback on the modifications made to four areas of the proposed budget.  Additionally, the launch of I-
REN creates some unique budget authority challenges, and feedback is requested on the proposed
process for addressing this issue.
 
Member Dues
 
Revised FY 2023/2024 Proposal:  No changes are proposed to current year dues; however, the process
will begin immediately to evaluate specific components of the dues structure and amount.  Specifically,
the TAC is being asked to provide recommendations in two areas:
 

1. What criteria are most consistent with the fair and equitable distribution of costs related to member
dues?  The TAC will be asked to evaluate whether the current process (adjusted for current data)
remains appropriate or whether a different methodology would best accomplish the goal.  Criteria
may include population, assessed value, or another measure.

2. Should dues 1) remain static until action is taken each year in the budget process, 2) contain an
automatic escalator (fixed percentage, Consumer Price Index, etc.), or 3) be modeled after the
practice of some peer agencies where the Administrative cost is determined each year then
allocated among the member agencies in accordance with the prescribed formula?

 
Background:  WRCOG member dues are currently set at $294k, which is a fixed amount that has not
changed since Fiscal Year 2008/2009 where they were reduced by 15% due to the Great Recession,
and never increased.  Since then the only adjustment to the overall dues levels have been to the addition
of the City of Beaumont and the Riverside County Superintendent of Schools, but Morongo also
withdrew its membership from WRCOG.   
 
Previously, WRCOG would distribute its dues based on population and assessed value (which is
described in the WRCOG Bylaws), similar to what other regional agencies such as CVAG and SCAG,
which calculate and distribute dues based off of population and Assessed Valuation.  Others, such as
SGVCOG, calculate its dues based off of its total general operating budget and assign a base fee plus a
per capita amount.
 
WRCOG dues were originally calculated based off a weighted average of population and assessed value
for cities and the county, while the Water Districts and the Riverside County Office of Education used
fixed amounts.  The weighted average allocation has not been updated, which provides an opportunity to
adjust the allocation among agencies and improve the fairness of the cost.  The core figure to be
allocated has not been adjusted since 2009.  At that time, the amount was decreased in response to
global economic conditions but, unlike other fees that were decreased at that time, the fee did not
recover as conditions improved.  Separate from the decrease, CPI has increased approximately 27% in

120



that time and has caused WRCOG to rely more heavily on revenues from other programs to fund core
functions.  The additional evaluation period will allow a more thorough analysis of the issue to be
considered in time for the FY 2024/2025 budget process.
 
Solid Waste Dues
 
Revised FY 2023/2024 Proposal:  Increase dues of those member agencies opting into the Solid Waste
Program by $1,116 - $8,200 per member agency based on proportional share and participation in the
optional AB 939 filing component.  This action allows the Program to achieve self-sufficiency and reflects
the current cost of responding to growing State mandates.  
 
Background:  The State of California requires local government compliance with an increasingly
burdensome, complex, and technical set of mandates related to Solid Waste and Recycling programs.
 Citing the specialized skill set and time demands of interpreting and complying with this evolving body of
mandates, several WRCOG member agencies asked WRCOG to serve as a convened, clearinghouse,
and technical advisor for issues related to Solid Waste.  The program has been successful despite the
challenges of implementing new requirements.  The Solid Waste Program provides technical assistance,
serves as a central contractor, and allows participating members to collaborate and share information.
 
Providing these services falls outside of WRCOG’s core functions and is intended to be a self-sustaining
Program funded by the members who have requested and who benefit from the Program.  Members of
the Solid Waste Program pay dues which are calculated on a per household basis at a cost of $0.17 per
occupied housing unit (updated annually based on data from the California Department of Finance).  The
basis for the $0.17 was set in the early 2000s on the Program’s cost around that time, and while dues
have gone up due to population increasing, they have not been adjusted based on current costs of
providing an expanded scope of services required by new State mandates. 
 
An optional piece of the Solid Waste dues is report preparation for Assembly Bill 939 (AB 939)
compliance, which is also based on outdated resource assumptions.  Eighteen WRCOG member
agencies are members of the Solid Waste Program, and 12 members elect to have WRCOG complete
their AB 939 compliance reports.  Current member dues are budgeted at a combined $124k but fully
allocating the associated overhead required to operate the program would result in expenditures of
$160k.  Reaching the goal of self-sufficiency for this Program will require dues to reflect the increased
workload brought on by State actions and updated staffing costs.  For FY 2023/2024, this requires
adjusting the dues range for members opting into the Program.  The adjustment increases the dues of
participating agencies between $1,116 - $8,200 per member agency depending on their proportional
share and whether they participate in the optional AB 939 filing program.  For those participating in the
AB 939 filing program, the annual fee increases from $2,045 to $3,722 and is included in the estimate
above.  
 
Clean Cities Dues
 
FY 2023/2024 Proposed Changes:  Increase dues by 10% for members opting into the Program with the
potential for future increases partially offset by securing new grant revenues as the program works
toward self-sufficiency.
 
Background:  The Clean Cities Program is comprised of 11 WRCOG member agencies whose dues
combine with ongoing funding from the U.S. Department of Energy which oversees the national Clean

121



Cities Program.  At the current rates, those sources are not sufficient to support the Program at a level of
self-sufficiency.  Currently, additional funds are received from the University of West Virginia; however,
those funds are expected to expire at the end of FY 2023/2024.  Revenue increases or expenditure
decreases will be needed to ensure the long-term sustainability of the Program.  
 
Efforts are currently underway to evaluate Program expenditures in search of additional savings.
Concurrently, aggressive efforts to acquire grant funding were approved as part of the current year’s
budget and those efforts are underway.  As more grant funds are received, the burden on Clean Cities
member dues is decreased.  At both the State and Federal level, the Clean Cities initiative has gained
momentum and the pool of potential grant funding sources has grown exponentially.  While WRCOG is
well-positioned and aggressively pursuing these funds, the predictability of receiving future grant awards
is not accurate enough to quantify in the budget at this point.  
 
WRCOG members participating in Clean Cities are able to fund the majority of their dues using funds
provided by California Assembly Bill 2766 (AB 2766).  AB 2766 is a statewide program which uses funds
collected through vehicle registrations to fund air quality improvement programs throughout California. 
These funds are sent to the various Air Districts including the South Coast Air Quality Management
District (AQMD), which then distributes these funds to each jurisdiction to implement programs that
improve regional air quality.  The Clean Cities Program meets these goals since it encourages the use of
alternative fueled vehicles and conducts education and outreach.  One of the main tasks of the Clean
Cities Program is the preparation of AB 2766 compliance reports, which document activities related to
improving regional air quality.  The Program cost is directly related to the scope of services, amount of
required labor, and cost of labor.  While those costs have increased, the revenues have remained the
same, and serve as a barrier to the program reaching a sustainable level of self-sufficiency.  WRCOG
submits these reports to AQMD on behalf of members who participate in the Clean Cities Program.
 Agencies who elect not to participate in the Clean Cities Program are still required to prepare AB 2766
compliance reports but are able to do so separate from WRCOG.  Currently, 11 WRCOG member
agencies choose to participate in the Clean Cities Program. 
 
WRCOG members currently participating in Clean Cities pay dues based off of a tiered population
structure from $3,000 to $25,000 (from less than 25,000 to more than 250,000) as shown below with
current and proposed amounts.  Current expenditures are anticipated to be over $400k against budgeted
revenues of $422k; however, the member dues and the DOE allocation make up $240k of the $422k in
revenues, a difference of $282k.  Of the $282k, most of these revenues are one-time grants /
partnerships, but $70k is being allocated from the LTF due to the nexus between transportation and
Clean Cities justified in the LTF work plan.  While there may be an opportunity for the LTF allocation to
continue, there is still a significant deficit that needs to be made up either by securing additional grant
revenues or significantly increasing Clean Cities membership dues.
 
Fellowship
 
FY 2023/2024 Proposed Changes:  Continue the Program as is until or unless the Program funds are
depleted and stop the Program if / when that happens.  Seek additional funding from State or Federal
government grants, targeted fundraising, sponsorships, or support from the WRCOG Supporting
Foundation in order to extend the life of the Program.
 
The Fellowship Program was established in 2016 and has placed over 80 Fellows in WRCOG member
agencies and has been widely recognized as a successful effort to entice and train local talent by

122



introducing and preparing them for public service careers.  These Fellows are treated as WRCOG
employees, but work directly for member agency staff.  The Program was funded through an initial
allocation totaling $1,380,000.  In recent years, the Program instituted a cost sharing model with member
agencies sharing the cost of their assigned Fellows; however, with no replenishment of the initial seed
funding, the available funds have continued to deplete.  At the start of FY 2023/2024 those available
Program funds will only total approximately $200k.   
 
Despite its success, the lack of a dedicated funding source jeopardizes the sustainability of the
Program.  While no funding structure changes are proposed for FY 2023/2024, this proposal envisions
the Program only lasting as long as the available funds.  In order to delay or prevent the end of the
Program, WRCOG staff will work with partners to identify possible funding sources from government,
philanthropy, or the WRCOG Supporting Foundation.
 
I-REN Budget Authority
 
FY 2023/2024 Proposed Changes:  Use the WRCOG annual Budget Resolution to 1) set the maximum
revenue and expenditure limits for I-REN, 2) require all I-REN spending to conform to the WRCOG-
approved I-REN Business Plan, 3) delegate full budget amendment authority to the WRCOG Executive
Committee, and 4) delegate limited budget authority to the I-REN Executive Committee to meet the
programming needs of I-REN.  
 
I-REN is a cooperative effort between WRCOG, the Coachella Valley Association of Governments
(CVAG), and the San Bernardino County Council of Governments (SBCOG) that is authorized and
funded by the California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC).  I-REN is governed by an Executive
Committee consisting of voting members from each of the three participating agencies.  They meet
regularly and devote substantial time and attention to the technical and governance responsibilities of I-
REN.
 
I-REN is a partnership controlled by a series of agreements among the participating agencies, the
CPUC, and the Investor-Owned Utilities (Southern California Edison and Southern California Gas
Company).  These agreements allocate roles and responsibilities among each organization and
designate WRCOG as the Administrative Lead for I-REN.  In that capacity, WRCOG administers the
Program under the direction of the I-REN Executive Committee and with the consent of the WRCOG
Executive Committee.  While the I-REN is a partnership with clear roles and responsibilities along with a
shared governance structure, it is not a Joint Powers Authority or other legal entity.  Since it is not a
standalone entity, WRCOG, acting in its capacity as the Administrative Lead for the Program,
incorporates the I-REN budget into the WRCOG budget.  
 
This creates a unique situation in which 1) the CPUC is committed to fully funding I-REN and thereby
mitigating risk to WRCOG, 2) the I-REN Executive Committee makes programmatic budget decisions
within any constraints imposed by the CPUC or the WRCOG Executive Committee, and 3) WRCOG
retains final budget authority and responsibility as part of its own budget.
 
The I-REN Executive Committee includes three representatives from the WRCOG Executive Committee
and is well-positioned to make the complex and technical financial allocations required to administer the
Program.  With no legal authority of its own, the I-REN Executive Committee must rely on delegated
authority from WRCOG.  Blanket authority would impose an undue risk to WRCOG but retaining full line-

123



item authority would force an undue burden on WRCOG.
 
In order to balance the need for WRCOG to protect itself from financial risk and liability, yet provide
programmatic flexibility to the governing body of the Program, this proposal bifurcates duties.  WRCOG
would retain ultimate responsibility and authority over the I-REN budget but would, subject to revocation
by WRCOG, delegate authority to the I-REN Executive Committee.  In this scenario, WRCOG would
establish the maximum revenue and expenditure limits for the I-REN.  It would also prescribe the broad
parameters for spending funds by limiting expenditures to items included in the WRCOG-approved I-
REN Business Plan.  This provides an added level of protection for WRCOG and retains WRCOG’s
ability to revoke the delegation in the future.  It also provides limited authority to the I-REN Executive
Committee to meet the programmatic needs of the I-REN.  
 
An additional complication is that the CPUC allocates funding on a calendar basis rather than the fiscal
year that WRCOG and its member agencies utilize.  This creates an asymmetric budgeting cycle where
the FY 2023/2024 WRCOG budget addresses only the second half of the I-REN 2023 budget and the
first half of the I-REN 2024 budget.  Fortunately, the six-year approval cycle approved by the CPUC
includes a prescriptive amount of funding, so fluctuations are expected to be minor and likely the result of
delayed or expedited projects.
 
The delegation of authority allowing the I-REN Executive Committee to approve the I-REN budget as
long as it is within the WRCOG-approved dollar amount and consistent with the WRCOG-approved I-
REN Business Plan will be addressed in the WRCOG Budget Resolution.  Similarly, the delegation of
budget amendment authority to the WRCOG Executive Committee will also be addressed in the
WRCOG Budget Resolution.
 
Proposed Budget Resolution
 
Resolution NUMBER XX-XX
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF THE WESTERN RIVERSIDE COUNCIL OF
GOVERNMENTS ADOPTING THE FISCAL YEAR 2023/2024 AGENCY BUDGET
 
WHEREAS, The Western Riverside Council of Governments (WRCOG) operates on a fiscal year basis,
beginning on July 1 of each year and continuing until June 30 of the succeeding year; and
 
WHEREAS, Article III, Section 3.3 of the WRCOG Joint Powers Agreement states that prior to July 1 of
each year, the General Assembly shall adopt a final budget for the expenditures of WRCOG during the
following fiscal year; and
 
WHEREAS, Article III. Section 6, Subdivision (A) of the WRCOG Bylaws states that the Executive
Committee of WRCOG shall prepare and recommend to the General Assembly a yearly budget for funds
and distribution and to determine the estimated share of contributions from each member agency; and 
 
WHEREAS, on May 1 2023, a proposed Agency Budget for Fiscal Year 2023/2024 was presented to the
Executive Committee, and the Executive Committee recommended the proposed Agency Budget for
Fiscal Year 2022/2023 to the General Assembly; and
 
WHEREAS, WRCOG serves as the administrative lead for the Inland Regional Energy Network (I-REN)

124



and incorporates the I-REN Budget in the WRCOG budget; and
 
WHEREAS, the I-REN has a governing body consisting of elected officials from throughout the I-REN
service area, including WRCOG; and
 
WHEREAS, the I-REN revenues are fixed, approved, and provided exclusively through the California
Public Utilities Commission (CPUC); and
 
WHEREAS, the categories and amounts of I-REN spending are constrained by the WRCOG-approved I-
REN business plan; and
 
WHEREAS, the CPUC allocates I-REN funding based on a calendar year rather than the WRCOG fiscal
year; and
 
WHEREAS, WRCOG provided the public with proper notice that the meeting to approve the proposed
Agency Budget for Fiscal Year 2023/2024 is to be held on June 29, 2023, at the General Assembly
meeting; and
 
WHEREAS, on June 29, 2023, the proposed Agency Budget for Fiscal Year 2023/2024 was presented to
the General Assembly and the General Assembly held a public hearing on the proposed Budget.
 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the General Assembly of the Western Riverside Council of
Governments as follows:
 
Section 1.       RECITALS
 
            The above recitals are incorporated herein by this reference.
 
Section 2.       FINAL BUDGET
 
(a)  The General Assembly hereby approves and adopts the WRCOG Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Agency
Budget with expenditure appropriations of $XX,XXX,XXX.
 
(b)  The continuation of Fiscal Year 2022/2023 appropriations to FY 2023/2024 is authorized for the
completion of programs and activities currently underway.
 
Section 3.       INLAND REGIONAL ENERGY NETWORK (I-REN)
 
(a)  The General Assembly hereby directs the WRCOG Executive Committee to monitor the finances of
the I-REN and provides for:
 
(1)  Expanded budget authority to impose new fiscal requirements on the I-REN Executive Committee as
it deems necessary; and
(2)  Make mid-year budget adjustments in any amount, provided they meet the following criteria:
                  a) consistent with the intent and purpose of I-REN
                  b) revenue assumptions are consistent with CPUC allocations
                  c) expenditures are consistent with the WRCOG-approved I-REN Business Plan

125



 
(b)  The General Assembly hereby provides the I-REN Executive Committee with limited delegated
authority to approve and amend the I-REN budget subject to the following conditions:
 
a.    Revenues shall be consistent with the CPUC funds allocation.
b.    Expenditures shall be consistent with the WRCOG-approved I-REN Business Plan.
c.    The WRCOG Executive Committee may impose additional constraints at its sole discretion.
d.    The WRCOG Executive Committee reserves the right to revoke this limited delegation of authority.
 
Section 4.       AMENDING THE FINAL BUDGET
 
(a)  In accordance with Sections 4.1 and 1.2.2, Subdivision (f) of the WRCOG Joint Powers Agreement
and Government Code Section 29092, the General Assembly hereby delegates its power to amend the
WRCOG Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Agency Budget and approve Budget transfers throughout the Fiscal
Year to the Executive Director within the following control levels:  
 
(1)  Level of Budgetary Control – Budgetary control is established at the following levels: a) General
Fund – Department Level and b) Other Funds – Fund level.  
 
(b)  The Executive Director is authorized to establish and amend revenue estimates and expenditure
appropriations subject to the receipt or award of corresponding revenues (i.e., grant funding, donations,
contract or bond revenues, and reimbursements). 
 
(c)  The Executive Director may revise the schedule of any appropriation made in this resolution where
the revision is of a technical nature, is consistent with the intent of the governing board, and provided
that any net increase in expenditures is paired with a corresponding revenue increase.  Notice of any
revisions shall be included in subsequent budget updates to the Executive Committee. 
 
(d)  The Executive Director is authorized to adjust classifications, including salary and benefit, and
allocation adjustments, and to make related inter-fund transfers and appropriation adjustments, to ensure
comparability with similar classifications to maintain equity in WRCOG's salary schedules and to
incorporate changes into the Salary Schedule, as appropriate.
 
Section 5.       IMPLEMENTATION OF ANNUAL BUDGET
 
The Executive Director is hereby authorized to take necessary and appropriate actions to carry out the
purpose and intent of this resolution.
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the General Assembly of the Western Riverside Council of Governments
on June 29, 2023.
 
 
_________________________                                          _________________________  
Crystal Ruiz, Chair                                                              Kurt Wilson, Secretary
WRCOG Executive Committee                                           WRCOG Executive Committee
 
Approved as to form:

126



 
 
 
___________________________
Steven DeBaun
WRCOG Legal Counsel
 
 
AYES:  _______             NAYS:  _______      ABSENT:  _______    ABSTAIN: _______
 

Prior Action(s): 
April 12, 2023:  The Administration and Finance Committee received and filed.
 
April 3, 2023:  The Executive Committee received and filed.
 
March 16, 2023:  The Technical Advisory Committee received and filed.
 
March 6, 2023:  The Executive Committee received and filed.
 
February 23, 2023:  The Finance Directors Committee received and filed.
 

Fiscal Impact: 
The Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Agency Budget currently has anticipated revenues and transfers in
(overhead) of $19,572,850 against expenditures $19,286,298 in expenditures, a difference of $286,552.
 
Compared to Fiscal Year 2022/2023, this represents a decrease of approximately $68M in revenues and
$31M in expenditures; however, as previously noted, this drastic decrease is attributable to the TUMF
collections (with the exception of the 4% admin fee) now no longer being considered a revenue for the
Agency. Excluding these revenues for an apples-to-apples comparison actually shows revenues for the
Agency increasing by approximately $2.2M, with expenditures increasing by approximately $1.8M, which
is primarily attributable to the increased I-REN revenues, decreased HERO revenues, and decreased
TUMF Administrative revenues.

Attachment(s):
WRCOG FY 24 Budget graphs

127

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1897925/WRCOG_FY_24_Budget_graphs.pdf


FY 23 Budget FY 24 Budget FY 23 Budget FY 24 Budget FY 23 Budget FY 24 Budget FY 23 Budget FY 24 Budget FY 23 Budget FY 24 Budget FY 23 Budget FY 24 Budget FY 23 Budget FY 24 Budget

Revenues 8,098,481          7,230,158          340,167         434,600         198,398         220,753         7,728,330     10,478,589   1,002,500     1,208,750     70,263,068   -                  87,630,944   19,572,850   

Expenditures

Salaries 4,555,109          4,227,466          292,783         393,589         134,725         125,815         1,174,522     1,051,230     721,940         913,262         -                  -                  6,879,079     6,711,363     

Legal 699,850              565,200              -                  -                  1,000              1,000              45,000           60,000           2,000              20,000           -                  -                  747,850         646,200         

General Operations 1,357,256          1,310,171          23,050           26,011           62,498           93,300           3,225,425     3,756,600     16,100           20,300           32,888,595   -                  37,572,924   5,206,382     

Consulting 1,544,650          1,489,186          23,950           15,000           3,283,383     4,968,167     250,000         250,000         -                  -                  5,101,983     6,722,353     

Total 8,156,866          7,592,023          339,783         434,600         198,223         220,115         7,728,330     9,835,997     990,040         1,203,562     32,888,595   -                  50,301,837   19,286,298   

Excess Rev/Exp (58,385)              (361,865)            384                 (0)                    175                 638                 -                  642,592         12,460           5,188              37,374,473   -                  37,329,107   286,552         

Fund Summary

General Fund Clean Cities* Used Oil I-REN LTF* TUMF Grand Total

FY 23 Budget FY 24 Budget FY 23 Budget FY 24 Budget FY 23 Budget FY 24 Budget FY 23 Budget FY 24 Budget FY 23 Budget FY 24 Budget FY 23 Budget FY 24 Budget FY 23 Budget FY 24 Budget

Revenues 240,750              183,580              50,000           50,000           -                  100,000         135,542         139,608         110,000$       148,550$       1,130,000     764,000         2,605,932     2,052,000     

Expenditures

Salaries 104,653              140,505              13,604           20,817           -                  61,024           106,689         61,024           117,660         148,550         909,838         743,674         1,414,430     1,315,531     

Legal 1,000                  2,000                  -                  200                 -                  2,500              750                 20,000           3000 500,000         325,000         75,000           100,000         

General Operations 5,400                  14,950                10,000           3,983              -                  17,750           12,408           14,000           3,000              90,500           43,660           98,250           82,600           

Consulting 129,556              26,125                26,396           25,000           -                  18,726           15,433           30,000           29,757           70,000           40,000           450,000         550,000         

Total 240,609              183,580              50,000           50,000           -                  100,000         135,280         125,024         153,417         148,550         1,570,338     1,152,334     2,037,680     2,048,131     

Excess Rev/Exp 141                      0                           -                  0                      -                  0                      262                 14,584           (43,417)          -                  (440,338)       (388,334)       568,252         3,869              

FY 23 Budget FY 24 Budget FY 23 Budget FY 24 Budget FY 23 Budget FY 24 Budget FY 23 Budget FY 24 Budget FY 23 Budget FY 24 Budget FY 23 Budget FY 24 Budget FY 23 Budget FY 24 Budget

Revenues 25,000                25,000                750,000         300,000         -                  500,000         2,951,257     2,021,421     0 556,280         289,719         100,000         100,000         

Expenditures

Salaries 10,288                16,532                249,183         90,586           -                  146,079         1,438,691     717,100         -                  392,553         -                  277,719         190,072         95,774           

Legal -                       -                       5,000              -                  -                  15,000           115,000         100,000         -                  -                  -                  -                  100                 500                 

General Operations -                       -                  -                  -                  -                  1,132,948     954,001         -                  163,727         -                  12,000           4,750              3,500              

Consulting 14,571                1,000                  558,437         209,414         -                  338,921         250,000         250,000         -                  -                  500                 

Total 24,859                17,532                812,620         300,000         -                  500,000         2,936,639     2,021,101     -                  556,280         -                  289,719         195,422         99,774           

Excess Rev/Exp 141                      7,468                  (62,620)          0                      -                  0                      14,617           320                 -                  -                  -                  -                  (95,422)          226                 

FellowshipRivTAM REAP 1.0 REAP 2.0 Administrative Services Finance Executive

General Fund

Solid Waste Love Your Neighborhood Gas Company Streetlights PACE Commercial HERO TUMF

128



 -

 2,000,000

 4,000,000

 6,000,000

 8,000,000

 10,000,000

 12,000,000

 FY 23  FY 24  FY 23  FY 24  FY 23  FY 24  FY 23  FY 24  FY 23  FY 24

 General Fund  Clean Cities  Used Oil  I-REN  LTF

Budget Summary - Fund Level

Revenues Expenditures

Expenditures - FY 24 (outside) vs FY 23 (inside)

Salaries Legal General Operations Consulting

129



 -

 2,000,000

 4,000,000

 6,000,000

 8,000,000

 10,000,000

 12,000,000

Revenues Salaries Legal General
Operations

Consulting

I-REN Budget Comparison

 I-REN  FY 23 Budget  I-REN  FY 24 Budget

 -

 200,000

 400,000

 600,000

 800,000

 1,000,000

 1,200,000

 1,400,000

Revenues Salaries Legal General
Operations

Consulting

LTF Budget Comparison

 LTF*  FY 23 Budget  LTF*  FY 24 Budget

130



 -

 1,000,000

 2,000,000

 3,000,000

 4,000,000

 5,000,000

 6,000,000

 7,000,000

 8,000,000

 9,000,000

Revenues Salaries Legal General Operations Consulting

General Fund Budget Comparison

General Fund FY 23 Budget General Fund FY 24 Budget

 -

 50,000

 100,000

 150,000

 200,000

 250,000

Revenues Salaries Legal General Operations Consulting

Used Oil Budget Comparison

 Used Oil  FY 23 Budget  Used Oil  FY 24 Budget

131



 -

 50,000

 100,000

 150,000

 200,000

 250,000

 300,000

 350,000

 400,000

 450,000

 500,000

Revenues Salaries Legal General
Operations

Consulting

Clean Cities Budget Comparison

 Clean Cities*  FY 23 Budget  Clean Cities*  FY 24 Budget

132



Item 6.B

Western Riverside Council of Governments
Technical Advisory Committee

Staff Report

Subject: Riverside County Regional Broadband Efforts
Contact: Tom Mullen, Chief Data Officer, Riverside County Information Technology,

tmullen@rivco.org, (951) 955-1850
Date: April 20, 2023

 

 

 
 
Requested Action(s): 

1. Receive and file. 

Purpose: 
The purpose of this item is to present information regarding the County of Riverside's efforts to improve
broadband services within the County.

WRCOG 2022-2027 Strategic Plan Goal: 
Goal #5 - Develop projects and programs that improve infrastructure and sustainable development in our
subregion.

Background: 
This item is reserved for a presentation regarding regional broadband initiatives from Riverside County
Information Technology.

Prior Action(s): 
November 10, 2021:  The Administration & Finance Committee received and filed. 

Fiscal Impact: 
This item is for informational purposes only; therefore, there is no fiscal impact. 

Attachment(s): 
None.

133

mailto:tmullen@rivco.org


Item 6.C

Western Riverside Council of Governments
Technical Advisory Committee

Staff Report

Subject: I-REN Energy Fellowship Update:  Member Agency Participation
Contact: Tyler Masters, Program Manager, tmasters@wrcog.us, (951) 405-6732
Date: April 20, 2023

 

 
 
 
Requested Action(s): 

1. Receive and file.

Purpose: 
The purpose of the item is to provide an update on the I-REN Energy Fellowship and to announce to
start of the member agency participation process.

WRCOG 2022-2027 Strategic Plan Goal: 
Goal #5 - Develop projects and programs that improve infrastructure and sustainable development in our
subregion.

Background: 
In November 2021, the CPUC approved the I-REN Business Plan with a budget of $65M for program
years 2022 - 2027.  The I-REN Business Plan included multiple goals across three program sectors that
were developed based on input from stakeholders within Riverside and San Bernardino Counties since
2019.
 
One of these program sectors identified within I-REN services territory is Workforce, Education &
Training (WE&T). The total budget for the WE&T Sector through 2027 is $15.1M.  The goal of this Sector
is to ensure there is a trained workforce to support and realize energy efficiency savings goals across all
sectors.  I-REN is uniquely positioned to effectively support these initiatives through the direct
connections to local governments and stakeholders that I-REN, and its Councils of Government member
agencies, have with the communities in the Riverside and San Bernardino Counties.  The intent of this
Sector is not to duplicate initiatives already under delivery by Investor-Owned Utilities or various
workforce organizations, but to supplement and tailor programs to fill gaps with a focus on enhancing
energy and energy efficiency knowledge and understanding.
 
I-REN provides public agencies with an opportunity to accelerate the implementation of Energy
Efficiency Programs in the Inland Empire.  One of I-REN's Programs is focused on the WE&T Sector and
is intended to increase energy efficiency knowledge capacity within public sector agencies.  On March
21, 2023, the I-REN Executive Committee authorized the WRCOG Executive Director, upon review by
WRCOG legal counsel, to enter into an agreement with CivicSpark to support the I-REN Energy
Fellowship and to identify, recruit, and place up to 27 fellows within the I-REN service territory in the fall

134

mailto:tmasters@wrcog.us


of 2023.  WRCOG is currently reaching out to agencies that would be interested in hosting a Fellow. 
Participation in this Program will come at no cost to participating agencies, as the salaries of the Fellows
are included in the I-REN budget.
 
CivicSpark is a Governor’s Initiative AmeriCorps Program dedicated to building capacity for local public
agencies to address energy, climate change, community resilience issues, water resource management,
housing, and mobility.   CivicSpark's mission aligns with I-REN goals.  CivicSpark will support host
agencies and I-REN by providing these Fellows with professional growth opportunities and training on
energy and climate resources that can be utilized by the host agency and I-REN.  The I-REN Energy
Fellowship with CivicSpark would include an 11-month fellowship.   CivicSpark candidate Fellow
requirements include a minimum of an Associates Degree from an accredited college or university,
commitment to the full term of service, ability to work in a professional environment, and strong
communication and teamwork skills.
 
Each Fellow will provide approximately 1,700 hours of time over the 11 months with their host agency,
300 - 400 hours of which will be for professional growth and learning opportunities provided by
CivicSpark, I-REN, and the host agency.  The remaining 1,300 - 1,400 hours will be dedicated to energy
projects within the host agency, furthering the host agency and I-REN energy initiatives.  The host
agency jurisdiction would need to provide a space to work, access to a computer, and a supervisor to
whom the Fellow will report.  The CivicSpark Program will take care of all the administrative matters for
this Program.  There is flexibility in the tasks that the Fellow could work on as long as the work pertains
to energy efficiency. 
 
A sample of the energy efficiency initiatives for the host agencies would include but not be limited to the
following:
 

Building energy benchmarking
Develop building inventories and billing rate analysis
Facility audits
Identify and analyze energy efficiency projects within:

Climate Action Plans
Energy Action Plans
Capital Improvement Plan
Facility Equipment Replacement Plan
Energy Efficiency Project Development

Community outreach regarding energy efficiency opportunities. 

From April 2023 through May 2023, staff also plans to reach out to the I-REN member agencies within
Western Riverside County to determine interest and provide technical assistance on the host agency
process.  The recruitment and interview process for the CivicSpark Fellows will be from May 2023
through June 2023 for review and selection. The placement of Fellows will occur in September 2023, and
the Fellowship commences for a total of 11 months. There would be no cost to the local jurisdictions as
the salaries of the Fellows are included in the I-REN budget.  This represents an opportunity for local
jurisdictions to help nurture the next generation of talent for work in the energy sector within the Inland
Empire, and benefits as an agency by moving forward on energy efficiency projects and initiatives.

Prior Action(s): 

135



March 21, 2023:  The I-REN Executive Committee authorized the WRCOG Executive Director, upon
review by WRCOG legal counsel, to enter into an Agreement with CivicSpark to support the I-REN
Energy Fellowship and to identify, recruit, and place up to 27 fellows within the I-REN service territory in
the fall of 2023.
 
February 21, 2023:  The I-REN Executive Committee received and filed.

Fiscal Impact: 
This item is for informational purposes only; therefor, there is no fiscal impact.  All costs associated with
the development of an I-REN Energy-Efficiency Fellowship Program are included in WRCOG's adopted
Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Agency Budget under the Energy & Environmental Department.

Attachment(s): 
None.

136



Item 6.D

Western Riverside Council of Governments
Technical Advisory Committee

Staff Report

Subject: Good Neighbor Guidelines for Siting New and/or Modified Warehouse /
Distribution Facilities

Contact: Chris Gray, Deputy Executive Director, cgray@wrcog.us, (951) 405-6710
Date: April 20, 2023

 

 
 
 
Requested Action(s): 

1. Recommend that the Executive Committee either withdraw the WRCOG Good Neighbor
Guidelines for Siting New and/or Modified Warehouse / Distribution Facilities or direct staff to
update the WRCOG Good Neighbor Guidelines for Siting New and/or Modified Warehouse /
Distribution Facilities.

Purpose: 
The purpose of this item is to provide direction regarding WRCOG's Good Neighbor Guidelines.

WRCOG 2022-2027 Strategic Plan Goal: 
Goal #5 - Develop projects and programs that improve infrastructure and sustainable development in our
subregion.

Background: 
In January 2003, a Regional Air Quality Task Force was formed to study air quality issues in Western
Riverside County.  In response to the increased development of warehouses and distribution centers in
the region, the Task Force developed the Good Neighbor Guidelines.  These guidelines were intended to
provide practical measures that could be incorporated into the design of warehouse and distribution
centers to minimize adverse effects of diesel emissions, especially for those in close proximity to
sensitive receptors.  The Good Neighbor Guidelines (Attachment 1) was endorsed by the Executive
Committee on September 12, 2005.  Nearly 20 years has passed since the original development of these
guidelines.  Since that time, no updates to the document have been made.  
 
The logistics industry has and continues to drive much of the economy within the Inland Empire.  As e-
commerce continues to grow and local jurisdictions continue to see warehouse and distribution center
development interests, community concerns such as traffic, pollution, community character, and
environmental justice also grow.  In response, many jurisdictions have adopted a good neighbor policy or
guidelines to help mitigate the impacts associated with warehouse and distribution centers.  These
guidelines also help jurisdictions proactively plan for logistics development within their boundaries.  This
type of guidance benefits the community and environment but it also can be a benefit to development
interests by providing clear and predictable expectations.  These are not new issues or ideas, but they
have evolved over the past 20 years. 

137

mailto:cgray@wrcog.us


 
When the Regional Air Quality Task Force was formed in 2003, it sought to develop Good Neighbor
Guidelines to meet the following objectives:  1) provide local governments with specific strategies that
can be considered and implemented to minimize potential diesel impacts from new warehouses and
distribution centers, and 2) educate existing warehouse and distribution centers about strategies that can
be implemented to minimize potential diesel impacts from their operations.  In developing the guidance
document, several goals were developed, each with corresponding benefits and recommended
guidelines.  In 2005 when the Good Neighbor Guidelines document was completed, it was endorsed by
the Executive Committee. 
 
Since then, more recent guidance has been developed.  Several WRCOG cities have developed their
own Good Neighbor Guidelines, and in 2022, the Governor's Office of Planning and Research published
a document, Warehouse Projects: Best Practices and Mitigation Measures to Comply with the California
Environmental Quality Act.  Additionally, the South Coast Air Quality Management District has developed
new source rules to reduce pollution and promote electrification, and additional requirements for
outreach and siting for warehouses are now required in environmental justice communities pursuant to
SB 1000.  These more recent requirements are generally more stringent than the guidance found in
WRCOG's Good Neighbor Guidelines. 
 
WRCOG’s principal role is to serve its member agencies. Sometimes this is done by developing a
collective voice or direction on key issues; other times this is best achieved by sharing resources and
serving as a repository for information.  Given the resources currently available, and in acknowledging
the uniqueness of each jurisdiction and its community, WRCOG staff believes the topic of warehouse
development is best addressed at a local level.  WRCOG can assist by acting as a resource and sharing
available information, or through the development of new and updated content.  Therefore, WRCOG staff
seeks to have a discussion with the Planning Directors Committee regarding the Guidelines.  The
Technical Advisory Committee is asked to make a recommendation on whether to update or formally
rescind the Executive Committee's endorsement of the Good Neighbor Guidelines for Siting New and/or
Modified Warehouse / Distribution Facilities (2005). 
 
The Planning Directors Committee (PDC) discussed the benefits and drawbacks of creating new
guidelines as the current guidelines are outdated to the point they could not be updated.  PDC members
discussed the idea of helping cities on a one-on-one basis, but at a minimum WRCOG should not
endorse the current guidelines due to them being outdated.

Prior Action(s): 
April 13, 2023:  The Planning Directors Committee discussed the idea of helping cities on a one-on-one
basis, but at a minimum WRCOG should not endorse the current guidelines due to them being outdated.
 
September 12, 2005:  The Executive Committee endorsed the Good Neighbor Guidelines for Siting New
and/or Modified Warehouse/Distribution Facilities, and directed staff to distribute the document to
member jurisdictions with the recommendation to consider adopting all or part of the document into their
planning practices.

Fiscal Impact: 
If recommended to rescind, this item will result in no fiscal impact.  If the document is updated, this
activity would be included in the Transportation & Planning Department budget for Fiscal Year

138



2023/2024, and funded utilizing LTF.

Attachment(s):
Attachment 1 - Good Neighbor Guidelines for Siting Warehouse Distribution Facilities

139

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/1893693/Good_Neighbor_Guidelines_for_Siting_Warehouse_Distribution_Facilities.pdf


Good Neighbor Guidelines 

For Siting New and/or Modified  

Warehouse/Distribution Facilities   
(Final, September 12, 2005) 

 

 
 

 
 

 
Regional Air Quality Task Force 

Western Riverside Council of Governments 
4080 Lemon Street, 3rd Fl., MS 1032 

Riverside, CA 92501-3679 
(951) 955-7985 

140



Acknowledgements 
 

The Western Riverside Council of Governments (WRCOG) staff would like to acknowledge the 
exceptional contributions made to this document by members of the Regional Air Quality Task 
Force (RAQTF).  Since 2003, WRCOG staff has consistently relied on the RAQTF to provide 
critical and constructive input on developing and implementing environmental policies and 
actions. 
 
The RAQTF is convened by WRCOG, and is comprised of representatives from South Coast Air 
Quality Management, County of Riverside, Office of District 2 Supervisor John F. Tavaglione, 
Eastern Municipal Water District, American Lung Association of the Inland Counties, Center for 
Community Action and Environmental Justice, March Joint Powers Authority, City of Riverside, 
City of Norco, Clean Energy, City of Moreno Valley, and the Waste Haulers Association.   Their 
suggestions and input throughout the development of these guidelines are appreciated. 
 
In particular, the following individuals are acknowledged for their work on this document: 
 
Regional Air Quality Task Force Policy Committee 
  
 John Tavaglione, Supervisor, District 2; 
 John Field, Senior Deputy, Office of Supervisor John Tavaglione, District 2;  
 Larry Dressel, Mayor, City of Beaumont; 
 Frank Hall, Council Member, City of Norco; 
 Ron Loveridge, Mayor, City of Riverside. 
 
Regional Air Quality Task Force Technical Staff 
 
 Patricia Burbano-Brenes, City of Riverside; 

Patricia Byrd, American Lung Association of the Inland Counties; 
            Mike Harrod, County of Riverside Planning Department; 

Dan McGivney, Eastern Municipal Water District; 
 Mark Minard, Assistant Engineer, City of Moreno Valley, Public Works/Transportation  

Engineering Division;  
 Susan Nakamura, South Coast Air Quality Management District; 

Penny Newman, Executive Director, Center for Community Action and Environmental 
Justice; 

            Paul Ryan, P.F. Ryan and Associates, Inc.; 
            Matt Shea, Clean Energy; 
 Colleen Smethers, Center for Community Action and Environmental Justice; 
 Barbara Spoonhour, Program Manager, Western Riverside Council of Governments; 
 Rosa Washington, Staff Analyst I, Western Riverside Council of Governments. 
  

 
 
 
 

 
141



Introduction 
 
On January 16, 2003, the Riverside County Board of Supervisors (Board) directed Executive 
Office staff to initiate the establishment of a Regional Air Quality Task Force to study air quality 
issues in western Riverside County.  This task force was envisioned to be an important tool for 
implementing air quality mitigation measures for the region.   
 
The Regional Air Quality Task Force (RAQTF) continues to research the different areas of air 
quality mitigation that is needed for the subregion.  Since many communities within the region 
either have a separate air quality element or address air quality issues in their land use section 
of their General Plan, the RAQFT undertook the need for a policy for local governments to 
voluntarily adopt when siting new warehouse/distribution centers.   It should be noted that air 
quality agencies, such as, SCAQMD and CARB have broadly addressed this issue with in their 
Guidance Documents and Air Quality Handbook, but have not created stand alone 
documentation.  The Guidelines that follow appear to be the first stand alone document that 
local governments can use when siting warehouses. 
 
The RAQTF has developed these “Good Neighbor Guidelines for Siting New and/or Modified 
Warehouse/Distribution Facilities,” (referred to as “Good Neighbor Guidelines”) to promote and 
assist planning departments, developers, property owners, elected officials, community 
organizations, and the general public as a tool to potentially help address some of the 
complicated choices associated with permitting warehouse/distribution facilities and 
understanding the options available when addressing environmental issues.  These Good 
Neighbor Guidelines are designed to help minimize the impacts of diesel particulate matter (PM) 
from on-road trucks associated with warehouses and distribution centers on existing 
communities and sensitive receptors located in the subregion. 
 
 

Sensitive receptors are considered: 
 

 Residential Communities; 
 Schools; 
 Parks; 
 Playgrounds; 
 Day care centers;  
 Nursing homes; 
 Hospitals; 
 And other public places where residents 

are most likely to spend time. 
 
 

 
142



Objective 
 

The mission of the RAQTF is to develop air quality measures that can be considered and 
potentially adopted by local governing bodies to address adverse air quality issues in the inland 
region through their planning activities.   
 
 

The RAQTF has developed the Good Neighbor Guidelines 
to help achieve the following objectives: 
 

 Provide local governments with specific strategies 
that can be considered and implemented to minimize 
potential diesel impacts from new warehouse and 
distribution centers; 
 

 Educate existing warehouse and distribution 
centers about strategies that can be implemented to 
minimize potential diesel impacts from their 
operations.  

 
 
 
Some communities in western Riverside County, because of their proximity to freeways, arterial 
highways, rail lines, and warehouse/distribution facilities experience higher diesel emissions 
exposure associated with warehouse/distribution centers than others.  In particular, 
warehouse/distribution center projects sited close to sensitive receptors (homes, schools, parks, 
day care centers, nursing homes, hospitals and other places public places) can result in 
adverse health impacts.  The reverse is also true – siting sensitive receptors too close to an 
existing source of diesel emissions can also be a problem. 
 
 

 
143



Audience 
 

These Good Neighbor Guidelines focus on the relationship between land use, permitting, and 
air quality, and highlight strategies that can help minimize the impacts of diesel emissions 
associated with warehouse/distribution centers.  
 
The California Resources Air Board (CARB) defines warehouses/distribution centers as facilities 
that serve as a distribution point for the transfer of goods.   Such facilities include cold storage 
warehouses; goods transfer facilities, and inter-modal facilities such as ports.  These operations 
involve trucks, trailers, shipping containers, and other equipment with diesel engines.   
 
For the purpose of these Guidelines, warehouse/distribution center means a building or 
premises in which the primary purpose is to store goods, merchandise or equipment for 
eventual distribution and may include office and maintenance areas.  A warehouse or 
distribution center includes 3 or more loading bays, or is expected to have more than 150 diesel 
truck trips per day.  For the purpose of these Guidelines, a warehouse and distribution center is 
not intended to include “big box” discount or warehouse stores that sell retail goods, 
merchandise or equipment, or storage and mini-storage facilities that are offered for rent or 
lease to the general public.      
 
 

While the primary users of these Guidelines 
will likely be agencies responsible for land 
use planning and air quality, they may also 
be useful for: 
 

 Planners; 
 Architects; 
 Developers; 
 Elected officials; 
 School districts; 
 Community advisory councils; 
 Public/community organizations.  

 
 

 
144



Purpose 
 

The purpose of the Good Neighbor Guidelines is to provide local government and developers 
with a variety of strategies that can be used to reduce diesel emissions from heavy-duty trucks 
that are delivering goods to and from warehouse and distribution centers.   

In 1998, the SCAQMD conducted its second Multiple Air Toxics Emissions Study (MATES II) 1.  
Considered the nation’s most comprehensive study of toxic air pollution to date, the study found 
that: 

• Diesel exhaust is responsible for about 70 percent of the total cancer risk from air 
pollution;  

• Emissions from mobile sources -- including cars and trucks as well as ships, trains and 
planes -- account for about 90 percent of the cancer risk.  Emissions from businesses 
and industry are responsible for the remaining 10 percent; and  

• The highest cancer risk occurs in south Los Angeles County -- including the port area-- 
and along major freeways.  

The RAQTF is recommending that the Good Neighbor Guidelines be approved by WRCOG 
member jurisdictions and considered for all new warehouse/distribution centers that attract 
diesel trucks.  Implementation of the recommended guidance for proposed facilities is 
technically more feasible than retroactive application to existing warehouse/distribution centers.  
However and as previously mentioned, there is an educational component of these Guidelines 
aimed at existing facilities.  There are mechanisms in the planning process that will encourage 
developers to incorporate the recommended guidelines upfront in the design phase of a project.  
 
The RAQTF recommends that jurisdictions consider these Guidelines when issuing permits 
such as conditional use permits, or zoning permits.  In addition, the recommended Guidelines 
can be used to mitigate potentially significant adverse environmental impacts that are identified 
under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).  The recommended Guidelines are 
intended to be used for new warehouses and can be incorporated in the design phase of the 
proposed warehouse or distribution center.  Many of the recommended guidelines can, 
however, be incorporated into existing facilities.   
 
The recommended Guidelines format identifies the overall goal, benefits and the recommended 
strategies that can be implemented to achieve the goal.  The Guidelines include a series of 
strategies that can be implemented in part or whole, or tailored to the specific needs of a 
project.  The purpose of the guidelines is to provide a general framework for planners and 
developers regarding how they can achieve a specified goal.   
 
It should be noted that CARB has adopted two airborne toxic control measures that will reduce 
diesel particulate materials (PM) emissions associated with warehouse/distribution centers.  The 
first will limit nonessential (or unnecessary) idling of diesel-fueled commercial vehicles, including 
those entering from other states or countries.  This measure prohibits idling of a vehicle for more 
than five minutes at any one location.  The second measure requires that transport refrigeration 
units (TRUs) operating in California become cleaner over time.  The measure establishes in-use 
performance standards for existing TRU engines that operate in California, including out-of-state 
TRUs.  The requirements are phased-in beginning in 2008, and extend to 2019.2 
 

 
145



CARB also operates a smoke inspection program for heavy-duty diesel trucks that focuses on 
reducing truck emissions in California communities.  Areas with large numbers of distributions 
centers are a high priority. 
 
While CARB has these measures in place, local agencies need to acknowledge that the 
enforcement of these measures is through the California Highway Patrol and do not provide a 
swift resolve to local air quality issues.  Local agencies can adopt local control measures, like 
the ones being mentioned, that can be enforced by code enforcement and law enforcement 
officials and provide a more immediate affect to the regions air quality. 
 
 

 
146



Recommended Local Guidelines 
 
 
1.  Goal: Minimize exposure to diesel emissions to neighbors that are situated in close 

proximity to the warehouse/distribution center. 
 
Benefits: 
 

1. Reduces exposure of diesel emissions to residences and other sensitive receptors. 
2. Reduces potential future health, odor and noise related issues, particularly when in 

close proximity to residential neighborhoods. 
 
Recommended Strategies: 
 
• Create buffer zone of at least 300 meters (roughly 1,000 feet, can be office space, employee 

parking, greenbelt) between warehouse/distribution center and sensitive receptors (housing, 
schools, daycare centers, playground, hospitals, youth centers, elderly care facilities, etc.); 

• Site design shall allow for trucks to check-in within facility area to prevent queuing of trucks 
outside of facility; 

• Take into account the configuration of existing distribution centers and avoid locating 
residences and other new sensitive land uses near entry and exit points3; 

• Design warehouse/distribution center so that interior vehicular circulation shall be located 
away from residential uses or any other sensitive receptors. 

 
Why do we suggest buffer zones? 
 
The reduction of potential cancer risk levels at locations where TRUs operate is a direct result of 
the reduction of diesel PM emissions.  Figure 1-1 compares the cancer risk range at various 
distances assuming 300 hours of TRU activity per week.  For year 2000, the current fleet 
average emission rate of 0.7 g/bhp-hr was used.  In 2020, the statewide fleet PM emission rate 
would be reduced 92 percent from the 2000 baseline year to 0.05 g/bhp-hr.  Figure 1-1 below 
illustrates the significant reduction of the estimated near source risk as the diesel PM emission 
rate is reduced from the current fleet emission rate to the much lower emission rate in 2020.4 

 
Figure 1-1 

                
Estimated Risk Range versus Distance from Center of TRU Activity Area* 

Emission Range                 
2000 (0.70 g/bhp-hr)       
2010 (0.24 g/bhp-hr)     
2020 (0.05 g/bhp-hr)     

Distance from Center of 
Source (meters) 

100 150 200 250 300 350 400 450 500 600 700 800 900 1000 1100 

                              
KEY:                             
Potential Cancer Risk > 100 per million               
Potential Cancer Risk ≥ 10 and < 100 per million              
Potential Cancer Risk > 10 per million                
*Assumes 300 hours per week of TRU engine operation at 60% load factor.           

 
147



2.  Goal: Eliminate diesel trucks from unnecessarily traversing through residential 
neighborhoods. 

 
Benefits: 
 

1. Reduces exposure of diesel emissions to residences and other sensitive receptors. 
2. Reduces or eliminate trucks in residential neighborhoods. 
3. Reduces truckers travel time if key destinations are clearly identified. 

 
Recommended Guidelines: 
 
• Require warehouse/distribution centers to clearly specify on the facility site plan primary 

entrance and exit points; 
• Require warehouse/distribution centers to establish specific truck routes and post signage 

between the warehouse/distribution center and the freeway and/or primary access arterial 
that achieves the objective.  The jurisdiction may not have an established truck route, but 
may take the opportunity to consider the development of one; 

• Provide food options, fueling, truck repair and or convenience store on-site or within the 
warehouse/distribution center complex; 

• Require warehouse/distribution centers to provide signage or flyers identifying where food, 
lodging, and entertainment can be found, when it is not available on site; 
 

 
3.  Goal: Eliminate trucks from using residential areas and repairing vehicles on the 

streets. 
 
Benefits: 
  

1. Reduces exposure of diesel emissions to residences and sensitive receptors. 
 
Recommended Guidelines: 
 
• Allow homeowners in the trucking business to acquire permits to park vehicles on property, 

residential areas or streets; 
Note:  Some jurisdictions already restrict parking of oversized vehicles on residential streets 
regardless of ownership.   

• Establish overnight parking within the warehouse/distribution center; 
• Allow warehouse/distribution facilities to establish an area within the facility for repairs. 
 

 
148



 
4.  Goal: Reduce and/or eliminate diesel idling within the warehouse/distribution 

center 
 
Benefits:  
 

1. Reduces exposure of diesel emissions to residences and other sensitive receptors. 
 
Recommended Guidelines: 
 
• Require the installation of electric hook-ups to eliminate idling of main and auxiliary engines 

during loading and unloading, and when trucks are not in use;  
• Train warehouse managers and employees on efficient scheduling and load management to 

eliminate unnecessary queuing and idling of trucks within the facility; 
• Require signage that informs truck drivers of the California Air Resources Board (CARB) 

regulations (which include anti-idling regulations); 
• Post signs requesting that truck drivers turn-off engines when not in use; 
• Restrict idling within the facility to less than ten (10) minutes. 
 
 
5.  Goal: Establish a diesel minimization plan for on- and off-road diesel mobile 

sources to be implemented with new projects. 
 
Benefits: 
  

1. Reduces exposure of diesel emissions to residences and sensitive receptors. 
2. Establishes long-term goal for facility to eliminate diesel emissions at the facility. 
3. Reduces on- and off-road diesel emissions that are associated with use of the 

facility. 
 
Recommended Guidelines: 
 
• Encourage warehouse/distribution center fleet owners to replace their existing diesel fleets 

with new model vehicles and/or cleaner technologies, such as electric or compressed 
natural gas; 

• Require all warehouse/distribution centers to operate the cleanest vehicles available; 
• Provide incentives for warehouses/distribution centers and corporations which partner with 

trucking companies that operate the cleanest vehicles available; 
• Encourage the installation of clean fuel fueling stations at facilities. 

 
149



 
6.  Goal: Establish an education program to inform truck drivers of the health effects 

of diesel particulate and the importance of reducing their idling time. 
 
Benefits:  
 

1. Educates truck drivers of the health effects of diesel particulate to encourage 
drivers to implement diesel reduction measures. 

 
Recommended Guidelines: 
 
• Provide warehouse/distribution center owners/managers with informational flyers and 

pamphlets for truck drivers about the health effects of diesel particulates and the importance 
of being a good neighbor.  The following information should include: 

 
o Health effects of diesel particulates; 
o Benefits of minimizing idling time; 
o ARB idling regulations; 
o Importance of not parking in residential areas. 

 
 
7.  Goal: Establish a public outreach program and conduct periodic community 

meetings to address issues from neighbors. 
 
Benefits:  
 

1. Informs the community regarding proactive strategies that the 
warehouse/distribution center has or is doing to reduce exposure to diesel 
particulate. 

2. Allows the warehouse/distribution center to be more proactive. 
3. Encourages partnerships to develop solutions for both parties. 

 
Recommended Guidelines: 
 
• Encourage facility owners/management to conduct periodic community meetings inviting 

neighbors, community groups, and other organizations; 
• Encourage facility owners/management to have site visits with neighbors and members of 

the community to view measures  that the facility has taken to reduce/and or eliminate diesel 
particulate emissions; 

• Encourage facility owners/management to coordinate an outreach program that will educate 
the public and encourage discussion relating to the potential for cumulative impacts from a 
new warehouse/distribution center. 

• Provide facility owners/management with the necessary resources and encourage the 
utilization of those resources such as, the California Air Resources Board (ARB) and the 
South Coast Air Quality Management District regarding information about the types and 
amounts of air pollution emitted in an area, regional air quality concentrations, and health 
risks estimates for specific sources; 

• Require the posting of signs outside of the facility providing a phone number where 
neighbors can call if there is an air quality issue.   

 

 
150



Recommended Regional Guidelines 
 
The following guidelines can be implemented at the regional level for the siting of new and/or 
modified warehouses/distribution center (s): 
 
• Develop, adopt and enforce truck routes both in and out of a jurisdiction, and in and out of 
facilities; 
 
• Have truck routes clearly marked with trailblazer signs, so trucks will not enter residential 
areas; 
 
• Promote the benefits of fleets rapidly adopting cleaner technologies; 
 
• Provide incentives for local fleets to acquire cleaner technologies that can reduce idling; 
 
• Adopt and implement the regional idling ordinance (being developed by this task force) to 
minimize idling at delivery locations warehouses, truck stops, etc; 
 
• Provide local warehouses/distribution facilities incentives to reduce idling (i.e. reduce noise); 
 
• Identify or develop secure locations outside of residential neighborhoods where truckers that 
live in the community can park their truck, such as a Park & Ride; 
 
• Educate the local enforcement agencies (including law enforcement) on diesel emissions 
minimization strategies (specifications, how, etc.);  
 
• Educate local governments of potential air quality impacts; 
 
• Provide food options, fueling, truck repair and or convenience store on-site to minimize the 
need for trucks to traverse through residential neighborhoods. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
151



GLOSSARY OF KEY TERMS 
 

Buffer Zone:  An area of land separating one parcel or land from another that acts to soften or 
mitigate the effects of one land use on the other. 
 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA):  A California law that sets forth a process for 
public agencies to make informed decisions on discretionary projects approvals.  The process 
helps decision-makers determine whether any potential, significant, adverse environmental 
impacts are associated with a proposed project and to identify alternatives and mitigation 
measures that will eliminate or reduce such adverse impacts. 
 
Distribution Center:  See Warehouse 
 
Idling:  The operation of the engine of a vehicle while the vehicle is not in motion.  
 
Land Use Agency:  Local government agency that performs functions associated with the 
review, approval, and enforcement of general plans and plan elements, zoning, and land use 
permitting.  For the purpose of these Guidelines, a land use agency is typically a local planning 
department. 
 
Mobile Source:  Sources of air pollution such as automobiles, motorcycles, trucks, off-road 
vehicles, boats, trains and airplanes. 
 
Ordinance:  A law adopted by a City Council or County Board of Supervisors.  Ordinances 
usually amend, repeal or supplement the municipal code; provide zoning specifications; or 
appropriate money for specific purposes. 
 
Risk:  For cancer health effects, risk is expressed as an estimate of the increase chances of 
getting cancer due to facility emissions over a 70-year lifetime.  This increase in risk expressed 
as chances in a million (e.g., 1,400 in a million). 
 
Stationary Sources:  Non-mobile sources such as manufacturing facilities, power plants, and 
refineries. 
 
Warehouse(s):  For the purpose of these Guidelines, warehouse/distribution center means a 
building or premises in which the primary purpose is to store goods, merchandise or equipment 
for eventual distribution and may include office and maintenance areas.  A warehouse or 
distribution center includes 3 or more loading bays, or is expected to have more than 150 diesel 
truck trips per day.  For the purpose of these Guidelines, a warehouse and distribution center is 
not intended to include “big box” discount or warehouse stores that sell retail goods, 
merchandise or equipment, or storage and mini-storage facilities that are offered for rent or 
lease to the general public 
 
Zoning Ordinances:  City councils and county boards of supervisors adopts zoning ordinances 
that set forth land use classifications, divides the county or city into land use zones as 
delineated on the official zoning, maps, and set enforceable standards for future development.   
 
 
 

 
152



References 
 

1. Multiple Air Toxics Emissions Study (MATES II) (2000).  South Coast Air Quality 
Management District. 

 
2. Air Quality and Land Use Handbook: A Community Health Perspective.  (April 2005)  

California Air Resources Board.   
 

3. Air Quality and Land Use Handbook: A Community Health Perspective.  (April 2005)  
California Air Resources Board.   

 
4. Air Quality and Land Use Handbook: A Community Health Perspective.  (April 2005)  

California Air Resources Board.   
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
153


	Technical Advisory Committee Agenda
	Item 5.A - Cover Page
	Item 5.B - Cover Page
	Item 5.C - Cover Page
	Item 5.C - Attachment 1 - WRCOG Fee Comparison Study Final Report
	Item 5.D - Cover Page
	Item 5.D - Attachment 1 - SCAG Update: March 2023
	Item 5.E - Cover Page
	Item 5.E - Attachment 1 -  February 2023 Agency Financials
	Item 6.A - Cover Page
	Item 6.A - WRCOG FY 24 Budget graphs
	Item 6.B - Cover Page
	Item 6.C - Cover Page
	Item 6.D - Cover Page
	Item 6.D - Attachment 1 - Good Neighbor Guidelines for Siting Warehouse Distribution Facilities



